
 

 

ABABABAB    
CREATING OPPORTUNITIES AND TACKLING INEQUALITIES 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

MONDAY 14 JULY 2014 
7.00 PM 
 

Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall 
 
 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

 
1. Apologies for absence 

 
 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations 
 

 

 At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification “ that has been disclosed to the Solicitor to the Council.  

Members must also declare if they are subject to their party group whip in 
relation to any items under consideration. 
 

 

3. Minutes of Meeting Held on 17 March 2014 
 

3 - 18 

4. Call In of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions 
 

 

 The decision notice for each decision will bear the date on which it is 
published and will specify that the decision may then be implemented on the 
expiry of 3 working days after the publication of the decision (not including 
the date of publication), unless a request for call-in of the decision is 
received from any two Members of a Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny 
Commissions.  If a request for call-in of a decision is received, 
implementation of the decision remains suspended for consideration by the 
relevant Scrutiny Committee or Commission. 
 

 

5. New Vision for Early Years Services Including Children's Centres in 
Peterborough 
 

19 - 34 

6. Implementations of Ofsted School Improvement Inspection Action Plan 
 

35 - 62 

7. Draft School Organisation Plan 2014/2015 - Delivering Local Places for 
Local Children 
 

63 - 114 

8. Improving Education Outcomes Task  and  Finish Group Final Report 
 

115 - 120 

9. Directors Report for Social Care Practice and Performance 
 

121 - 130 

Public Document Pack



 

 

10. Review of 2013/2014 and Work Programme for 2014/15 
 

131 - 146 

11. Forward Plan of Key Decisions 
 

147 - 162 

12. Date of Next Meeting 
 

 

 Monday 8 September 2014 
 

 

 
 

 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Paulina Ford on 01733 452508 as soon as possible. 
 

 
Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours 
 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair. 

 
 

Committee Members: 
 

Councillors: S Day (Chair), B Rush, G Nawaz, M Jamil, J Shearman, B Saltmarsh and D Fower 
 

Substitutes: Councillors: R Ferris, F Fox, I Walsh and A Shaheed 
 

Education Co-optees: Paul Rossi (Roman Catholic Church Representative), 
Miranda Robinson,(Church of England Representative),  

Tricia Pritchard, (Director of Education & Training), Diocese of Ely 
Peter Thompson, Parent Governor Representative 

Alistair Kingsley – Co-opted Member 
 

Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Paulina Ford on telephone 01733 
452508 or by email – paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk 

 
 



AB 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 
CREATING OPPORTUNITIES AND TACKLING INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

HELD IN THE 
BOURGES/VIERSEN ROOM, TOWN HALL, PETERBOROUGH 

ON 17 MARCH 2014 
 

Present: Councillors  C Harper (Chairman), J Peach, L Serluca, B Saltmarsh,  N 
Thulbourn, D Fower 
 

Also present Alastair Kingsley 
Miranda Robinson 
Cllr Holdich 

Co-opted Member 
Education Co-opted Member 
Cabinet Member for Education, Skills and University 
 

Officers in 
Attendance: 

Sue Westcott 
Jonathan Lewis 
Gary Perkins 
Jawaid Khan 
Paulina Ford 
Marie Southgate 
  

Executive Director, Children’s Services 
Assistant Director Education and Resources 
Head of School Improvement 
Community Cohesion Manager 
Senior Governance Officer, Scrutiny    
Lawyer 
 

1. Apologies 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Day, Councillor Nawaz, Councillor Rush 
and Councillor Shearman.  Councillor Peach, Councillor Serluca and Councillor Thulbourn 
were in attendance as substitutes. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations 
 
 There were no declarations of Interest or whipping declarations. 
 
3.       Minutes of the meetings held on: 

 

• 3 December 2013 

• 6 January 2014 

• 17 February 2014 
 

The minutes of the meetings held on 3 December 2013, 6 January 2014 and 17 February 
2014 were all approved as an accurate record.  
       

4. Call In of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions 
 

There were no requests for Call-in to consider. 
 

5. Scrutiny in a Day Overview Report 
 
The report was introduced by the Community Cohesion Manager and provided the Committee 
with the overview report detailing the outcomes from the Joint Scrutiny in a Day event held on 
17th January 2014.  The event looked at understanding and managing the impacts of welfare 
reform on communities in Peterborough. The approach had been an innovative one which cut 
across the remit of all the Scrutiny Committees in order to look at welfare reform 
comprehensively and gain a deeper understanding. The Committee were asked to agree the 
recommendations made by the committee on the day and advise on how they wish to take 
them forward. 

3



Observations and questions were raised and discussed including: 
 

• Members referred to the recommendation ‘To identify barriers to work and explore how 
early years provision, support and related services can help parents into employment’ and 
asked what actions could be expected with regards to identifying barriers to work and 
getting parents back into work. The Community Cohesion Manager stated that this was a 
recommendation from Members on the day deferred to Members to respond. 

• One Member responded that one strand of feedback on the day was an introduction to 
support for single-parent families.  To look at ways that the systems could be used to 
support parents into employment whilst ensuing that children were still able to attend 
school and ensuring there were no barriers to parents accessing employment. 

• Members asked what an example would be of a barrier to get work. The Co-opted 
Member stated that working hours could be impractical with young children or it could be 
parents making sure that children were in attendance at school when they were working in 
shift work jobs.  There were different support mechanisms available to help with these 
types of barriers. 

• The Chair sought approval from Members for each of the recommendations.  All agreed. 

• Members wanted to know what practical actions would be taken to implement the 
recommendations in the report. The Senior Governance Officer responded that the report 
would go to each committee for approval.  The recommendations would then be 
developed into a piece of work for each committee and scrutinised and monitored by the 
relevant committee. There would also be a piece of work to look at the ‘return on 
investment’ for the recommendations which would come back to the Committee to show 
the impact of the event. 

• Members asked if there would be a practical implementable policy at the end of the piece 
of work.  The Community Cohesion Manager responded that each recommendation would 
be worked through following an endorsement from the Committee. Actions would then be 
put in place to work through those recommendations but it could possibly take up to a year 
to measure.  The outcome of the recommendations would be measured through the 
‘return on investment model’. The Executive Director, Children’s Services responded that 
the work was urgent and in some cases had already commenced.  An example was that 
Connecting Families was already up and organised and the impact on those subject to 
benefits needed to be demonstrated.  An action plan needed to be worked on for each 
recommendation and the results brought back to the Committee at a later date. 

• Members in attendance on the day commented that the early part of the day was about 
setting the local context for attendees and Members had been provided with various data 
sets.  It was therefore suggested that there should be updates issued once a year in order 
for Councillors to have the broadest possible context regarding the impact in 
Peterborough.  The Community Cohesion Manager responded that information sharing 
had had very positive feedback from councillors. 

 
ACTIONS AGREED 
 
The Committee noted the report and endorsed the recommendations in the report: 
 

1. To explore the impact of welfare reform on young people and their attainment in 

mainstream education. 

2. To identify barriers to work and explore how early years provision, support and related 

services can help parents into employment.  

3. To understand the impact and needs arising from welfare reform and ensure that 

initiatives such as Connecting Families can meet these needs. 

The Committee also requested that reports on the progress of the recommendations be 
brought before the Committee over the next year. 
 
 

4



6. Presentation of 2013 Validated Examination Results 
 
The Assistant Director Education and Resources introduced the report which  provided the 
Committee with a summary of  the 2013 validated assessment and examination results for the 
Early Years Foundations Stage (EYFS – Reception Year – YR), Year 1 Phonics Check, Key 
Stage 1, Key Stage 2, Key Stage 4 and Key Stage 5. The figures were final and formed part of 
the assessment for the league tables. The report therefore represented a holistic view of 
examination results across Peterborough.   The Head of School Improvement went through 
the report highlighting the following: 
 

• Early Years Foundation Stage – this was the first year of measure.  There had been a 
good level of development and consistent achievement across the curriculum.  6% 
above local comparators and 2% below the National Average. 

• Year 1 Phonics – there had been a big improvement but the gap had not closed.  11% 
below the National Average and 8% below the Local Comparators. 

• Key Stage 2 had seen some good improvement and now had the closest gap to the 
National Average.  The rate of expected progress particularly in maths and writing had 
been pleasing and the gap was closing. 

• Key Stage 4 had seen a 7% improvement from 2012 and this was being sustained.  
The gap to National Average was closing. 

• Key Stage 5 – The gap to National Average was narrowing. 

• Floor standards at KS4 remained the same.   

• Key actions to address underperformance. 
 
Observations and questions were raised and discussed including: 
 

• Members commented that whilst the report had been good in some aspects there was still 
a lot of negative aspects when comparing to the national average and in particular the gap 
in relation to the average point score.  The Head of School Improvement responded that 
he was in discussions with teachers, Heads of Faculty, etc. to ensure they were  focusing 
on all students including those attaining low grades to ensure they made progress. The 
Assistant Director Education and Resources responded that there had in some schools 
been a focus on the high-performing pupils getting 5 GCSEs at the expense of those at 
the lower end. 

• Members asked if this therefore meant that there was going to be greater focus in future 
on pupils at the lower end of attainment. Members were advised that schools had taken 
the message on board and were considering the average point score with greater 
significance.  The average point score would become more significant because in the 
future the best eight subjects measure would ultimately replace the 5 A* - C including 
English and Maths. 

• The Head of School Improvement advised Members that Peterborough had done 
particularly well in 5 A*-C not including English and Maths and were above National 
Average. 

• Members noted that the report showed final figures and did not include young people who 
had not been in education for less than two years.  Members wanted to know if by not 
including new arrivals on the report it made the figures slightly better or worse. Members 
were informed that if a student had been in this country for two years or less the school 
that they attended were allowed to exclude them from their final attainment data should 
they wish to.  This was why there was a difference between the validated data and the 
unvalidated data which included all the children. 

• Members commented on the reference to the National Average and the fact that 
Peterborough was getting closer to the National Average. Members also noted how limited 
the control was that the Local Authority had over the schools. They also noted that the UK 
average was low in comparison with the rest of the world and therefore Peterborough 
being behind the National Average was very poor. They asked what the council could do 
in order to ensure that Peterborough improved its standards. The Head of School 

5



Improvement stated that the Local Authority was entitled to have a representative during 
Head Teacher selection. In addition, there were also good relationships with academies. 
In terms of comparison with countries other than the UK, the PIZA tests were a 
problematic test because they might compare a city like Shanghai with the whole of 
England. With regards to the National Average there was a greater focus on the National 
Average and there was no reason why Peterborough should not reach the National 
Average by 2015.  The aim was also to have 75% of schools rated ‘good’ or better by 
2015. 

• The Cabinet Member for Education, Skills and University advised the Committee that 
there was a need to take into account the improvement in schools over the past five years. 
The Ofsted report noted that the money invested in schools had been effective. Teaching 
was getting better and there was a new teacher training college.  

• Members referred to paragraphs 5.20 and 5.21 in the report regarding schools issued with 
a Letter of Concern or Formal Warning Notice.  Members wanted to know if Ward 
Councillors were notified when schools in their wards were sent these letters and notices. 
Members were advised that they were internal documents put in place to support schools 
and help them focus on improvement.  Some were confidential as they might relate to 
individuals but others were more generic notices regarding performance. The focus 
needed to be on schools improving rather than on media gossip around schools. Some 
schools had received notices which were not just around performance and therefore it 
might often be inappropriate to issue them more widely. 

• Members noted that there was a positive trend in results but there were concerns 
regarding sustainability of that trend. The core mainstream seemed to be achieving 
sustained improvement.  Members asked if there was therefore more of a focus on high 
and low achievers now? The Head of School Improvement responded that there was a 
level of comfort around sustainability of the narrower measures and the scope could now 
be widened in future around, for instance, children who received free school meals. There 
would be a focus on more group analysis data. 

• Members asked about the attainment of level 3. The Head of School Improvement 
responded that an issue with attainment of level 3 was that many teachers were 
concerned about awarding a level 3 as this then predicted that the child would attain a 
level 5 later.  If the child did not achieve a level 3 it could impact negatively if the child did 
not subsequently achieve a level 5.  Level 3 was therefore often only awarded to those 
deemed to be highly likely to achieve a level 5.  Children less likely to achieve a level 5 
would be assessed as a 2a or 2b. 

• Members referred to the figure on page 84 in which the percentage of pupils attending 
schools judged good or better reaching 82.1% and then dropping significantly was correct. 
The Head of School Improvement responded that it was correct but reflected the schools 
which would have been tested at that time rather than a drop in quality across the area. 

• Members asked how the percentage of pupils attending schools judged good or better 
compares with the National Average. The Head of School Improvement stated that 
Peterborough was at 71.7%, the aim was to increase it to 75% by 2015, which would be 
slightly above the National Average. The Assistant Director Education added that the 
percentage difference would only need one school to improve its rating. 

• Members asked the relevance of the figures and how they were being used. The Head of 
School Improvement stated that they were used to target schools and identify areas for 
improvement. The data was also used to position the Local Authority in the league tables. 
The Executive Director, Children’s Services responded that they would also be beneficial 
to parents in assessing how their child’s school was performing and to find out what the 
Local Authority were doing to address attainment levels. 

• Members stated that the primary purpose of the data was to let parents know how their 
school were doing however the more relevant data was what percentage of students in a 
school receive a good education.  

• Members wanted to know if reception children were rated to help inform future plans. The 
Assistant Director Education responded that the challenges for the youngest children were 
different.  35% of the intake at reception level were EAL which meant that the challenges 
were bigger.  This did not however change the fact that there was still an intent to get the 

6



best possible results for young children. The work around Early Years provision was key 
to this. 

• The Chair commented that the Committee might want to look more in depth at the work 
being done with Early Years provision and reception children. 

• Members stated the importance of measuring the youngest children in order to effectively 
plan for the future.  The Head of School Improvement stated that data on reception 
classes had been taken in recent years but there was not yet enough to identify trends.  

• Members stated that once the new measures around free childcare were implemented 
there would be scope to evaluate.  

 
ACTIONS AGREED 
 
The Committee noted the report and supported the School Improvement Team in challenging 
and intervening in schools to improve educational attainment across the city. 
 

7. The Vision for Education in Peterborough – Update Report 
 
The report was introduced by the Assistant Director Education and Resources and provided 
the Committee with an update on the reports previously presented to the Committee in April 
and November 2013 which outlined the vision for supporting education in Peterborough. 
Significant work had been undertaken to review functions and improve outcomes and the 
report aimed to finalise the proposals for the future delivery of the Education Service. The 
report also reflected on the recent Ofsted visit and proposed actions moving forward. 
 
Members were informed of the recent Ofsted Inspection of Peterborough’s School 
Improvement Arrangements and advised that Ofsted had judged the service as effective.  A 
copy of the Ofsted report was tabled at the meeting (attached at Appendix 1). 
 
Observations and questions were raised and discussed including: 
 

• Members congratulated the officers on the positive Ofsted report. Members wanted to 
know whether officers had felt that Ofsted had missed any areas during their inspection. 
Members were informed that they had not looked at Looked after Children education or 
Early Years in any depth. It had taken Ofsted a little while to understand the context of 
Peterborough but it had been a fair inspection.  The Executive Director, Children’s 
Services stated that the Ofsted report was a huge accolade and endorsement as to the 
amount of effort that the School Improvement Team had put into schools. The Ofsted 
team had gone in to schools and meet with Head Teachers to validate what officers were 
saying. The Cabinet Member also congratulated the officers and Improvement Team on 
the outcome of the Ofsted report and it was commendable that Peterborough had 
performed better than many other Local Authorities. 

• Members wanted to know when the Ofsted report had been received and why it had not 
been sent to Members before the meeting. The Assistant Director Education and 
Resources responded that it had been received during the middle of the previous week 
but had been embargoed until the day after the scrutiny meeting.  

• Members asked how the outcome was arrived at to keep an in house School Improvement 
Team.  A report had been presented to the Committee a year ago suggesting that this 
service may be outsourced.  The Executive Director, Children’s Services responded that 
that when she first took up the post there was confusion as to whether to retain in-house 
services or outsource. There had been a number of reviews under the previous Director 
but she felt that there was no evidence or justification or improvement to be gained by 
outsourcing the service.  

• Members followed-up asking that since the focus of the school improvement team had 
decreased was the conclusion the same. The Assistant Director Education responded that 
there were budgetary constraints but the change in focus did not put performance 
improvement at risk. Councillor Holdich responded that the Ofsted report had validated the 
decision.  

7



• Members noted that Serco had been commissioned to undertake a review and wanted to 
know if that had had some kind of financial implication. The Assistant Director Education 
responded that Serco had managed the service for a while by taking a vacant post and at 
the going rate for the position.  The costs associated were therefore those of the vacant 
post. The person that had been brought in from Serco had considerable knowledge of 
school improvement at another authority and provided an independent review. 

• Members referred to the Peterborough Self Improving Schools Network and asked if there 
was engagement with other schools aside from those in the pilot scheme. Members were 
informed that there was engagement with other schools.  Secondary Heads had met and 
shared their experience with all schools.  Primary Heads had this on their agenda for a 
meeting to be held next week and there would be a dissemination event towards the end 
of May. This would not replace the school improvement work but to complement it. 

• Members referred to paragraph 6.1 in the report and the mention of vacant posts being 
filled and asked what sort of vacant posts were being referred to. Members were advised 
that the vacant posts were for the Head of SEN and Inclusion and the Lead for Education. 

• Members added that the school-to-school improvement scheme would help those schools 
currently rated as outstanding remain outstanding schools themselves through 
reinforcement of standards.  The Assistant Director Education and Resources responded 
that this was the case and teachers from better performing schools were nonetheless 
learning things through the scheme. 

 
ACTIONS AGREED 
 
The Committee noted the report and endorsed the proposed model of education delivery in 
Peterborough. 
 

8. Children’s Services Improvement Programme Task and Finish Group Final Report 
 

Alistair Kingsley, Independent Co-opted Member of the Committee and a member of the Task 
and Finish Group introduced the report which provided the Committee with the findings of the 
Children’s Improvement Programme Scrutiny Task and Finish Group. The Committee were 
asked to endorse the findings of the Children’s Improvement Programme Scrutiny Task and 
Finish Group and accept the recommendations.  The Committee were informed that the Task 
and Finish Group had felt confident in the sustained progress that had been made.  Mr 
Kingsley thanked the Executive Director of Children’s Services for the amount of data that had 
been shared with the Group and the openness and willingness to accept challenge.   
 
Observations and questions were raised and discussed including: 
 

• Members referred to page 138, the Audit of Contact and Referral Thresholds and noted 
that two cases which resulted in No Further Action should have progressed to referral and 
asked what exactly had happened in those instances. The Executive Director, Children’s 
Services responded that there was a clear threshold document in place whereby staff 
apply the criteria for referral against that to see whether they should be accepted into 
social care. However when this was looked at it was felt that the criteria had not been 
properly applied.  The case therefore had not progressed to initial assessment when it 
should have done.   

• Members of the Task and Finish Group advised the Committee that whilst the review was 
taking place they had gained a lot more information on the Children’s Services 
Department and the procedures and policies.  It had given them the opportunity to meet   
staff and follow the procedures through rather than just hearing about them.  The 
continuation of the Members visits to the service areas had been very helpful and it was 
felt that the staff appreciated the visits from councillors.  The Executive Director, Children’s 
Services responded that when she first took the post of Executive Director one of the 
biggest complaints from councillors had been that the service was not transparent. She 
stated that there was now much greater transparency and openness but there was still a 
need to scrutinise and monitor the service at meetings. 

8



The Chair thanked the Task and Finish Group for the thoroughness of the review and thanked 
the Executive Director, Children’s Services for her co-operation and openness during the 
review.  Members also thanked the Senior Governance Officer for her support of the Task and 
Finish Group. 

 
ACTIONS AGREED 
 
The Committee noted the report and accepted and endorsed the recommendations within the 
report. 

 
9. Appointment of a Co-opted Member 

 
The Chair introduced the report which proposed that the Committee consider retaining Alistair 
Kingsley as a Co-opted Member of the Committee with no voting rights for the municipal year 
2014/2015.    
 
The Committee unanimously agreed to the proposal and agreed to review the appointment at 
the end of the municipal year. 
 
ACTIONS AGREED 
 
The Committee agreed: 
 
To retain Alistair Kingsley as a Co-opted Member of the Committee with no voting rights and 
that this arrangement be reviewed on an annual basis. 
 

10. Forward Plan of Key Decisions 
 
The Committee received the latest version of the Council’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions, 
containing key decisions that the Leader of the Council anticipated the Cabinet or individual 
Cabinet Members would make during the course of the following four months.  Members were 
invited to comment on the Forward Plan and, where appropriate, identify any relevant areas 
for inclusion in the Committee’s work programme. 
 
ACTION AGREED 
 
The Committee noted the Forward Plan of Key Decisions.  
 

11. Work Programme 2014/20150 
 
The Senior Governance Officer introduced the report which provided the committee with a list 
of possible items to be included in the committees 2014-15 work programme.  
 
Additional items for consideration included: 
 

• School to School Partnership 

• Reception Intake Assessment 

• Pupil Premium 
 
ACTION AGREED 
 
The committee noted the report and agreed to discuss in further detail at the next group 
representatives meeting.  
 
 
The meeting began at 7.00pm and ended at 9.05pm    CHAIRMAN 

9



10

This page is intentionally left blank



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



CREATING OPPORTUNITIES AND TACKLING 
INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 5 

14 JULY 2014 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Director for Communities                                     
 
Contact Officer(s) – Wendi Ogle-Welbourn 
Contact Details – 01733 863749 
 

NEW VISION FOR EARLY YEARS SERVICES INCLUDING CHILDREN’S CENTRES IN 
PETERBOROUGH 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update and inform the Scrutiny Committee of the progress in 

implementing the proposals described in the document ‘A New Vision for Early Years, including 
Children’s Centres, in Peterborough’.  
 
The report will update Scrutiny on the following: 
 

• The progress made in securing tenants for the de-designated centres; 
 

• The process undertaken in determining appropriate tenants for the de-designated 
centres; 

 

• The progress made in developing the early years universal core entitlement delivered 
from each of the de-designated centres; 

 

• The new contractual arrangements for the delivery of the Children’s Centre Hubs and 
outreach activities with Spurgeons and Barnardos. 

 
2 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 For Scrutiny to note and comment on the progress so far in the delivery of the agreed ‘New 
Vision for Early Years, including Children’s Centres in Peterborough’. 
 

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY  
 

3.1 This report relates to the Supporting Vulnerable People priority in the Single Delivery Plan. 
 

4. BACKGROUND 
 
4.1 

 
Cabinet gave approval for the implementation of the proposals in connection with the re-
visioning of children’s centre delivery in February 2014. From the point of the decision, 
significant work has been undertaken to secure continued future early years delivery from the 
de-designated children’s centres. The main focus of the work has been to identify appropriate 
tenants to manage the buildings and take on the full liabilities associated with the running costs 
of these buildings. In addition, future tenants would have to agree to continue to offer the 
community access to universal early years’ services from the buildings. 
 
To date, future tenancy arrangements have been identified for most of the de-designated 
centres. The future tenants for these children’s centre buildings have been identified through 
the applying the following criteria: 
 

• The future financial sustainability of the proposed organisation seeking tenancy 

19



• The organisation seeking tenancy commitment to early years services 
 
A full options appraisal in relation to the identification of appropriate tenancy arrangements for 
the de-designated centres can be found in Appendix 1. 
 
Following the consultation period for ‘A New Vision for Early Years, including Children’s 
Centres’ cabinet agreed to reduce the £1.2m savings required by £100,000 in order to ensure 
that a core entitlement of universal early years services could still be delivered from the de-
designated children’s centre buildings. This core entitlement will consist of: 
 

• Continued access to midwifery and health visiting services from the centre buildings 

• Access to one early childhood development session per week facilitated by an early 
years professional from the centre buildings 

• Support for mothers who are at risk of post-natal depression through the extension of 
the Connecting Mums project run by Peterborough and Fenland Mind 

• Support for groups of parents who wish to run their own groups from the centre 
buildings 
 

Midwifery and Health Visiting services have agreed to continue operating from the de-
designated centres and support has been made available to ensure that these services can 
continue, where needed, from the centre buildings for 52 weeks of the year. 
 
Agreements have been made with Peterborough and Fenland Mind and with the Peterborough 
Council for Voluntary Services to deliver programmes in the de-designated centres. 
Peterborough and Fenland Mind will deliver support activities for mothers who have been 
identified as being at risk of post-natal depression. They will deliver group programmes and 
individual mentoring/outreach from the Children’s Centre Hubs and through the de-designated 
centres. Peterborough Council for Voluntary Services has been commissioned by the council to 
support emerging parent groups set up their own organisations and use the space in the de-
designated centres to deliver programmes to parents and families in the immediate community. 
 
The Early Years team in the Communities Directorate has been commissioned to deliver the 
early childhood development sessions. This will guarantee high quality delivery by a 
professional who is trained to Level 4 or above in early childhood development. 
 
In addition, City College Peterborough are using their Community Learning funding to work with 
interested groups of parents from the de-designated centres to run family learning activities and 
to develop a network of family learning champions. 
 
Contract variation discussions have taken place, and new contracts have been signed, with 
both Spurgeons and Barnardos, the city’s contracted providers for the remaining children’s 
centres. Both contracts identify clearly the expected outcomes in terms of supporting vulnerable 
families and communities within their designated reach areas. 
 

5. KEY ISSUES 
 

5.1 Initial concerns voiced by parents during the consultation period around continuing to access 
early years’ services locally have been mitigated through the securing of appropriate tenancy 
agreements for the de-designated centres. These tenancy agreements with identified tenants 
will secure the delivery of the core entitlement offer as identified above from each of the de-
designated centres. 
 

5.2 In the short term, because of timescales, Eye Children’s Centre will continue to be managed by 
the council. It is likely, however, that a suitable tenant will be secured for this building in the 
near future. 

5.3 Discussions with midwifery and health visiting services are continuing in respect of: 
 

• Securing access to the de-designated buildings for 52 weeks of the year where needed; 

• The management of new birth registration data and the use of E Start the children’s 

20



centre information management system; 

• Arrangements in relation to the lone working of health staff in the de-designated 
buildings; 

• The IT and telecommunications support required by both midwives and health visitors. 
 

6. CONSULTATION 
 

6.1 Officers have met with the users of each of the de-designated centres and have informed them, 
in principle, of the name of the proposed organisation assuming the tenancy of the building. 
 
In addition, meetings have taken place with groups of parents in Hampton and with the Save 
Peterborough’s Children’s Centres Action Group. 
 
Peterborough Centre for Voluntary Services will shortly be meeting with parents in the 
communities served by the de-designated centres to provide information and support in relation 
to establishing parent led groups within the area. 
 

7. NEXT STEPS 
 
Ensure communication strategy is in place and that parents in the community have access to 
information in relation to what is being delivered from each of the de-designated centres. 
 
Ensure effective arrangements are in place to maintain the opening of the de-designated 
centres during the summer holiday period. 
 
Secure all contractual/lease/community use arrangements with the incoming anchor tenants in 
preparation for full delivery in September 2014. 
 

 
8. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

 
8.1 None 

 
9. APPENDICES 

 

9.1 Appendix 1 - De-designated centres 
 
 
 

  

21



22

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 

 1 

De-designated Children’s Centres in Peterborough 

 

1. Background 
 
In order to achieve the required financial savings in Children’s Services as identified 
in the Medium Term Financial Plan, Cabinet agreed to the de-designation of 8 
children’s centres (9 buildings as Thorney and Eye is designated as one children’s 
centre but consists of two buildings) across Peterborough and for the delivery of 
children’s centre services through children’s centre hubs and outreach centres in 
each locality. 
 
Cabinet also agreed that the de-designated centres would continue to provide the 
following universal core entitlement of activities and that funding would be set aside 
to resource these activities: 
 

• Access to health visiting and midwifery services; 

• One session per week of early childhood development activity facilitated by  
 an early childhood development practitioner; 

• Support for mothers with ‘low mood’ or who are at risk of post natal 
  depression; 

• Access to the facilities within the de-designated buildings for parent-led 
  groups. 

 
Based on a detailed needs analysis linked to the indices of deprivation as they 
impact on children’s welfare and wellbeing, as well as the density and extent of need 
in certain areas of Peterborough, it was agreed by Cabinet to de-designate the 
following children’s centres. Cabinet also agreed to find alternative tenants/providers 
to run the buildings (with the tenant/provider guaranteeing community access to the 
Cabinet-agreed universal core entitlement of services) and to focus remaining 
financial resources in the areas of greatest need.  
 

Children’s Centre Current Provider Locality 

Wittering Independent (School) North West and Rural 

Werrington Independent (School) North West and Rural 

Caverstede Independent (School) North West and Rural 

Thorney Spurgeons North West and Rural 

Eye Spurgeons North West and Rural 

Westwood and 
Ravensthorpe (Highlees) 

Spurgeons North West and Rural 

Stanground Spurgeons South 

Brewster Avenue Spurgeons South 

Hampton Spurgeons South 

 
2. De-designated Children’s Centre Buildings 
 
Of the nine children’s centre buildings to be de-designated, five are within an existing 
school or attached to a school, three are located close to an existing primary school 
and one stands alone. 
 
The resources of Caverstede children’s centre are fully integrated with that of the 
nursery and could therefore not be de-coupled from that delivery. 
Although Stanground children’s centre is part of a school building, accessibility by the 
school is restricted. In addition, the building itself is very small and offers limited 
alternative usage. 

23



Appendix 1 

 2 

The Department for Education’s conditions for the Sure Start capital grant 
emphasises that to ensure that there is no capital claw back any future use of the de-
designated centres must be linked to early childhood provision. 
 
Thus the buildings can only be used, predominately, for the delivery of early 
childhood activity during the period of normal opening hours. Outside of these hours, 
the facilities can be used by any appropriate group or organisation to run, or deliver, 
activities for the community. It is via this route that any future tenant will be able to 
generate a small amount of income in order to subsidise the running costs of the 
building. 
 
The types of early childhood activity that would deem to be acceptable by the 
Department for Education would be as follows: 
 

• Childcare and pre-school activities 

• Early childhood development activities such as ‘messy play’ and singing  

• Midwifery services 

• Health visiting services 

• Family support activity 

• Support groups for new mothers  

• Specialist support groups for parents/carers e.g. parents of twins 
 
Running costs 
 
In the situation where a school takes over the running of the de-designated children’s 
centre buildings and the buildings form part of the fabric/envelope of the school site, 
the full maintenance costs of the running of the facilities will fall to the school. In 
identifying the future anchor/lead tenant for these facilities, the ability of the tenant to 
sustain the financial responsibility of running the building, as well as, keeping it open 
for the community, will be a major consideration. 
 
Where a de-designated children’s centre stands outside of the school site, elements 
of the financial responsibility for the ongoing maintenance of the building will form 
part of the landlord’s statutory responsibilities in respect of maintaining a building in 
line with health and safety regulations- such as the statutory testing of electrical 
equipment. 
 
3. The future role of primary schools in the delivery of early years’ 

services 
 
Many primary school headteachers are developing a vision for their school which 
encompasses the delivery of family support services and activities – e.g healthy 
living programmes -  for families with children from 0 to 11. This is predicated on 
developing effective partnerships with health services, the pre-school sector, 
deliverers of family learning activities and early childhood development practitioners. 
 
It can therefore be concluded that securing primary schools as anchor tenants for the 
de-designated children’s centre buildings secures: 
 

• The continuation of the local community’s access to midwifery and health 
   visiting services; 

 

• Provides enhanced resources for the delivery of parenting support 
   programmes and similar activities for the most vulnerable of families; 

24



Appendix 1 

 3 

• Supports the opportunity for primary schools to work in closer partnership 
  with pre -school and early years childcare providers in order to improve end    
  of foundation stage outcomes for children and transition from pre-school to    
  reception class; 

 

• Ensures that the buildings remain open for the use of the community and for 
        parent led activities; 

 

• Shifts the financial responsibility for the delivery of these services and the 
  maintenance of the buildings from the local authority to the schools; 

 

• Offers a financially sustainable model for the future delivery of early years  
  services in the community. 

 
Many of the children’s centre buildings in Peterborough are located within, or close 
to, existing primary school buildings. 
 
It is the primary sector that in recent years has seen a growth in funding directly 
linked to the pupil premium. From September the pupil premium for eligible children 
in primary schools goes up to over £1,000 per student. The pupil premium is ‘ring 
fenced’ money that the school is expected to use to tackle the barriers to learning. 
These barriers could relate to low attainment on entry, specific learning difficulties, 
the impact of poor parenting or social and emotional/behavioural issues. In addition, 
the government has just announced that there will be a Pupil Premium targeted at 
the under 5s. 
 
Many primary school headteachers are recognising that in order to tackle some of 
the barriers to children’s progress mentioned above they have to work with the family 
rather than the child in isolation. In addition, they see that engaging with the family 
before the child enters primary school provides a more effective route to working with 
the family to address issues such as poor parenting and low aspirations.  
 
Headteachers who have a high proportion of vulnerable families within their school 
catchment area are increasingly seeing the importance of engaging with the children 
of these families from birth onwards (see article The Independent ‘Open All Hours’ by 
Sarah Cassidy, Thursday 5 June 2014) and that working with midwifery and health 
visiting services offers a way of doing this. 
 
In addition, primary school headteachers are seeing the importance of extending 
their influence and teaching and learning expertise to the pre-school sector. They are 
either embarking on delivering/commissioning their own pre-school services or 
developing more productive partnership arrangements with the sector. They see that 
engaging in this phase of learning will eventually secure better learning outcomes for 
children at every stage of their schooling. 
 
4. Future tenancy arrangements 
 
The agreements/tenancy arrangements with the future anchor tenants will depend on 
a) the de-designated building being maintained and b) the organisation offering to 
take on the management of the buildings. 
 
Where a school is the proposed anchor tenant and takes over the complete running 
and responsibility for the de-designated children’s centre facilities, a community use 
agreement will be signed by the school with the council. This community use 

25



Appendix 1 

 4 

agreement will ensure that the core offer of universal childhood support activities 
funded by the council will have priority in accessing the building.  
 
Where the anchor tenant is not a school then the transfer arrangements will be 
through a landlord/tenant lease agreement. 
 

Centre Arrangement 
with the 
Council 

Wittering Community use 
Agreement 

Werrington Community use 
Agreement 

Caverstede Community use 
Agreement 

Thorney Community use 
Agreement 

Eye To be 
determined at a 
future date but 
likely, in the 
short term, to 
be individual 
arrangements 
with providers 

Highlees Lease 
agreement as 
Highlees school 
functions as an 
academy. 

Stanground Responsibility 
remains with 
the council 

Brewster 
Avenue 

Community use 
agreement 

Hampton Formal lease 
arrangements 

 
It is in the council’s interest, wherever possible, to support schools to become the 
anchor tenant as, a) the maintenance costs can be subsumed within the overall 
school budget and b) there is a guaranteed year on year revenue stream to cover 
costs. 
 
5. Criteria for evaluation of options 
 
Taking the above into account, the following criteria has been used to identify the 
most appropriate anchor tenant for the de-designated centres in the future: 
 

• The future financial sustainability of the organisation 

• The nature of the organisation – i.e. charitable status, or public sector facing 

• A commitment to early years activity and family engagement 

 

 

 

26



Appendix 1 

 5 

6. Future Tenancy Arrangements 
 
Centre: Thorney (designated as Thorney and Eye Children’s Centre) 
 
Tenancy: 
 
Discussions are taking place with  The Duke of Bedford Primary School in 
Thorney with the view to them assuming the financial responsibility for the children’s 
centre building towards the end of this year. They will then become the anchor 
tenant. 
 
The costs to the school of maintaining the building will supported by the rental 
income from the pre-school which will move from the Social Centre in Thorney to the 
children’s centre space. 
 
Benefits: 
 
The school will have a closer working relationship with the pre-school which will a) 
secure the sustainability of the pre-school and b) improve the transition 
arrangements from pre-school to reception. 
 
No future costs to the council in respect of building maintenance. 
 
Risks: 
 
Space in the Thorney children’s centre building is limited so with the pre-school 
operating out of the building it is likely that the core offer for the community will have 
to be delivered from another community building – possibly from the Tank Yard. 
 
Discussions with Thorney Parish Council have been very positive and it is likely that 
access to alternative space for delivery will not prove a problem. 
 
However, additional costs might be incurred in order to rent alternative space from 
the parish council. 
 
Centre: Eye (designated as Thorney and Eye Children’s Centre) 
 
Tenancy: 
 
Peterborough City Council to retain management of the building until an anchor 
tenant can be found. 
 
The costs of running the building to be offset by the following rental income: 

• Pre-school contribution= £3,066 

• After School Club= £2,318 

• Potential rental to identified external group = £6,500 

• Potential rental of space to Eye Primary School – income as yet unknown. 
 
The above would give a potential revenue stream of in excess £11,884 
 
Benefits: 
 
The buildings will remain open and in use with the exiting providers confident that the 
building will be maintained. 

27



Appendix 1 

 6 

 
In addition, there is potential for a new organisation to be based there delivering a 
range of targeted support activities to vulnerable families with children with additional 
needs and thus being able to extend the provision currently being offered through 
portage and by Caverstede. 
 
With the council running the centre in the short term, there will time for a) the 
potential operators using the centre to develop the confidence to become an anchor 
tenant, or b) a new anchor tenant to be found. 
 
Risks: 
 
The council will have to bear the financial risks of potentially not securing an anchor 
tenant for the long term. 
 
The current running costs for the Eye buildings total £26,234.35. Income is estimated 
to be slightly over £11,884.00 that consequently leaves a shortfall of £14,350.35. 
 
A new organisation has expressed strong interest in renting space and is prepared to 
pay a rent of £6,500.00 for the facilities they require. However, they have yet to 
confirm these arrangements and have limited experience of running services with an 
unproven track record. If this organisation ceased trading then the additional costs 
would fall to the council. 
 
Centre: Wittering 
 
Tenancy: 
 
Wittering Primary School to continue to run the building as a centre for early years 
support and activity. 
 
The focus on supporting young families based at RAF Wittering will mean that the 
funding they have received from the Military Covenant Fund can legitimately be used 
to sustain the early years activity 
 
Benefits: 
 
The school will continue to provide support activities for families that need access to 
early years professionals. 
 
No future costs to the council. 
 
Risks: 
 
Not a long-term solution. The school will have to apply now for financial support from 
the Military Covenant Fund if they want to continue operating in the financial year 
2015/2016. 
 
The school will have to seek out alternative sources of income – i.e. rental 
arrangements and charging policies if services are to continue in the future. 
 
 
 
 
 

28



Appendix 1 

 7 

Centre: Werrington 
 
Tenancy: 
 
Welbourne Primary School to have control over the building and become the 
anchor tenant. In doing so they will use some of the children’s centre space to extend 
the school, locating the reception class in the building.  
 
The full cost of maintaining the building will be the responsibility of the school and 
these costs will be supported by rental income from: 
 

• The pre-school provider that operates from the building; 

• Peterborough Learning Partnership having Werrington as their 
administration and, potentially, their delivery base; 

• Ad hoc rental income from organisations that want to use the space. 
 
Benefits: 
 
The costs of running the building will become the responsibility of the school. 
 
The co-location of the reception class next to the pre-school will improve transition 
arrangements and will have a positive impact on outcomes. 
 
Peterborough Learning Partnership (PLP) will be based in the building which will 
mean that there will be a constant presence in the centre and will militate against 
issues with health services around ‘lone working’ arrangements. 
PLP has also suggested that they will want to deliver some training programmes 
from the building.  
 
No future costs to the council. 
 
Risks: 
 
It is unlikely that the school will embrace additional early years activity to that already 
offered via the pre-school. This will mean that the community will only have access to 
the core offer of: 
 
1. Health visitor led groups 
2. Midwifery support 
3. The funded one session per week of early childhood development activity 
4. The extension to the Peterborough Fenland Mind Connecting Mums programme 
that offers support to mothers who are at risk of post natal depression 
 
Centre: Caverstede 
 
Tenancy: 
 
Caverstede Nursery School to assume for responsibility for the full costs 
associated with the continued running of the children’s centre resource. 
The school will receive additional funding from the Direct Schools’ Grant. This will 
help their overall budget situation which will, in turn, give them the financial resources 
to continue the delivery of early years support and early childhood developmental 
activities to the community.  
 
Benefits: 

29



Appendix 1 

 8 

 
In Caverstede the nursery and children’s centre activities are fully integrated. 
 
Additional funding to the school has allowed them to retain some early years 
professionals who will continue to offer programmes to the community. 
 
The expertise located in the school will also be used to a) support the growing 
population of very young children with additional needs and b) to support other early 
years settings in developing their skills and capacity to work with vulnerable children. 
 
No future costs to the council. 
 
Risks: 
 
Due to the previous success of the children’s centre, there is a high expectation 
within Caverstede’s immediate community and across the city,that the centre will 
continue to offer the same level of support as before. Although the school will offer a 
wide range of activities in the future, this, in comparison, will be a reduction in what 
was previously provided as a children’s centre. Parents will gain access to support 
based on need, which will inevitably reduce significantly the universal/open access 
offer. It is likely that parents will have to be placed on a waiting list for the most 
popular sessions. 
 
Centre: Westwood and Ravensthorpe (Highlees) 
 
Tenancy: 
 
Highlees Academy to take financial responsibility for the running of the building and 
to be the anchor tenant. 
 
The academy will work in partnership with the head of Ravensthorpe Primary 
School to develop a range of joint family support activities to be delivered from the 
building. 
 
Benefits: 
 
In addition to the entitlement, high quality family support work will be delivered from 
the centre. 
 
There will be a focus on those families where there might be child protection issues 
and where the children are having difficulty in making the transition to statutory 
education. 
 
There will be a focus on the whole family rather than on children under the age of 5. 
 
No financial cost to the council. 
 
Risks: 
 
The academy will use the space to deliver on their priorities. In doing so they will 
have less of a commitment to support parent-led groups and other associated 
organisations to deliver from the buildings. 
 
Parents in the community will receive the offer of: 
1. Health visitor led groups 

30



Appendix 1 

 9 

2. Midwifery support 
3. The funded one session per week of early childhood development activity 
4. The extension to the Peterborough Fenland Mind Connecting Mums programme. 
 
Centre: Stanground 
 
Tenancy: 
 
Peterborough City Council to retain responsibility for the maintenance and overall 
management of the building. 
 
The centre will house the portage service (portage is a service that works with 
families of children from 0-5 who have additional needs). The costs associated with 
this will come from the early years budget. 
 
The portage staff will be based in the centre and will also deliver some support 
sessions to parents and groups from the centre building. 
 
The core entitlement will also be delivered from the centre. 
 
Benefits: 
 
Services will continue to operate from the building. 
 
Parents will have access to the core entitlement sessions from the building. 
 
Issues regarding lone working in connection with health visitors and midwives will be 
mitigated by Portage being permanently located in the building. 
 
Risks: 
 
Stanground children’s centre is one of the smallest children’s centre buildings in the 
city and is therefore the least flexible. 
 
The delivery of portage services as well as the core offer will have to be carefully 
scheduled in order to ensure that there is no disadvantage to either the portage team 
or to the regular delivery of the core services, particularly where it involves health 
visiting and midwifery staff. 
 
The council will still be responsible for the costs of the building in the future. 
 
Centre: Brewster Avenue 
 
Tenancy: 
 
Brewster Avenue Primary School to take over the control of the building and 
become the anchor tenant responsible for the maintenance and running costs in the 
future. 
 
The centre will continue to support the after school club – Planet X - to operate from 
the building. 
 
Benefits: 
 

31



Appendix 1 

 10 

The headteacher and governors of the school support a future vision for the school 
that is centred on the delivery of services from birth to 7 for the community. They see 
the acquisition of the children’s centre space as a vehicle for achieving this vision. 
Through delivering such services they are convinced that attainment and outcomes 
will improve. 
 
The school is very keen to work with the community to ensure that what is offered 
from the centre meets the needs of the families currently using the facilities. They will 
support both the core offer and any parent-led groups that might wish to use the 
facilities. 
 
Risks: 
 
Expectations from the community are high 
 
There is a risk that the menu of activities delivered by the school might not meet 
parental expectations or demand. 
 
Centre: Hampton 
 
Tenancy: 
 
For the charity Family Action to become lead tenant and take over the running and 
maintenance of the facilities. 
 
Family Action was the organisation that originally ran the children’s centre prior to the 
commissioning of Spurgeons. 
 
Family Action currently offers childcare in Hampton and across Peterborough. 
 
Benefits: 
 
The charity will use the facilities to extend its childcare places through opening a 
suite for two-year-olds. This resource will go some way to meeting the increasing 
demand for childcare in the area of Hampton. 
 
It will ensure that the core offer is delivered from the building but, in addition, will a) 
provide support for parents to set up their own activities for children aged 0  to 5, b) 
provide a level of support or signposting for local families and c) provide affordable 
space/rooms for hire during weekdays and evenings to appropriate groups. 
 
No future costs to the council with the exception being in relation to landlord’s 
statutory responsibilities. 
 
Risks: 
 
The buildings will have to be financially self-sustaining. Consequently, Family Action 
may make decisions on the use of the facilities based on the potential rental income. 
This could have an impact on the ability of parent-led groups to access the facilities. 
 
The council will still retain the financial responsibilities of a landlord. 
 
 
 
 

32



Appendix 1 

 11 

7. The financial business case 

 

 
 
The above table shows the financial impact to the council following the transfer of the 
9 de-designated children’s centres to the external providers. The remaining savings, 
as identified from the re-organisation of children’s centres will be achieved through 
redesigning the delivery of the remaining children’s centres.   
 

8. Finally 
 
Finally, with the range of tenants identified above and in order to retain a sense of 
coordinated delivery across the city in respect of the core offer provided, it is 
proposed that the facilities be re-named children and family centres. 
 
 

De-designated 
centre name  

Current cost to the 
council for running 
centre/building   

Proposed cost to 
the council for 
running the 
centre/building 

Benefit to the 
council 
following 
transfer 

Wittering  £60,000 £0 £60,000 

Werrington  £87,362 £0 £87,362 

Caverstede £145,600 £0 £145,600 

Westwood  £175,590 £0 £175,590 

Hampton  £126,000 £0 £126,000 

Thorney £0 

Eye  

£95,468 operated as a 
single children’s 
centre 

£24,500 

£70,968 

Brewster Avenue £114,000 £0 £114,000 

Stanground  £114,000 £10,000 £104,000 

  Total: £34,500 £883,520 

33



34

This page is intentionally left blank



CREATING OPPORTUNITIES AND TACKLING 
INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 6 

14 JULY 2014 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Executive Director of Children’s Services 
 
Contact Officer(s) – Jonathan Lewis 
Contact Details - Tel:  01733 863912 email: jonathan.lewis@peterborough.gov.uk 
 

IMPLEMENTATIONS OF OFSTED SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT INSPECTION ACTION 
PLAN 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 
1.1 

 
The purpose of this report is for the Committee to review the proposed action plan arising from 
the Ofsted Inspection of Local Authority School Improvement Inspection undertaken in 
February.   
  

2. 
 
2.1 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Committee reviews and agrees the action plan and that an update report on progress 
is brought to the committee early in 2015.   
 

3. BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 On the 3rd February 2014, a team of 3 inspectors from Ofsted reviewed our arrangements for 
school improvement. The inspection lasted 5 days. The inspection of a local authority provides 
an independent external evaluation of how well it carries out its statutory duties in relation to 
promoting high standards in schools and among other providers so that children and young 
people achieve well and fulfil their potential as defined by the Education Act 1996 (all schools  
including academies). 

  
3.2 The authority was graded as being ‘effective’ and is only the second authority out of eleven in 

the England to date to receive this outcome.  Although not required as part of the Ofsted 

framework, we have decided to develop an action plan to address the ‘areas of improvement’ 

identified in the report.   

  
3.3 The areas identified for improvement were –  

 
“To improve achievement and ensure that all pupils in Peterborough attend a good or better 
school, the local authority should:  
 

1. Clarify milestones and targets in strategic plans and specify how each school will 
contribute to raising standards for all children and young people; 

 
2.  Focus relentlessly on supporting and challenging schools to improve outcomes for 

pupils who speak English as an additional language and those supported through pupil 
premium funding; 

 
3.  Embed high quality school-to-school partnership in order to promote the sharing of 

good practice and increase the autonomy of primary schools; and 
 

4.  Improve information, advice and guidance in schools and broaden the provision of 
work-based learning opportunities so that young people succeed along their education 
and training pathways.” 

35



4. KEY ISSUES 
  
4.1 Attached in appendix 1 is the proposed action plan to address the areas identified in the 

inspection.  We have also added two other areas where we wish to continue focus improvement 
activity.  The plan closely follows the prescribed / recommended format used by Ofsted in 
schools and provides detailed milestones on delivery.  A number of these actions have already 
been completed.   

  
4.2 Following the inspection of school improvement arrangements, the council received a 5 day 

review of the effectiveness of education and training provision for 16-19 year olds, particularly 
the most vulnerable young people.  The inspection was positive and we are awaiting the final 
outcome letter which is expected imminently.  As this review overlapped with action point 4, we 
will finalise the action in this area to coincide with the published review findings and 
recommendations.  There was no grade or judgement for this review but a formal letter will be 
published on the Ofsted website.   

  
5. IMPLICATIONS 

 
5.1 The action plan will be discussed in the quarterly meeting between officers and our regional 

Senior HMI, Tim Bristow.   
 

6. CONSULTATION 
 

6.1 This is an internal document but previous iterations have been shared with Headteachers and 
progress will be shared with them on an ongoing basis.   
 

7. NEXT STEPS 
 

7.1 It is proposed an update report is brought to the committee in early 2015 for review on 
progress. 
 

8. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) 
Act 1985 
 

8.1 None 
 

9. APPENDICES 
 

9.1 Appendix 1 – OfSTED Inspection of Arrangements to Support School Improvement Action Plan 
 

 

36



A
P

P
E
N

D
IX

 1
 

 

 
 

 

 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 D

iv
is

io
n
  

  

O
fS

T
E
D

 I
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
A

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

 

P
o
s
t-

In
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
4
 

37



 
 

O
fS

T
E
D

 I
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
A

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

D
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 w

e
e
k
 o

f 
3

rd
 –

 7
th
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
4
, 
a
 t
e
a
m

 o
f 
H

M
I 
u
n
d
e
rt
o
o
k
 a

n
 o

n
-s

it
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P
e
te

rb
o
ro

u
g
h
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
in

g
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t,
 u

n
d
e
r 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 1

3
6
)1

) 
(b

) 
o
f 
th

e
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 I
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 A

c
t 
2
0
0
6
. 

A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

is
 o

n
-s

it
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
, 
th

e
 j
u
d
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 t
e
a
m

 w
a
s
 t
h
a
t:
 

 “T
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
re

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
.”

 
 A
s
 
p
a
rt
 
o
f 

th
e
 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
, 

th
e
 
in

s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 
te

a
m

 
a
ls

o
 
m

a
d
e
 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 
a
s
 
to

 
h
o
w

 
th

e
s
e
 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
c
a
n
 
b
e
 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
. 

 
T
h
e
s
e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 t
h
a
t:
 

 “T
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
p
u
p
ils
 i
n
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 a
tt
e
n
d
 a
 g
o
o
d
 o
r 
b
e
tt
e
r 
s
c
h
o
o
l,
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 s
h
o
u
ld
: 
 

 
1
. 
C
la
ri
fy
 m

ile
s
to
n
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 i
n
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
la
n
s
 a
n
d
 s
p
e
c
if
y
 h
o
w
 e
a
c
h
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
w
ill
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 r
a
is
in
g
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
; 

 
2
. 
 F
o
c
u
s
 r
e
le
n
tl
e
s
s
ly
 o
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
p
u
p
ils
 w
h
o
 s
p
e
a
k
 E
n
g
lis
h
 a
s
 a
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
la
n
g
u
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 

th
o
s
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 p
u
p
il 
p
re
m
iu
m
 f
u
n
d
in
g
; 

 
3
. 
 E
m
b
e
d
 h
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
 s
c
h
o
o
l-
to
-s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 i
n
 
o
rd
e
r 
to
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
 s
h
a
ri
n
g
 o
f 
g
o
o
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 a
u
to
n
o
m
y
 o
f 
p
ri
m
a
ry
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
; 
a
n
d
 

 
4
. 
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 
a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 b
ro
a
d
e
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
w
o
rk
-b
a
s
e
d
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

s
u
c
c
e
e
d
 a
lo
n
g
 t
h
e
ir
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 p
a
th
w
a
y
s
.”
 

 In
 
a
d
d
it
io

n
, 

w
e
 
in

te
n
d
 
to

 
a
ls

o
 
fo

c
u
s
 
u
p
o
n
 
th

e
 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 
w

e
 
b
e
lie

v
e
 
w

ill
 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

s
tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
 
o
u
r 

ro
le

 
in

 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
, 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 
a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
in

g
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t:
 

 
5
. 
S
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
 a
n
d
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 r
o
le
 o
f 
e
le
c
te
d
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 b
y
: 

 

•
 
e
x
te
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
e
p
e
n
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 a
n
d
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
s
 f
a
c
in
g
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 i
n
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
; 

•
 
e
x
te
n
d
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
d
e
e
p
e
n
in
g
 
th
e
ir
 
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 
a
n
d
 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 
o
f 
th
e
 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 
o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 
in
 
re
la
ti
o
n
 
to
 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 
lo
c
a
l 

c
o
m
p
a
ra
to
rs
; 

•
 
e
x
te
n
d
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
s
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
in
g
 
th
e
ir
 
a
b
ili
ty
 
to
 
s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 
a
n
d
 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 
th
e
 
w
o
rk
 
o
f 
th
e
 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
te
a
m
 
a
n
d
 
o
th
e
r 

c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
n
g
 t
e
a
m
s
. 

 
6
. 
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
 
o
v
e
ra
ll 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 
in
 
p
ri
m
a
ry
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
re
d
u
c
e
 
ra
te
s
 
o
f 
p
e
rs
is
te
n
t 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
re
d
u
c
e
 
ra
te
s
 
o
f 
fi
x
e
d
-t
e
rm

 
a
n
d
 

p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
  
e
x
c
lu
s
io
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
e
lc

o
m

e
s
 t
h
e
s
e
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

s
 a

n
 i
m

p
o
rt
a
n
t 
p
a
rt
 o

f 
o
u
r 
fu

tu
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 p

a
g
e
s
 o

v
e
rl
e
a
f 
o
u
tl
in

e
 o

u
r 
p
la

n
s
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 b

ri
n
g
 a

b
o
u
t 
fu

rt
h
e
r 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
s
e
 a

re
a
s
. 
T
h
e
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

d
 a

n
d
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
e
d
 o

n
 a

n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
b
a
s
is

. 

38



  
G

lo
s
s
a
ry

 o
f 
A

c
ro

n
y
m

s
: 

  D
C

S
 

 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
C

h
il
d
re

n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

L
C

M
 

 
L
e
a
d
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
M

e
m

b
e
r 

 A
D

 
 

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
(C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 a

n
d
 C

h
il
d
re

n
’s

 R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
) 

 
H

o
S
I 

 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
S
c
h
o
o
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

 D
M

T
 

 
D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ta

l 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
T
e
a
m

 (
C

h
il
d
re

n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
) 
 

 
 

H
o
E
G

 
 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
E
q
u
a
li
ty

 a
n
d
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

 S
IS

  
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
2
S
S
 

 
S
c
h
o
o
l-
to

-S
c
h
o
o
l 
S
u
p
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

P
S
IS

N
  

P
e
te

rb
o
ro

u
g
h
 S

e
lf
-I
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 
 

 
 

 
S
IB

 
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
B

o
a
rd

  
 

 
 E

Y
F
S
 
 

E
a
rl

y
 Y

e
a
rs

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g
e
 –

 R
e
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 Y

e
a
r 

(a
g
e
 5

)  
 

 
K

S
1
 

 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 1

 (
Y
e
a
r 
2
 -
 a

g
e
 7

)  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

K
S
2
 

 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 (
Y
e
a
r 
6
 -
 a

g
e
 1

1
) 

 
 

 
 

 
 

K
S
4
 

 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 4

 (
Y
e
a
r 
1
1
 -
 a

g
e
 1

6
) 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

S
A

O
s
 
 

S
e
n
io

r 
A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
O

A
 

 
O

v
e
ra

ll
 A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

P
A

 
 

P
e
rs

is
te

n
t 
A

b
s
e
n
c
e
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
E

A
L
 

 
E
n
g
li
s
h
 a

s
 a

n
 A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
o
W

B
  

A
n
y
 O

th
e
r 
W

h
it
e
 B

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
H

 
 

P
a
k
is

ta
n
i 
H

e
ri
ta

g
e
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

F
S
M

 
 

F
re

e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
M

e
a
ls

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
P
P
G

 
 

P
u
p
il
 P

re
m

iu
m

 G
ra

n
t 

 
 

 
 N

E
E
T
 
 

N
o
t 
in

 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

T
ra

in
in

g
 

 
 

 
 

C
P
D

 
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

 R
T
R

 
 

R
o
u
n
d
 T

a
b
le

 R
e
v
ie

w
 (
S
c
h
o
o
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
T
e
a
m

 t
e
rm

ly
 c

a
te

g
o
ri

s
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

) 
 IA

G
 

 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 
a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 (
K

S
3
, 
K

S
4
 a

n
d
 p

o
s
t-
1
6
 l
e
a
rn

e
rs

) 
   In

  
th

e
 “
E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
” 
c
o
lu

m
n
, 
th

e
 c

o
lo

u
r 
ra

ti
n
g
s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

: 
 D

a
rk

 G
re

e
n
  

=
  

A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

L
ig

h
t 
G

re
e
n
  

=
  

O
n
 T

ra
c
k
 t
o
 b

e
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

A
m

b
e
r 

 
=
  

W
il
l 
b
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 b

u
t 
n
o
t 
w

it
h
in

 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

 
R

e
d
  

 
=
  

N
o
t 
li
k
e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

   

39



 A
c
ti
o
n
 1

: 
  

 C
la
ri
fy
 m
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 i
n
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
la
n
s
 a
n
d
 s
p
e
c
if
y
 h
o
w
 e
a
c
h
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
w
il
l 
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 r
a
is
in
g
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 f
o
r 
a
ll
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
. 
 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

O
ff
ic

e
r 

D
e
a
d
lin

e
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 C

ri
te

ri
a
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 A

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

D
a
te

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

1
A

.1
  

 R
e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 S

IS
 t
o
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 
s
tr
e
n
g
th

s
 t
o
 b

e
 r
e
ta

in
e
d
. 

H
o
S
I 

A
D

 
2
8
th

 J
u
ly

 
2
0
1
4
 

•
 

S
IS

 r
e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 

e
v
a
lu

a
te

d
 

•
 

S
tr
e
n
g
th

s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 

•
 

L
C

M
 a

n
d
 D

C
S
 t
o
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 f
ro

m
 A

D
/H

o
S

I 

 
 

1
A

.2
  

 E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 g
a
p
s
 

to
 b

e
 f
ill
e
d
 /
 a

d
d
it
io

n
s
 t
o
 b

e
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 a

c
tu

a
l 
a
n
d
 

p
re

d
ic

te
d
 “
O

v
e
ra

ll 
E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
” 
ju

d
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 b
y
 O

fS
T
E
D

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

L
A
, 
to

 b
e
 u

s
e
d
 a

s
 m

ile
s
to

n
e
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
. 

H
o
S
I 

A
D

 
2
8
th

 J
u
ly

 
2
0
1
4
 

•
 

S
IS

 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
 

&
 

e
v
a
lu

a
te

d
 

•
 

G
a
p
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

•
 

A
d
d
it
io

n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

•
 

L
C

M
 a

n
d
 D

C
S
 t
o
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 f
ro

m
 A

D
/H

o
S

I 

 
 

1
A

.3
  

 In
c
lu

d
e
 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 t
o
 a

n
d
 

e
x
p
la

n
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 f
o
rm

a
l 

a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 “
P
e
te

rb
o
ro

u
g
h
 

S
e
lf
-I
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 
N

e
tw

o
rk

” 
(P

S
IS

N
),
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

ll 
d
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
S
c
h
o
o
l 
to

 S
c
h
o
o
l 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 (
S

2
S

S
) 
A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
a
n
d
 D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

s
 a

n
 

a
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 (
to

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 o

f 
a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 i
n
 

P
e
te

rb
o
ro

u
g
h
).
 

H
o
S
I 

A
D

 
1
1
th

 
A
u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

P
S
IS

N
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

e
x
p
la

in
e
d
 a

n
d
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 

w
it
h
in

 S
IS

 

•
 

L
C

M
 a

n
d
 D

C
S
 t
o
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 f
ro

m
 A

D
/H

o
S

I 

 
 

1
A

.4
  

 R
e
w

ri
te

 S
IS

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
. 

H
o
S
I 

A
D

 
5
th

 S
e
p
t 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

S
IS

 
re

w
ri
tt
e
n
 
a
n
d
 
re

a
d
y
 

fo
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 

A
D

 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 f
ro

m
 

H
o
S
I 
a
n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
 

•
 

L
C

M
,D

C
S
, 
D

M
T
, 
S
IB

 
to

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 a

n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 

 
 

1
A

  
 R

e
fr

e
s
h
 t
h
e
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 (
S
IS

) 
a
n
d
 p

u
b
li
s
h
 

to
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 b
y
 

3
0
/0

9
/1

4
. 

1
A

.5
  

 P
u
b
lis

h
 S

IS
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
o
ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n
d
 e

le
c
te

d
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

. 

H
o
S
I 

1
2
th

 S
e
p
t 

2
0
1
4
 

R
e
tu

rn
 b

y
 

2
2

n
d
 S

e
p
t 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 u

n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

–
 D

M
T
, 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
o
ff
ic

e
rs

, 
e
le

c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 
(s

c
ru

ti
n
y
) 

•
 

A
D

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 –

 r
e
p
o
rt
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 f
ro

m
 H

o
S
I 

 
 

40



 1
A

.6
 

 P
u
b
lis

h
 S

IS
 a

s
 f
in

a
l 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t.
 

 

H
o
S
I 

2
9
th

 S
e
p
t 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

F
in

a
l 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 

•
 

D
C

S
, 
D

M
T
, 
L
C

M
, 
A
D

, 
S
IB

 a
n
d
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 

fi
n
a
l 
c
o
p
y
 

 
 

 

1
B

.1
  

 R
e
v
ie

w
 w

it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

o
th

e
rs

, 
a
n
d
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
 w

h
e
re

 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

, 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

s
e
tt
in

g
 a

n
d
 r
e
c
o
rd

in
g
 

p
re

d
ic

ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 i
n
 

2
0
1
5
 a

t 
K
S

1
, 
2
 a

n
d
 4

 t
o
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 c

o
h
o
rt
s
 a

n
d
 a

ll 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 g
ro

u
p
s
 (
B
o
y
s
, 

G
ir
ls

, 
E

A
L
 g

ro
u
p
s
 e

s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 

W
B
, 
A
o
W

B
, 
P
H

, 
H

ig
h
e
r 

A
tt
a
in

e
rs

, 
F
S
M

, 
S

E
N

).
 

H
o
S
I 

2
2
n
d
 S

e
p
t 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

P
re

d
ic

ti
o
n
-s

e
tt
in

g
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
, 

d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 

u
p
o
n
 

•
 

P
ro

c
e
s
s
 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 

fo
rm

a
l 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

•
 

A
D

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

H
o
S
I 
h
a
s
 c

ir
c
u
la

te
d
 

re
fr
e
s
h
e
d
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

•
 

L
C

M
, 
D

C
S
, 
D

M
T
, 
S
IB

 
a
n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
 

re
fr
e
s
h
e
d
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

 
 

1
B

.2
  

 R
e
v
ie

w
 w

it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

o
th

e
rs

, 
a
n
d
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
 w

h
e
re

 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

, 
th

e
 p

ro
fo

rm
a
s
 f
o
r 

s
e
tt
in

g
 a

n
d
 r
e
c
o
rd

in
g
 

p
re

d
ic

ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 i
n
 

2
0
1
5
 a

t 
K
S

1
, 
K
S

2
 a

n
d
 K

S
4
, 
to

 
in

c
lu

d
e
 c

o
h
o
rt
s
 a

n
d
 a

ll 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 g
ro

u
p
s
. 

H
o
S
I 

2
2
n
d
 S

e
p
t 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

P
ro

fo
rm

a
s
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 u

p
o
n
 

•
 

P
ro

fo
rm

a
s
 

re
fr
e
s
h
e
d
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

•
 

A
D

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

H
o
S
I 
h
a
s
 c

ir
c
u
la

te
d
 

re
fr
e
s
h
e
d
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

•
 

L
C

M
, 
D

C
S
, 
D

M
T
, 
S
IB

 
a
n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
 

re
fr
e
s
h
e
d
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

 
 

1
B

.3
  

 P
u
b
lis

h
 t
o
 a

ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 
p
ro

fo
rm

a
s
 f
o
r 
th

e
 s

e
tt
in

g
 o

f 
p
re

d
ic

ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 2

0
1
5
 

H
o
S
I 

2
9
th

 S
e
p
t 

2
0
1
4
 

R
e
tu

rn
 b

y
 

5
th

 D
e
c
 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

P
re

d
ic

ti
o
n
-s

e
tt
in

g
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 t
o
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
to

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

p
ro

fo
rm

a
s
 

•
 

D
e
a
d
lin

e
s
 f
o
r 
re

tu
rn

 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 

•
 

D
C

S
, 
D

M
T
, 
L
C

M
, 
A
D

, 
S
IB

 
a
n
d
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 f
in

a
l 
c
o
p
y
 

 
 

1
B

.4
 

  A
g
g
re

g
a
te

 a
ll 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
s
c
h
o
o
l 

p
re

d
ic

ti
o
n
s
, 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 b

y
 S

c
h
o
o
l 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
A
d
v
is

e
rs

 a
n
d
 

a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
t 
w

h
e
re

 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

, 
to

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 C

it
y
-

W
id

e
 p

re
d
ic

ti
o
n
s
 

 

H
o
S
I 

1
2
th

 D
e
c
 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

P
re

d
ic

ti
o
n
s
 
re

tu
rn

e
d
 
a
n
d
 

re
c
o
rd

e
d
 

•
 

C
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t

a
k
e
s
 

p
la

c
e
 w

h
e
re

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 

•
 

A
D

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
 

1
B

  
 R

e
fr

e
s
h
 t
h
e
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 s

e
tt

in
g
 o

f 
p
re

d
ic

ti
o
n
s
 

b
y
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 b
y
 

3
0
/0

9
/1

4
. 

1
B

.5
 

  S
h
a
re

 p
re

d
ic

te
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

t 

H
o
S
I 

1
2
th

 D
e
c
 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

P
re

d
ic

ti
o
n
s
 

s
h
a
re

d
 

a
n
d
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d
 

•
 

A
D

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
 

41



s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 c

it
y
-l
e
v
e
l 
w

it
h
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
B
o
a
rd

 

1
B

.6
 

 E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
d
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 

w
h
e
re

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 p
re

d
ic

ti
o
n
s
 a

t 
“C

o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
v
e
 G

ro
u
p
” 
(P

S
IS

N
) 

le
v
e
l.
 

H
o
S
I 

1
5
th

 D
e
c
 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

P
re

d
ic

ti
o
n
s
 s

h
a
re

d
 a

n
d
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d
 

•
 

A
D

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
 

1
B

.7
 

 C
o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
lis

h
 

p
re

d
ic

ti
o
n
s
 a

t 
s
c
h
o
o
l,
 c

it
y
 a

n
d
 

“c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
v
e
 g

ro
u
p
” 
le

v
e
l 
a
n
d
 

p
u
b
lis

h
 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

, 
o
ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n
d
 

e
le

c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

. 

H
o
S
I 

1
9
th

 D
e
c
 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

P
re

d
ic

ti
o
n
s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 

•
 

A
D

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 
a
n
d
 
re

p
o
rt
 

to
 

L
C

M
, 

D
C

S
, 

D
M

T
 

a
n
d
 S

IB
 

 
 

1
B

.8
 

 R
e
fr
e
s
h
, 
u
p
d
a
te

 a
n
d
 p

u
b
lis

h
 

p
re

d
ic

ti
o
n
s
 a

s
 a

b
o
v
e
 w

it
h
 

la
te

s
t 
d
a
ta

, 
re

fl
e
c
ti
n
g
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 

c
o
h
o
rt
s
. 

H
o
S
I 

2
7

th
 

M
a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
5
 

•
 

P
re

d
ic

ti
o
n
s
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
e
d
 

w
h
e
re

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 

•
 

F
in

a
l 
p
re

d
ic

ti
o
n
s
 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 

•
 

A
D

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 
a
n
d
 
re

p
o
rt
 

to
 

L
C

M
, 

D
C

S
, 

D
M

T
 

a
n
d
 S

IB
 

 
 

                     A
c
ti
o
n
 2

: 
  

42



 F
o
c
u
s
 r
e
le
n
tl
e
s
s
ly
 o
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
ll
e
n
g
in
g
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
p
u
p
il
s
 w
h
o
 s
p
e
a
k
 E
n
g
li
s
h
 a
s
 a
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
la
n
g
u
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 

th
o
s
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 p
u
p
il
 p
re
m
iu
m
 f
u
n
d
in
g
. 

 O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

O
ff
ic

e
r 

D
e
a
d
lin

e
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 C

ri
te

ri
a
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 A

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

D
a
te

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

2
A

.1
 

 U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 

th
o
ro

u
g
h
 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 
o
f 

a
tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

tr
e
n
d
 
d
a
ta

 
a
t 

K
S
1
, 

K
S

2
, 

K
S

4
 

a
b
n
d
 K

S
5
 (

w
h
e
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
) 

fo
r 

E
A

L
 p

u
p
ils

 b
y
 k

e
y
 e

th
n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
  

(e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 
A

o
W

B
 
a
n
d
 
P
H

) 
to

 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 

g
a
p
s
 

to
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 

a
n
d
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

o
f 

s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

to
rs

 -
 T

o
 b

e
 a

t 
s
c
h
o
o
l 

a
n
d
 L

A
-l
e
v
e
l.
 

H
o
S
I 

1
2

th
 M

a
y
 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

D
a
ta

 a
n
a
ly

s
is

 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

a
n
d
 p

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
re

n
d
s
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 

u
p
o
n
 

•
 

A
D

 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

fr
o
m

 H
o
S
I 

•
 

D
C

S
, 
D

M
T
, 
L
C

M
 a

n
d
 

S
IB

 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 a

n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 f
ro

m
 

H
o
S
I 

 
1
2

th
 M

a
y
 

2
0
1
4
 

2
A

.2
 

 U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 

th
o
ro

u
g
h
 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 
o
f 

a
tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

tr
e
n
d
 
d
a
ta

 
a
t 

K
S
1
, 

K
S
2
 
a
n
d
 

K
S

4
 f

o
r 

P
P
G

 (
F
S
M

) 
p
u
p
ils

 t
o
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 

g
a
p
s
 

to
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 

a
n
d
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

o
f 

s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

to
rs

. 
 T

o
 b

e
 a

t 
s
c
h
o
o
l 

a
n
d
 L

A
-l
e
v
e
l.
 

H
o
S
I 

1
2

th
 M

a
y
 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

D
a
ta

 a
n
a
ly

s
is

 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

a
n
d
 p

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
re

n
d
s
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 

u
p
o
n
 

•
 

A
D

 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 
re

p
o
rt
 

fr
o
m

 H
o
S
I 

•
 

D
C

S
, 

D
M

T
, 

L
C

M
 a

n
d
 

S
IB

 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 
re

p
o
rt
s
 
fr
o
m

 
H

o
S
I 

 
1
2

th
 M

a
y
 

2
0
1
4
 

2
A

.3
 

 R
e
v
ie

w
 

p
re

d
ic

ti
o
n
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

fo
r 

E
A

L
 a

n
d
 P

P
G

 (
F
S

M
) 

p
u
p
ils

 a
t 

K
S

2
 

(s
c
h
o
o
l 

le
v
e
l)
 

a
n
d
 

a
s
c
e
rt
a
in

 w
h
e
th

e
r,
 i
f 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
, 

th
e
s
e
 p

re
d
ic

ti
o
n
s
 w

o
u
ld

 s
ig

n
a
l 

a
n
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 

2
0
1
3
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 a

 c
lo

s
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 

g
a
p
 t
o
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 

H
o
S
I 

1
2

th
 M

a
y
 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

D
a
ta

 a
n
a
ly

s
is

 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

a
n
d
 p

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
re

n
d
s
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 

u
p
o
n
 

•
 

A
D

 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 
re

p
o
rt
 

fr
o
m

 H
o
S
I 

•
 

D
C

S
, 

D
M

T
, 

L
C

M
 a

n
d
 

S
IB

 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 
re

p
o
rt
s
 
fr
o
m

 
H

o
S
I 

 
1
2

th
 M

a
y
 

2
0
1
4
 

2
A

 
 Im

p
ro

v
e
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

E
A

L
 a

n
d
 P

P
G

 
p
u
p
il
s
 s

o
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 g

a
p
 t
o
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 i
s
 

c
lo

s
e
d
 

2
A

.4
 

 E
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

p
ro

fo
rm

a
s
 

fo
r 

p
re

d
ic

ti
o
n
 

s
e
tt
in

g
 

fo
r 

2
0
1
5
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

to
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 

th
e
 

p
re

d
ic

te
d
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

fo
r 

E
A

L
 

a
n
d
 P

P
G

 (
F
S
M

) 
p
u
p
ils

 a
t 

K
S

2
 

H
o
S
I 

2
2

n
d
 S

e
p
t 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

P
ro

fo
rm

a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

a
n
d
 c

ir
c
u
la

te
d
 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

, 
a
ft
e
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

•
 

A
D

 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 
re

p
o
rt
 

fr
o
m

 H
o
S
I 

•
 

D
C

S
, 

D
M

T
, 

L
C

M
 a

n
d
 

S
IB

 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 
re

p
o
rt
s
 
fr
o
m

 
H

o
S
I 

 
 

43



a
n
d
 
in

tr
o
d
u
c
e
 
th

e
m

 
a
t 

K
S

4
 
–
 

s
e
e
 a

ls
o
 a

c
ti
o
n
 A

P
1
B

 a
b
o
v
e
. 

 
2
A

.5
 

 E
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

th
e
re

 
a
re

 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie

s
 

fo
r 

C
P
D

 
fo

r 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
S
IT

 
s
ta

ff
 
to

 
h
e
lp

 
th

e
m

 
in

 
id

e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 

E
A

L
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
n
m

e
n
t 

is
s
u
e
s
 

in
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 
a
n
d
 

in
 

m
a
k
in

g
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 
to

 
th

e
 

E
A

L
 A

c
a
d
e
m

y
. 

H
o
S
I 

3
1

s
t  D

e
c
 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

A
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 C
P
D

 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

•
 

S
ta

ff
 c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 
in

 
id

e
n
ti
fy

in
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 

m
a
k
in

g
 r
e
fe

rr
a
ls

 

•
 

A
D

 
a
n
d
 

H
o
E
G

 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

re
p
o
rt
 

fr
o
m

 
H

o
S
I 

 
 

 
2
A

.6
 

 D
e
s
ig

n
 

a
n
d
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

E
A

L
 

L
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

w
it
h
 

a
n
d
 f
o
r 
h
e
a
d
te

a
c
h
e
rs

. 

H
o
E
G

 
3
1

s
t  D

e
c
 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 

•
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
re

c
o
rd

e
d
 a

n
d
 

re
p
o
rt
e
d
 i
n
 u

p
d
a
te

 
re

p
o
rt
s
 f
ro

m
 E

A
L
 

A
c
a
d
e
m

y
 

•
 

A
D

 
a
n
d
 

H
o
S
I 

to
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 

fr
o
m

 
H

o
E
G

. 

•
 

D
C

S
, 

D
M

T
, 

L
C

M
 a

n
d
 

S
IB

 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 
re

p
o
rt
s
 
fr
o
m

 
H

o
E
G

 

 
 

 

2
B

.1
 

 R
e
c
e
iv

e
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
im

p
a
c
t 
re

p
o
rt
s
 

fr
o
m

 “
T
h
e
 E

A
L
 A

c
a
d
e
m

y
” 

a
n
d
 

th
e
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 
w

it
h
 

w
h
ic

h
 

th
e
y
 

w
o
rk

, 
to

 
q
u
a
lit

y
 

a
s
s
u
re

 
th

e
 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
f 

w
o
rk

 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

b
o
th

 i
n
-s

c
h
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 v

ia
 C

P
D

 

A
D

 
H

o
S
I 

H
o
E
G

 

E
n
d
 o

f 
M

a
y
 2

0
1
4
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
J
u
ly

 2
0
1
4
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
S
e
p
t 
2
0
1
4
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
D

e
c
 2

0
1
4
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
5
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
J
u
ly

 2
0
1
5
 

•
 

R
e
p
o
rt
s
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 

a
n
d
 

a
g
re

e
d
 

to
 

b
e
 

o
f 

h
ig

h
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 

a
n
d
 

u
s
e
fu

l 
in

 
ra

is
in

g
 a

tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

•
 

A
D

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

•
 

D
C

S
, 

L
C

M
 t

o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 

th
e
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 

•
 

S
IB

 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

•
 

R
e
p
o
rt
s
 
p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 
to

 
e
le

c
te

d
 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 
fo

r 
s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

•
 

E
A

L
 

S
tr
a
te

g
y
 

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

H
u
b
 

g
ro

u
p
s
 

to
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 

 
2
7

th
 M

a
y
 

2
0
1
4
 

2
B

 
 E
n
s
u
re

 a
n
d
 

Q
u
a
li
ty

 A
s
s
u
re

 
th

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

m
a
d
e
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y
 

“
T
h
e
 E

A
L
 

A
c
a
d
e
m

y
”
 

2
B

.2
 

 R
e
c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

fr
o
m

 
“T

h
e
 

E
A

L
 

A
c
a
d
e
m

y
” 

a
n
d
 

H
o
E
G

 
re

g
a
rd

in
g
 

th
e
 

ta
rg

e
ti
n
g
 

o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 f
o
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
n
 

ra
is

in
g
 
th

e
 
a
tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

E
A

L
 

p
u
p
ils

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

a
re

 
ta

rg
e
te

d
 

a
t 

a
re

a
s
 

o
f 

g
re

a
te

s
t 

n
e
e
d
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 a

c
ti
c
it
y
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
. 

A
D

 
H

o
E
G

 
H

o
S
I 

E
n
d
 o

f 
M

a
y
 2

0
1
4
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
S
e
p
t 
2
0
1
4
 

•
 

R
e
p
o
rt
s
 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

n
d
 

c
le

a
rl
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
g
re

a
te

s
t 
n
e
e
d
 a

n
d
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 b

e
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 f
o
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
/c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 

•
 

A
D

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

•
 

D
C

S
, 

L
C

M
 t

o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 

th
e
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 

•
 

S
IB

 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

•
 

E
A

L
 

S
tr
a
te

g
y
 

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

H
u
b
 

g
ro

u
p
s
 

to
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 

 
2
7

th
 M

a
y
 

2
0
1
4
 

44



2
B

.3
 

 M
o
n
it
o
r 

o
n
 a

 r
e
g
u
la

r 
b
a
s
is

 t
h
e
 

o
n
g
o
in

g
 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 
o
f 

E
A

L
 

(e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 

A
o
W

B
 

a
n
d
 

P
H

) 
p
u
p
ils

 
a
t 

s
c
h
o
o
l-
le

v
e
l 

to
 

a
s
c
e
rt
a
in

 
lik

e
ly

 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

v
 

p
re

d
ic

ti
o
n
s
 

         

H
o
S
I 

E
n
d
 o

f 
M

a
y
 2

0
1
4
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
A
u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
1
4
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
D

e
c
 2

0
1
4
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 
2
0
1
5
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
M

a
y
 2

0
1
5
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
S
e
p
t 
2
0
1
5
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 
2
0
1
6
 

•
 

In
-y

e
a
r 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
  

•
 

L
ik

e
ly

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 v

 
p
re

d
ic

ti
o
n
s
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 

a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 u

p
o
n
 

•
 

A
D

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

•
 

D
C

S
, 

L
C

M
 t

o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 

th
e
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 

•
 

S
IB

 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

 
2
7

th
 M

a
y
 

2
0
1
4
 

 

2
C

.1
 

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
 

w
it
h
 

a
n
d
 

in
fo

rm
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 
a
b
o
u
t 

th
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 

c
it
y
-w

id
e
 

g
ro

u
p
 

o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
l 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 

to
 

c
h
a
m

p
io

n
 

th
e
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

p
u
p
ils

 
e
lig

ib
le

 
to

 
b
e
 
fu

n
d
e
d
 
th

ro
u
g
h
 

P
P
G

 (
F
S

M
) 

H
o
S
I 

H
o
E
G

 
E
n
d
 o

f 
M

a
y
 2

0
1
4
 

•
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
re

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 

a
b
o
u
t 
th

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 g

ro
u
p
 

•
 

A
D

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

•
 

D
C

S
, 

D
M

T
, 

L
C

M
 a

n
d
 

S
IB

 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 

re
g
u
la

r 
re

p
o
rt
s
 f
ro

m
 H

o
S
I 

 
 

2
C

.2
 

 E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 

th
e
 

g
ro

u
p
 

o
f 

c
it
y
-

w
id

e
 

“P
u
p
il 

P
re

m
iu

m
 

C
h
a
m

p
io

n
s
” 

fa
c
ili
ta

te
d
 
b
y
 
th

e
 

H
o
S
I 

a
n
d
 

H
o
E
G

 
b
u
t 

le
d
 

b
y
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
le

a
d
e
rs

 t
h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 

H
o
S
I 

H
o
E
G

 
E
n
d
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

T
h
e
 g

ro
u
p
 i
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 

a
n
d
 g

ro
u
p
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 
c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 

•
 

A
D

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

•
 

D
C

S
, 

D
M

T
, 

L
C

M
 a

n
d
 

S
IB

 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 

re
g
u
la

r 
re

p
o
rt
s
 f
ro

m
 H

o
S
I 

 
 

2
C

.3
 

 E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 

te
rm

s
 

o
f 

re
fe

re
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

a
im

s
 

fo
r 

th
e
 

“P
u
p
il 

P
re

m
iu

m
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
” 
g
ro

u
p
 

H
o
S
I 

H
o
E
G

 
E
n
d
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

T
e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 a

re
 

a
g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 

•
 

A
im

s
 o

f 
th

e
 g

ro
u
p
 a

re
 

a
g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 

•
 

A
D

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

•
 

D
C

S
, 

D
M

T
, 

L
C

M
 a

n
d
 

S
IB

 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 

re
g
u
la

r 
re

p
o
rt
s
 f
ro

m
 H

o
S
I 

  

 
 

2
C

 
 E
s
ta

b
li
s
h
, 
a
n
d
 

m
o
n
it
o
r 
th

e
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 

o
f,
 a

 s
c
h
o
o
l 

le
a
d
e
rs

 g
ro

u
p
 

fo
c
u
s
e
d
 u

p
o
n
 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

P
P
G

 (
F
S
M

) 
p
u
p
il
s
 

2
C

.4
 

 E
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

o
f 

th
e
 

“P
u
p
il 

P
re

m
iu

m
 

C
h
a
m

p
io

n
s
” 

H
o
S
I 

H
o
E
G

 
E
n
d
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
 

2
0
1
4
 

A
t 
le

a
s
t 

•
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
, 

h
a
v
e
 a

g
e
n
d
a
s
 a

n
d
 

m
in

u
te

s
 a

re
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 

•
 

A
D

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
 

45



 
                     A

c
ti
o
n
 3

: 
  

g
ro

u
p
 t

a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 o

n
 a

 r
e
g
u
la

r 
b
a
s
is

 
te

rm
ly

 
th

e
re

a
ft
e
r 

•
 

D
C

S
, 

D
M

T
, 

L
C

M
 a

n
d
 

S
IB

 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 

re
g
u
la

r 
re

p
o
rt
s
 f
ro

m
 H

o
S
I 

2
C

.5
 

 E
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

s
tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 

to
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 

th
e
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

o
f 

P
P
G

 
(F

S
M

) 
p
u
p
ils

 
a
re

 
a
n
 

a
g
e
n
d
a
 

it
e
m

 
a
t 

re
g
u
la

r 
p
ri
m

a
ry

, 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 
a
n
d
 

s
p
e
c
ia

l 
s
c
h
o
o
l 

H
e
a
d
te

a
c
h
e
r 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
  

 

H
o
S
I 

 
E
n
d
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
 

2
0
1
4
 

A
t 
le

a
s
t 

te
rm

ly
 

th
e
re

a
ft
e
r 

•
 

R
e
g
u
la

r 
in

p
u
t 
to

 
h
e
a
d
te

a
c
h
e
r 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

fr
o
m

 “
P
u
p
il 

P
re

m
iu

m
 

C
h
a
m

p
io

n
s
” 
g
ro

u
p
 a

n
d
 

c
o
n
tr
ib

u
to

rs
 w

h
o
 

e
x
e
m

p
lif

y
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
la

in
 

b
e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
s
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 

•
 

A
D

 
to

 
in

c
lu

d
e
 

in
 

a
g
e
n
d
a
s
 

fo
r 

h
e
a
d
te

a
c
h
e
r 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

 
 

2
C

.6
 

 M
o
n
it
o
r 

o
n
 a

 r
e
g
u
la

r 
b
a
s
is

 t
h
e
 

o
n
g
o
in

g
 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 
o
f 

P
P
G

 
(F

S
M

) 
p
u
p
ils

 a
t 
s
c
h
o
o
l-
le

v
e
l 
to

 
a
s
c
e
rt
a
in

 
lik

e
ly

 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

v
 

p
re

d
ic

ti
o
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

“A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
A
ll”

 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 

H
o
S
I 

 
E
n
d
 o

f 
M

a
y
 2

0
1
4
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
A
u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
1
4
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
D

e
c
 2

0
1
4
 

a
n
d
 

o
n
g
o
in

g
 

•
 

In
-y

e
a
r 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
  

•
 

L
ik

e
ly

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 v

 
p
re

d
ic

ti
o
n
s
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 

a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 u

p
o
n
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
“A

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 
A
ll”

 m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 a

n
d
 

e
v
a
lu

a
te

d
 

•
 

A
D

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

•
 

D
C

S
, 

L
C

M
 t

o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 

th
e
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 

•
 

S
IB

 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

 
2
7

th
 M

a
y
 

2
0
1
4
 

46



 E
m
b
e
d
 
h
ig
h
 
q
u
a
li
ty
 
s
c
h
o
o
l-
to
-s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 
in
 
o
rd
e
r 
to
 
p
ro
m
o
te
 
th
e
 
s
h
a
ri
n
g
 
o
f 
g
o
o
d
 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 
th
e
 
a
u
to
n
o
m
y
 
o
f 
p
ri
m
a
ry
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
. 

 O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

O
ff
ic

e
r 

D
e
a
d
lin

e
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 C

ri
te

ri
a
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

D
a
te

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

3
A

.1
 

 E
v
a
lu

a
te

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

re
a
s
 

fo
r 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 

P
S
IS

N
 p

ilo
t 
p
h
a
s
e
. 

A
D

  
H

o
S
I 

8
th
 M

a
y
 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

H
ig

h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
v
e
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 b

y
 

A
D

/H
o
S
I 
fr
o
m

 l
e
a
d
 

h
e
a
d
te

a
c
h
e
rs

, 
ta

s
k
 a

n
d
 

fi
n
is

h
 g

ro
u
p
, 
S
L
E
 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

te
s
  

•
 

D
C

S
, 
D

M
T
 a

n
d
 

L
C

M
 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 a

n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

 
8

th
 M

a
y
 

2
0
1
4
 

3
A

.2
 

 F
o
rm

u
la

te
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

s
 a

n
d
 l
e
s
s
o
n
s
 

le
a
rn

e
d
 i
n
to

 f
o
rm

a
l 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 
la

u
n
c
h
 o

f 
P
S
IS

N
. 

A
D

  
H

o
S
I 

1
9

th
 M

a
y
 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

H
ig

h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 

fo
r 
D

is
s
e
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 E

v
e
n
t 
b
y
 

le
a
d
 h

e
a
d
te

a
c
h
e
rs

, 
ta

s
k
 

a
n
d
 f
in

is
h
 g

ro
u
p
, 
S
L
E
 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

te
s
 

•
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

a
n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 A

D
/H

o
S
I 

•
 

D
C

S
, 
D

M
T
 a

n
d
  

L
C

M
 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 a

n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

 
1
9

th
 M

a
y
 

2
0
1
4
 

3
A

.3
 

 D
is

s
e
m

in
a
te

 s
tr
e
n
g
th

s
 a

n
d
 

fo
rm

a
l 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

t 
D

is
s
e
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 E

v
e
n
t 
fo

r 
a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 

A
D

  
H

o
S
I 

1
9

th
 M

a
y
 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

D
is

s
e
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 E

v
e
n
t 
ta

k
e
s
 

p
la

c
e
 a

n
d
 r
e
a
c
h
e
s
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 

c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 

•
 

D
C

S
, 
A
D

 a
n
d
 L

C
M

 
a
tt
e
n
d
 

D
is

s
e
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 E

v
e
n
t 

 
1
9

th
 M

a
y
 

2
0
1
4
 

3
A

.4
 

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
 f
in

a
l 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
, 

c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
v
e
 g

ro
u
p
s
 a

n
d
 t
ri
a
d
s
. 

A
D

  
H

o
S
I 

1
6

th
 J

u
n
e
 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

F
in

a
l 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

a
g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 

A
D

/H
o
S
I 
a
s
 b

e
in

g
 o

f 
h
ig

h
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 

•
 

D
C

S
 a

n
d
 L

C
M

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
 

fi
n
a
l 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

 
1
3

th
 J

u
n
e
 

2
0
1
4
 

3
A

 
 E
s
ta

b
li
s
h
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
fo

r 
fo

rm
a
l 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
to

 
S
c
h
o
o
l 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 
N

e
tw

o
rk

 –
 

“
P
e
te

rb
o
ro

u
g
h
 

S
e
lf
-I
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 
N

e
tw

o
rk

”
 

(P
S
IS

N
) 

3
A

.5
 

 E
n
s
u
re

 f
in

a
l 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
 f
o
r 
th

e
 f
o
rm

a
l 
la

u
n
c
h
 o

f 
P
S
IS

N
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 
le

a
d
 

h
e
a
d
te

a
c
h
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

h
e
a
d
te

a
c
h
e
rs

. 
       

A
D

  
H

o
S
I 

 

2
3

rd
 J

u
n
e
 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 

•
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
re

 
c
le

a
r 
a
b
o
u
t 
th

e
 f
u
tu

re
 

P
S
IS

N
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

th
e
 r
o
le

 o
f 
th

e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
te

a
m

 

•
 

D
C

S
, 
L
C

M
 a

n
d
 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

s
h
o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu

re
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

fo
rm

a
l 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P
S
IS

N
 a

n
d
 r
o
le

 o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

te
a
m

 
    

 
 

 

47



  
  

3
B

.1
 

 C
o
lla

ti
o
n
 o

f 
fe

e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 l
e
a
d
 

h
e
a
d
te

a
c
h
e
rs

 v
ia

 S
c
h
o
o
l 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
B
o
a
rd

 (
S

IB
) 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 

A
D

 
H

o
S
I 

E
n
d
 o

f 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
D

e
c
 2

0
1
4
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
5
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
 

2
0
1
5
 

•
 

F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

n
d
 

fo
rm

u
la

te
d
 i
n
to

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
v
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

•
 

S
IB

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 

a
n
d
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 

•
 

S
IB

 t
o
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

•
 

D
C

S
 a

n
d
 L

C
M

 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 i
s
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 

 
 

3
B

.2
 

 A
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

 t
o
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 m

a
d
e
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 t
e
rm

 a
s
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

. 

A
D

 
H

o
S
I 

E
n
d
 o

f 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
D

e
c
 2

0
1
4
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
5
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
 

2
0
1
5
 

•
 

F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

n
d
 

a
c
te

d
 u

p
o
n
 a

s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 
b
y
 l
e
a
d
 h

e
a
d
te

a
c
h
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

S
IB

 

•
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 /
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 r
e
ta

in
e
d
 o

r 
re

fr
e
s
h
e
d
 a

s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

•
 

S
IB

 t
o
 r
e
p
o
rt
 a

n
d
 

a
c
t 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 v

ia
 

le
a
d
 h

e
a
d
te

a
c
h
e
rs

 

•
 

D
C

S
 a

n
d
 L

C
M

 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
a
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 

 
 

3
B

.3
 

 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

it
h
in

 
tr
ia

d
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
v
e
s
 

to
w

a
rd

s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 p

re
d
ic

ti
o
n
s
 

m
a
d
e
 f
o
r 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 2

0
1
5
. 

H
o
S
I 

 
E
n
d
 o

f 
D

e
c
 2

0
1
4
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
5
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
A
u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
1
5
 

•
 

D
a
ta

 s
u
m

m
a
ri
e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 
to

 b
e
 s

c
ru

ti
n
is

e
d
 

•
 

S
IB

 t
o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 a

n
d
 

s
c
ru

ti
n
is

e
 

•
 

D
C

S
 a

n
d
 L

C
M

 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
s
 p

la
c
e
 

 
 

3
B

.4
 

 A
n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
d
a
ta

 f
ro

m
 

c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
ri
a
d
s
 

re
g
a
rd

in
g
 a

c
tu

a
l 
v
 p

re
d
ic

te
d
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 2

0
1
5
. 

H
o
S
I 

E
n
d
 o

f 
D

e
c
 2

0
1
4
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
5
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
A
u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
1
5
 

•
 

D
a
ta

 s
u
m

m
a
ri
e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 
a
n
d
 s

c
ru

ti
n
is

e
d
 

•
 

H
o
S
I 
to

 a
n
a
ly

s
e
 

d
a
ta

 

•
 

H
o
S
I 
to

 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 

S
IB

 

•
 

D
C

S
 a

n
d
 L

C
M

 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
s
 p

la
c
e
 

 
 

3
B

 
 M

o
n
it
o
r 
a
n
d
 

e
v
a
lu

a
te

 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 

a
re

a
s
 f
o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

fo
ll
o
w

in
g
 e

a
c
h
 

te
rm

 o
f 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
P
S
IS

N
 

3
B

.5
 

 R
e
fo

rm
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
tr
ia

d
s
 a

n
d
 

c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
v
e
s
 i
f 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

, 
fo

r 
2
0
1
5
/1

6
. 

A
D

 
H

o
S
I 

E
n
d
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
 

2
0
1
5
 

•
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 r
e
ta

in
 o

r 
re

fr
e
s
h
 t
ri
a
d
s
 a

s
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

•
 

S
IB

 t
o
 a

c
t 
u
p
o
n
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

•
 

D
C

S
 a

n
d
 L

C
M

 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
s
 p

la
c
e
. 

 
 

48



A
c
ti
o
n
 4

: 
  

 Im
p
ro
v
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 b
ro
a
d
e
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
w
o
rk
-b
a
s
e
d
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

s
u
c
c
e
e
d
 a
lo
n
g
 t
h
e
ir
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 p
a
th
w
a
y
s
. 

 O
fs

te
d
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 f
o
r 

1
6
 -

1
9
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
, 
p
a
rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 i
n
 P

e
te

rb
o
ro

u
g
h
, 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 w

e
e
k
 b

e
g
in

n
in

g
 1

9
th
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
4
. 
T
w

o
 o

f 
H

e
r 
M

a
je

s
ty

’s
 I
n
s
p
e
c
to

rs
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 t
h
e
 f
iv

e
 d

a
y
 r
e
v
ie

w
. 
 A

s
 p

a
rt
 o

f 
th

e
 r
e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
y
 i
n
te

rv
ie

w
e
d
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

, 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 
a
n
d
 
fr
o
n
tl
in

e
 
p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

 
a
s
 
w

e
ll 

a
s
 
o
th

e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 
th

a
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le

 
to

 
m

o
v
e
 
fr
o
m

 
N

E
E
T
 
(N

o
t 

in
 
E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

r 
T
ra

in
in

g
) 

to
 E

E
T
 (

in
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 T

ra
in

in
g
).
 O

fs
te

d
’s

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 w

e
re

 i
n
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
v
e
ry

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
, 
c
o
m

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 a

m
o
n
g
 o

th
e
r 

th
in

g
s
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il:

 
 

•
 

m
o
n
it
o
rs

 w
e
ll 

th
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt
io

n
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 m
o
v
in

g
 i
n
to

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
; 

•
 

w
o
rk

s
 w

e
ll 

w
it
h
 p

a
rt
n
e
r 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 
o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 N

E
E
T
 

•
 

w
o
rk

s
 w

e
ll 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 p
a
rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 t
h
o
s
e
 f
ro

m
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
 

•
 

p
la

c
e
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
e
m

p
h
a
s
is

 o
n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
io

n
 r
o
u
te

s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
c
u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

•
 

is
 m

a
k
in

g
 g

o
o
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
n
 s

e
c
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt
ic

ip
a
ti
o
n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 f
o
r 
th

e
 R

a
is

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 P

a
rt
ic

ip
a
ti
o
n
 A

g
e
 (
R

P
A
) 

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,
 i
n
s
p
e
c
to

rs
 a

ls
o
 p

o
in

te
d
 o

u
t 
th

a
t 
p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 w
e
re

 n
o
t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
 w

e
ll 

to
g
e
th

e
r 
n
o
r 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 w

a
s
 h

in
d
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

. 
T
h
e
y
 a

ls
o
 p

o
in

te
d
 o

u
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 L

o
c
a
l 
E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 P

a
rt
n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
a
s
 n

o
t 
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

n
e
e
d
s
 o

f 
P
e
te

rb
o
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 P
e
te

rb
o
ro

u
g
h
 w

a
s
 d

is
a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
d
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 n

e
e
d
. 
 

 A
 f
u
ll 

le
tt
e
r 

in
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 s

h
o
rt
ly

 a
n
d
 a

t 
th

a
t 
p
o
in

t 
a
 f
u
ll 

a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

s
 t
h
is

 w
ill
 a

llo
w

 a
 m

o
re

 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 s

u
g
g
e
s
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 t
e
a
m

. 
  
 

 
    

             

49



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 5

: 
  

 S
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
 a
n
d
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 r
o
le
 o
f 
e
le
c
te
d
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 b
y
: 

 

•
 
e
x
te
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
e
p
e
n
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 a
n
d
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
s
 f
a
c
in
g
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 i
n
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
; 

•
 
e
x
te
n
d
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
d
e
e
p
e
n
in
g
 
th
e
ir
 
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 
a
n
d
 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 
o
f 
th
e
 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 
o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 
in
 
re
la
ti
o
n
 
to
 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 
lo
c
a
l 

c
o
m
p
a
ra
to
rs
; 

•
 
e
x
te
n
d
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
s
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
in
g
 
th
e
ir
 
a
b
il
it
y
 
to
 
s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 
a
n
d
 
c
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
 
th
e
 
w
o
rk
 
o
f 
th
e
 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
te
a
m
 
a
n
d
 
o
th
e
r 

c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
n
g
 t
e
a
m
s
. 

 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

O
ff
ic

e
r 

D
e
a
d
lin

e
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 C

ri
te

ri
a
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 A

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

D
a
te

 C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

5
A

.1
 

 P
ro

v
id

e
 r
e
g
u
la

r 
u
p
d
a
te

s
 t
o
 

e
le

c
te

d
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

, 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
ir
 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
, 

re
g
a
rd

in
g
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
te

x
t 
o
f 
a
ll 

P
e
te

rb
o
ro

u
g
h
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
in

 
p
a
rt
ic

u
la

r 
F
S

M
, 

E
A

L
, 

D
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 

(I
d
a
c
i)
 a

n
d
 

m
o
b
ili
ty

 –
 a

ll 
in

 
re

la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
. 

H
o
S
I 

E
n
d
 o

f 
O

c
t 
a
n
d
 

e
n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 

e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

•
 

C
o
n
te

x
tu

a
l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 f
o
r 
e
le

c
te

d
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
t 
s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

•
 

A
D

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

a
n
d
 

to
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 

a
s
s
u
re

 
th

e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

•
 

D
C

S
, 

D
M

T
 
a
n
d
 
L
C

M
 

to
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

b
e
fo

re
 c

ir
c
u
la

ti
o
n
 

 
 

5
A

 
 E
x
te

n
d
 a

n
d
 

d
e
e
p
e
n
 t
h
e
 

k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 a

n
d
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
e
le

c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 
o
f 
th

e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 

c
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
s
 f
a
c
e
d
 

b
y
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 

P
e
te

rb
o
ro

u
g
h
 

    

5
A

.2
 

 P
ro

v
id

e
 u

p
d
a
te

s
 

in
 O

c
t/
N

o
v
 a

n
d
 

M
a
rc

h
/A

p
ri
l 

e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 
o
f 
th

e
 

in
te

rn
a
l 

c
a
te

g
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 b
y
 

is
s
u
in

g
 “
S
c
h
o
o
l 

P
ro

fi
le

s
” 
to

 t
h
e
 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

H
o
S
I 

E
n
d
 o

f 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 
a
n
d
 

e
n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 

e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

•
 

U
p
d
a
te

d
 
c
a
te

g
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 f
o
r 

e
le

c
te

d
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 
v
ia

 
“S

c
h
o
o
l 

P
ro

fi
le

” 
d
a
ta

 
s
h
e
e
ts

  

•
 

A
D

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

a
n
d
 

to
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 

a
s
s
u
re

 
th

e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

•
 

D
C

S
, 

D
M

T
 
a
n
d
 
L
C

M
 

to
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

b
e
fo

re
 c

ir
c
u
la

ti
o
n
 

 
 

50



c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 s

u
b
 

g
ro

u
p
. 

5
A

.3
 

 P
ro

v
id

e
 u

p
d
a
te

s
 

to
 e

le
c
te

d
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
t 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
p
o
in

ts
 i
n
 t
im

e
 

re
g
a
rd

in
g
 t
h
e
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
O

fS
T
E
D

 
in

s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 

w
a
rd

. 

H
o
S
I 

R
e
le

a
s
e
d
 

u
p
o
n
 

p
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
O

fS
T
E
D

 
re

p
o
rt
s
 

•
 

O
fS

T
E
D

 
in

s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 

fo
rw

a
rd

e
d
 

to
 

w
a
rd

 
c
o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 
a
s
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

•
 

A
D

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

t 
th

e
 
e
n
d
 

o
f 
e
a
c
h
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
te

rm
. 

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 

5
A

.4
 

 P
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
, 
v
ia

 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

t 
s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
, 
fo

r 
e
le

c
te

d
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 t
o
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff
ic

e
rs

 
re

g
a
rd

in
g
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
te

x
t 
o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 

P
e
te

rb
o
ro

u
g
h
. 

A
D

 
H

o
S
I 

E
n
d
 o

f 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r,
 

e
n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 

a
n
d
 e

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
 e

a
c
h
 

y
e
a
r 

•
 

S
e
n
io

r 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 
a
re

 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
e
d
 

a
n
d
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
d
 

a
t 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

a
n
d
 a

t 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
’s

 s
u
b
-g

ro
u
p
 

•
 

D
C

S
 

to
 

e
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

th
is

 
a
c
ti
o
n
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 

 5
B

 
 E
x
te

n
d
 a

n
d
 

d
e
e
p
e
n
 t
h
e
 

k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
  
 a

n
d
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
e
le

c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 
o
f 
th

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

to
rs

 

5
B

.1
 

 P
ro

v
id

e
 r
e
g
u
la

r 
u
p
d
a
te

s
 f
o
r 

e
le

c
te

d
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

, 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
ir
 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
, 
o
f 

th
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 

P
e
te

rb
o
ro

u
g
h
 a

t 
E

Y
F
S
, 
K
S

1
, 

K
S

2
, 
K

S
4
 a

n
d
 

K
S

5
. 
 T

h
e
s
e
 

H
o
S
I 

E
n
d
 o

f 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 
a
n
d
 

e
n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 

e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

•
 

R
e
p
o
rt
s
 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 

fo
r 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 c
o
n
ta

in
in

g
 a

ll 
re

le
v
a
n
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

•
 

A
D

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

a
n
d
 

to
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 

a
s
s
u
re

 
th

e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

•
 

D
C

S
, 

D
M

T
 
a
n
d
 
L
C

M
 

to
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

b
e
fo

re
 c

ir
c
u
la

ti
o
n
 

 
 

51



u
p
d
a
te

s
 t
o
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 

c
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 t
o
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 a
n
d
 

lo
c
a
l 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

to
rs

, 
in

 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 o

v
e
r 
ti
m

e
. 

5
B

.2
 

 P
ro

v
id

e
 t
h
e
 

a
b
o
v
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 
to

 
c
o
n
ta

in
 

u
n
v
a
lid

a
te

d
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

(N
o
v
/D

e
c
) 
a
n
d
 

v
a
lid

a
te

d
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

(J
a
n
/F

e
b
) 

H
o
S
I 

E
n
d
 o

f 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 
a
n
d
 

e
n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 

e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

•
 

R
e
p
o
rt
s
 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 

fo
r 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 c
o
n
ta

in
in

g
 a

ll 
re

le
v
a
n
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

tw
ic

e
 

p
e
r 

y
e
a
r 

(u
n
v
a
lid

a
te

d
 

a
n
d
 

v
a
lid

a
te

d
) 

•
 

A
D

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

a
n
d
 

to
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 

a
s
s
u
re

 
th

e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

•
 

D
C

S
, 

D
M

T
 
a
n
d
 
L
C

M
 

to
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

b
e
fo

re
 c

ir
c
u
la

ti
o
n
 

 
 

5
B

.3
 

 E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 a

n
d
 

e
x
p
e
c
t 
e
le

c
te

d
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

, 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
ir
 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
, 
to

 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 a

n
d
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff
ic

e
rs

 
re

g
a
rd

in
g
 t
h
e
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 b

y
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
s
o
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 a

re
 b

e
tt
e
r 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 a

b
o
u
t 

th
e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 

lo
c
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
s
. 

A
D

 
E
n
d
 o

f 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r,
 

e
n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 

a
n
d
 e

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
 e

a
c
h
 

y
e
a
r 

•
 

S
e
n
io

r 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 
a
re

 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
e
d
 

a
n
d
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
d
 

a
t 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

a
n
d
 a

t 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
’s

 s
u
b
-g

ro
u
p
 

•
 

D
C

S
 

to
 

e
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

th
is

 
a
c
ti
o
n
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
 

 5
C

 
5
C

.1
 

A
D

 
E
n
d
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
 

•
 

R
e
p
o
rt
 
is

s
u
e
d
 
b
y
 
“t
a
s
k
 
•
 

D
C

S
 

to
 

e
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

 
 

52



 C
o
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

n
d
 

re
p
o
rt
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 

th
e
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 “
ta

s
k
 

a
n
d
 f
in

is
h
 

g
ro

u
p
” 
in

to
 t
h
e
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
g
ro

u
p
s
 i
n
 

P
e
te

rb
o
ro

u
g
h
 

2
0
1
4
 

a
n
d
 

fi
n
is

h
 

g
ro

u
p
” 

to
 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

th
is

 
a
c
ti
o
n
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

5
C

.2
 

 D
is

c
u
s
s
 a

n
d
 

a
g
re

e
 t
h
e
 

re
fr
e
s
h
e
d
 S

IS
 

w
it
h
 e

le
c
te

d
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 v
ia

 
th

e
ir
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

n
d
 

th
e
ir
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 s

u
b
-

g
ro

u
p
 

A
D

 
E
n
d
 o

f 
S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

S
IS

 
p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 

to
 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

n
d
 

it
s
 s

u
b
-g

ro
u
p
 

•
 

D
C

S
 

to
 

e
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

th
is

 
a
c
ti
o
n
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
 

5
C

.3
 

 P
re

s
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
 a

t 
th

e
 

A
ll 

P
a
rt
y
 P

o
lic

y
 

g
ro

u
p
 t
h
e
 

re
fr
e
s
h
e
d
 S

IS
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 
a
n
d
 a

s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 

o
f 
th

e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

te
a
m

 

A
D

 
E
n
d
 o

f 
S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

S
IS

 
p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 

to
 

“A
ll 

P
a
rt
y
 P

o
lic

y
” 
g
ro

u
p
 

•
 

D
C

S
 

to
 

e
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

th
is

 
a
c
ti
o
n
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
 

 E
x
te

n
d
 a

n
d
 

s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
 t
h
e
 

a
b
il
it
y
 o

f 
e
le

c
te

d
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 t
o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n
is

e
 a

n
d
 

c
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
 t
h
e
 

w
o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

te
a
m

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
n
g
 

te
a
m

s
 

5
C

.4
 

 D
is

c
u
s
s
 a

n
d
 

a
g
re

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

n
d
 

it
s
 s

u
b
 g

ro
u
p
 t
h
e
 

fo
c
u
s
 o

f 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 t
o
 

e
x
te

n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 

k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 a

n
d
 

A
D

 
E
n
d
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

m
a
d
e
 a

s
 t
o
 f
u
tu

re
 a

re
a
s
 

o
f 
fo

c
u
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

n
d
 i

ts
 s

u
b
-

g
ro

u
p
 

•
 

D
C

S
 

to
 

e
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

th
is

 
a
c
ti
o
n
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

 
 

53



 A
c
ti
o
n
 6

: 
  

 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
, 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 a

b
ili
ty

 
to

 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

s
e
n
io

r 
o
ff
ic

e
rs

 
a
n
d
 h

o
ld

 t
h
e
m

 
to

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
ir
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

5
C

.5
 

 E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 s

u
b
 

g
ro

u
p
 h

a
v
e
 t
h
e
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 

v
is

it
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

w
it
h
 

h
e
a
d
te

a
c
h
e
rs

 
o
n
 a

 r
e
g
u
la

r 
b
a
s
is

 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

A
D

 
E
n
d
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
 

2
0
1
4
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
. 

E
n
d
 o

f 
S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

a
n
d
 J

u
n
e
 e

a
c
h
 

y
e
a
r 

th
e
re

a
ft
e
r.
 

•
 

V
is

it
s
 

to
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 
ta

k
e
 

p
la

c
e
 

a
n
d
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 

a
re

 
h
e
ld

 
w

it
h
 

h
e
a
d
te

a
c
h
e
rs

 

•
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

n
d
 

s
u
b
-g

ro
u
p
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 
a
re

 
b
e
tt
e
r 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 

a
b
o
u
t 

th
e
 

is
s
u
e
s
 

a
n
d
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 

fa
c
in

g
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
a
n
d
 a

re
 b

e
tt
e
r 

a
b
le

 
to

 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 

s
e
n
io

r 
o
ff
ic

e
rs

. 

•
 

D
C

S
 

to
 

e
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

th
is

 
a
c
ti
o
n
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

 
 

5
C

.6
 

 G
a
th

e
r 
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs

 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 f
ro

m
 

“b
e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
” 

v
is

it
s
 o

r 
d
e
s
k
to

p
 

a
n
a
ly

s
e
s
 

re
g
a
rd

in
g
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 f
ro

m
 

o
th

e
r 
L
A
s
 

A
D

 
H

o
S
I 

E
n
d
 o

f 
A
u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
1
4
 

R
e
fr
e
s
h
e
d
 

a
n
n
u
a
lly

 
th

e
re

a
ft
e
r 

•
 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

g
a
th

e
re

d
 

v
ia

 
v
is

it
s
 
to

 
o
th

e
r 

L
A
s
 

o
r 
b
y
 d

e
s
k
to

p
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 

•
 

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 

to
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

“b
e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
s
e
” 

re
p
o
rt
s
 

w
h
e
re

 
th

e
y
 

a
re

 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

; 

•
 

R
e
p
o
rt
s
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 

fo
r 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 s

u
b
-

g
ro

u
p
 

•
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

re
g
a
rd

in
g
 

re
v
is

io
n
s
 

to
 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

•
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 
s
u
b
 
g
ro

u
p
 
to

 
ta

k
e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

to
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

•
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

to
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 

re
v
is

io
n
s
 

to
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

p
ra

c
ti
s
e
. 

•
 

D
C

S
 

a
n
d
 

L
C

M
 

to
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

•
 

D
C

S
, 

L
C

M
, 

D
M

T
 

to
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 

•
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

a
n
d
 
it
s
 
s
u
b
 
g
ro

u
p
 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 

 

 
 

54



Im
p
ro
v
e
 
o
v
e
ra
ll
 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 
in
 
p
ri
m
a
ry
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
re
d
u
c
e
 
ra
te
s
 
o
f 
p
e
rs
is
te
n
t 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
re
d
u
c
e
 
ra
te
s
 
o
f 
fi
x
e
d
-t
e
rm
 
a
n
d
 

p
e
rm
a
n
e
n
t 
e
x
c
lu
s
io
n
s
. 

 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

D
e
a
d
lin

e
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 C

ri
te

ri
a
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 A

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

D
a
te

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

6
A

.1
 

 U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

h
is

to
ri
c
 t
re

n
d
 

d
a
ta

 f
o
r 
o
v
e
ra

ll 
ra

te
s
 o

f 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 

p
ri
m

a
ry

, 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 a
n
d
 

a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 

H
o
S
I 

S
A
O

s
 

2
9

th
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
4
 

•
 

D
a
ta

 
a
n
a
ly

s
e
d
 

a
n
d
 

s
p
re

a
d
s
h
e
e
ts

 p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 

•
 

A
D

 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

d
a
ta

 
a
n
d
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
v
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

fr
o
m

 H
o
S
I 

•
 

D
M

T
 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

 
2
9

th
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
4
 

6
A

.2
 

 C
o
m

p
a
re

 t
re

n
d
 

d
a
ta

 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 

tr
e
n
d
 o

f 
g
a
p
s
 t
o
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
, 

s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
r 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 a

n
d
 

lo
c
a
l 
c
o
m

p
a
ra

to
r 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
. 

H
o
S
I 

S
A
O

s
 

2
9

th
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
4
 

•
 

D
a
ta

 
tr
e
n
d
 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 

a
n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt
 f
o
rw

a
rd

e
d
 t
o
 

A
D

, 
D

M
T
 

•
 

A
D

 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

d
a
ta

 
a
n
d
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
v
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

fr
o
m

 H
o
S
I 

•
 

D
M

T
 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

 
2
9

th
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
4
 

6
A

.3
 

 F
in

a
lis

e
 a

n
d
 

p
u
b
lis

h
 P

C
C

 
A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

P
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s
, 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

e
v
e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 a

ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 
     

H
o
S
I 

2
9
th

 A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d
 c

ir
c
u
la

te
d
 

to
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 D

M
T
 

•
 

A
D

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
2
9

th
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 

6
A

 
 Im

p
ro

v
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 

ra
te

s
 o

f 
a
tt

e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 

p
ri
m

a
ry

, 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 a
n
d
 

a
ll
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 s
o
 

th
a
t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 

a
n
d
 t
o
p
 q

u
a
rt

il
e
 

w
h
e
n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 

w
it
h
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 

6
A

.4
 

 E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 o

v
e
ra

ll 

H
o
S
I 

S
A
O

s
 

2
9

th
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
4
 

•
 

D
a
ta

 t
re

n
d
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 

fo
r 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 
a
n
d
 

ra
n
k
e
d
 

•
 

A
D

 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

d
a
ta

 
a
n
d
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
v
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

fr
o
m

 H
o
S
I 

 
2
9

th
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
4
 

55



a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

ra
te

s
 a

s
 t
re

n
d
 

d
a
ta

 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
ll
y
, 
a
n
d
 

p
la

c
e
 i
n
to

 r
a
n
k
 

o
rd

e
r 
(v

a
lid

a
te

d
 

R
a
is

e
o
n
lin

e
 a

s
 

d
a
ta

 p
ro

v
id

e
r)

. 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 

•
 

D
M

T
 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

6
A

.5
 

 T
a
rg

e
t 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

s
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
g
iv

e
n
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
g
re

a
te

s
t 
n
e
e
d
 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

 
fr
o
m

 r
a
n
k
in

g
 

ta
b
le

s
 6

A
.4

. 

H
o
S
I 

S
A
O

s
 

2
7

th
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
4
 

•
 

A
O

 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 
ta

rg
e
te

d
 

a
t 

a
re

a
s
 

o
f 

g
re

a
te

s
t 

n
e
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

 

•
 

A
D

 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 

d
e
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 

 
 

6
A

.6
 

 E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 c

it
y
-

w
id

e
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
. 

H
o
S
I 

S
A
O

s
 

2
7

th
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
4
 

•
 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 

a
n
d
 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 

to
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
L
C

M
 a

n
d
 D

M
T
 

•
 

A
D

 t
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 
fr
o
m

 H
o
S
I 

•
 

D
C

S
, 

D
M

T
 t

o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 

 
 

6
A

.7
 

 M
o
n
it
o
r 
ta

rg
e
t 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 v
ia

 
A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

O
ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n
d
 a

ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 v
ia

 
R

a
is

e
o
n
lin

e
 

d
a
ta

 a
n
a
ly

s
is

 a
s
 

w
e
ll 

a
s
 

a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 d

a
ta

 
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

fo
rm

a
s
 t
o
 b

e
 

is
s
u
e
d
 a

n
d
 

c
o
lle

c
te

d
 t
e
rm

ly
 

fr
o
m

 a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 
  

H
o
S
I 

S
A
O

s
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
J
u
ly

 
2
0
1
4
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
D

e
c
 

2
0
1
4
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
5
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
J
u
ly

 
2
0
1
5
 

•
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 
v
 
ta

rg
e
ts

 
m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt
e
d
 

a
t 

te
rm

ly
 

in
te

rv
a
ls

 
to

 
A
D

, 
D

M
T
 

•
 

A
D

 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

d
a
ta

 
a
n
d
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
v
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

fr
o
m

 H
o
S
I 

 
 

6
A

.8
 

 M
o
n
it
o
r 
a
n
d
 

e
v
a
lu

a
te

 

H
o
S
I 

S
A
O

s
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
J
u
ly

 
2
0
1
4
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
D

e
c
 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 v

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 
m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 a

n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 

a
t 
te

rm
ly

 i
n
te

rv
a
ls

 t
o
 

A
D

, 
D

M
T
 

•
 

A
D

 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

d
a
ta

 
a
n
d
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
v
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

fr
o
m

 H
o
S
I 

 
 

56



p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 v

 
ta

rg
e
ts

 o
n
 a

 
te

rm
ly

 a
n
d
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
b
a
s
is

. 

E
n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
5
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
J
u
ly

 
2
0
1
5
 

 
6
A

.9
 

 M
a
in

ta
in

 h
ig

h
 

p
ro

fi
le

 a
n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 

o
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 

a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 b

y
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 a

 
c
it
y
-w

id
e
 g

ro
u
p
 

fo
r 
“A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

L
e
a
d
” 
s
ta

ff
 f
ro

m
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 

H
o
S
I 

S
A
O

s
 

A
O

s
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
J
u
ly

 
2
0
1
4
 

T
e
rm

ly
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

n
d
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 

th
e
re

a
ft
e
r 

 

•
 

C
it
y
-w

id
e
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 
g
ro

u
p
 o

f 
“A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

L
e
a
d
” 
s
ta

ff
 f
ro

m
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 

•
 

G
ro

u
p
 m

e
e
ts

 a
t 
le

a
s
t 

te
rm

ly
 

•
 

G
ro

u
p
 r
e
v
ie

w
s
 p

o
lic

y
 

a
n
d
 a

p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s
; 

•
 

G
ro

u
p
 r
e
v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d
 

u
p
d
a
te

s
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 p

ro
v
e
n
 t
o
 

b
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 a

re
 

e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
b
e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
s
e
 

•
 

O
v
e
ra

ll 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

im
p
ro

v
e
s
 t
o
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 a

n
d
 

ra
te

s
 o

f 
p
e
rs

is
te

n
t 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 d

e
c
lin

e
 t
o
 

b
e
lo

w
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
. 

•
 

A
D

 t
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
re

p
o
rt
s
 

fr
o
m

 
H

o
S
I 

re
g
a
rd

in
g
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
e
s
/a

re
a
s
 

fo
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

g
ro

u
p
 

•
 

D
C

S
, 

D
M

T
 
a
n
d
 
L
C

M
 

to
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 

a
n
d
 

fu
tu

re
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
. 

 
 

 

6
B

.1
 

 U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

h
is

to
ri
c
 t
re

n
d
 

d
a
ta

 f
o
r 

p
e
rs

is
te

n
t 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 

p
ri
m

a
ry

, 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 a
n
d
 

a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 

H
o
S
I 

S
A
O

s
 

2
9

th
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
4
 

•
 

D
a
ta

 
a
n
a
ly

s
e
d
 

a
n
d
 

s
p
re

a
d
s
h
e
e
ts

 p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 

 
 

•
 

A
D

 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

d
a
ta

 
a
n
d
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
v
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

fr
o
m

 H
o
S
I 

 
2
9

th
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
4
 

6
B

 
 R

e
d
u
c
e
 r

a
te

s
 o

f 
P
e
rs

is
te

n
t 

A
b
s
e
n
c
e
 (
8
5
%

 o
r 

le
s
s
) 
in

 p
ri
m

a
ry

, 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 a
n
d
 

a
ll
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

. 

6
B

.2
 

 C
o
m

p
a
re

 t
re

n
d
 

d
a
ta

 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 

tr
e
n
d
 o

f 
g
a
p
s
 t
o
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
, 

s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
r 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 a

n
d
 

lo
c
a
l 
c
o
m

p
a
ra

to
r 

H
o
S
I 

S
A
O

s
 

2
9

th
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
4
 

•
 

D
a
ta

 
tr
e
n
d
 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 

a
n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt
 f
o
rw

a
rd

e
d
 t
o
 

A
D

, 
D

M
T
 

•
 

A
D

 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

d
a
ta

 
a
n
d
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
v
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

fr
o
m

 H
o
S
I 

 
2
9

th
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
4
 

57



a
v
e
ra

g
e
. 

6
B

.3
 

 F
in

a
lis

e
 a

n
d
 

p
u
b
lis

h
 P

C
C

 
A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

P
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s
, 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

e
v
e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 a

ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 

H
o
S
I 

S
A
O

s
 

2
2

n
d
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 

•
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d
 c

ir
c
u
la

te
d
 

to
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 D

M
T
 

 

•
 

A
D

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 
2
9

th
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 

6
B

.4
 

 E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 

p
e
rs

is
te

n
t 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 r
a
te

s
 

a
s
 t
re

n
d
 d

a
ta

 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 s

c
h
o
o
l 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
ll
y
, 
a
n
d
 

p
la

c
e
 i
n
to

 r
a
n
k
 

o
rd

e
r 
(v

a
lid

a
te

d
 

R
a
is

e
o
n
lin

e
 a

s
 

d
a
ta

 p
ro

v
id

e
r)

. 

H
o
S
I 

S
A
O

s
 

2
9

th
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
4
 

•
 

D
a
ta

 t
re

n
d
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 

fo
r 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 
a
n
d
 

ra
n
k
e
d
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 

•
 

A
D

 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

d
a
ta

 
a
n
d
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
v
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

fr
o
m

 H
o
S
I 

 
2
9

th
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
4
 

6
B

.5
 

 T
a
rg

e
t 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

s
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
g
iv

e
n
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
g
re

a
te

s
t 
n
e
e
d
 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

 
fr
o
m

 r
a
n
k
in

g
 

ta
b
le

s
 6

B
.4

. 

H
o
S
I 

S
A
O

s
 

2
7

th
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
4
 

•
 

A
O

 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 
ta

rg
e
te

d
 

a
t 

a
re

a
s
 

o
f 

g
re

a
te

s
t 

n
e
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

 

•
 

A
D

 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 

d
e
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 

 
 

6
B

.6
 

 E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 c

it
y
-

w
id

e
 p

e
rs

is
te

n
t 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 
fo

r 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
. 

 

H
o
S
I 

S
A
O

s
 

2
7

th
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
4
 

•
 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 

a
n
d
 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 

to
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
L
C

M
 a

n
d
 D

M
T
 

•
 

A
D

 t
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 
fr
o
m

 H
o
S
I 

•
 

D
C

S
, 

D
M

T
 t

o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 

 
 

6
B

.7
 

 E
n
fo

rc
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
P
e
n
a
lt
y
 N

o
ti
c
e
s
 

fo
r 
P
e
rs

is
te

n
t 

A
b
s
e
n
c
e
 a

s
 p

e
r 

H
o
S
I 

S
A
O

s
 

2
2

n
d
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 

•
 

A
ll 

le
g
a
l 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 

a
n
d
 

u
s
e
d
 

a
s
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

th
e
 

u
s
e
 

o
f 

P
e
n
a
lt
y
 N

o
ti
c
e
s
 

•
 

A
D

 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

d
a
ta

 
a
n
d
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
v
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

fr
o
m

 H
o
S
I 

 
2
9

th
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 

58



A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

P
o
lic

y
 

6
B

.8
 

 M
o
n
it
o
r 
ra

te
 o

f 
is

s
u
in

g
 o

f 
P
e
n
a
lt
y
 N

o
ti
c
e
s
 

fo
r 
p
e
rs

is
te

n
t 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

e
v
a
lu

a
te

 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
p
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
. 

H
o
S
I 

S
A
O

s
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
J
u
ly

 
2
0
1
4
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
D

e
c
 

2
0
1
4
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
5
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
J
u
ly

 
2
0
1
5
 

•
 

D
a
ta

 r
e
 P

e
n
a
lt
y
 N

o
ti
c
e
s
 

is
 

c
o
lle

c
te

d
, 

c
o
lla

te
d
 

a
n
d
 
re

p
o
rt
e
d
 
a
t 

te
rm

ly
 

in
te

rv
a
ls

 

•
 

A
D

 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

d
a
ta

 
a
n
d
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
v
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

fr
o
m

 H
o
S
I 

 
 

6
B

.9
 

 M
o
n
it
o
r 
ta

rg
e
t 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 v
ia

 
A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

O
ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n
d
 a

ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 v
ia

 
R

a
is

e
o
n
lin

e
 

d
a
ta

 a
n
a
ly

s
is

 a
s
 

w
e
ll 

a
s
 

a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 d

a
ta

 
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

fo
rm

a
s
 t
o
 b

e
 

is
s
u
e
d
 a

n
d
 

c
o
lle

c
te

d
 t
e
rm

ly
 

fr
o
m

 a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 

H
o
S
I 

S
A
O

s
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
J
u
ly

 
2
0
1
4
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
D

e
c
 

2
0
1
4
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
5
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
J
u
ly

 
2
0
1
5
 

•
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 
v
 
ta

rg
e
ts

 
m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt
e
d
 

a
t 

te
rm

ly
 

in
te

rv
a
ls

 
to

 
A
D

, 
D

M
T
 

•
 

A
D

 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

d
a
ta

 
a
n
d
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
v
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

fr
o
m

 H
o
S
I 

 
 

6
B

.1
0
 

 M
o
n
it
o
r 
a
n
d
 

e
v
a
lu

a
te

 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 v

 
ta

rg
e
ts

 o
n
 a

 
te

rm
ly

 a
n
d
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
b
a
s
is

. 
   

H
o
S
I 

S
A
O

s
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
J
u
ly

 
2
0
1
4
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
D

e
c
 

2
0
1
4
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
5
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
J
u
ly

 
2
0
1
5
 

•
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 
v
 
ta

rg
e
ts

 
m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt
e
d
 

a
t 

te
rm

ly
 

in
te

rv
a
ls

 
to

 
A
D

, 
D

M
T
 

•
 

A
D

 
to

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

d
a
ta

 
a
n
d
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
v
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

fr
o
m

 H
o
S
I 

 
 

 
6
B

.1
1
 

 R
e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 

re
fr
e
s
h
 a

s
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 P
C

C
 

A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

P
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s
, 

H
o
S
I 

S
A
O

s
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
J
u
ly

 
2
0
1
5
 

•
 

P
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 

•
 

P
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s
 

re
fr
e
s
h
e
d
 w

h
e
re

 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 

•
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
L
C

M
, 
D

C
S
 

a
n
d
 D

M
T
 

•
 

A
D

 t
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 r

e
p
o
rt
s
 

a
n
d
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

fr
o
m

 H
o
S
I 

•
 

L
C

M
, 

D
C

S
, 

D
M

T
 

to
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

•
 

L
C

M
, 

D
C

S
, 

D
M

T
 

to
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 

re
fr
e
s
h
e
d
 

 
 

59



fo
llo

w
in

g
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 

p
o
lic

y
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s
 

 6
C

 
 R

e
d
u
c
e
 r

a
te

 o
f 

fi
x
e
d
 t
e
rm

 a
n
d
 

p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 f
ro

m
 

p
ri
m

a
ry

, 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 a
n
d
 

a
ll
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

. 

6
C

.1
 

 C
o
lla

te
 

a
n
d
 

in
te

rr
o
g
a
te

 
F
T
E

 
d
a
ta

 
o
n
 

a
 

h
a
lf
 

te
rm

ly
 b

a
s
is

. 
    

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P
u
p
il 

R
e
fe

rr
a
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
  

E
n
d
 

o
f 

J
u
ly

 
2
0
1
4
 
a
n
d
 
h
a
lf
 

te
rm

ly
 

th
e
re

a
ft
e
r 

•
 

E
a
rl
ie

r 
id

e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 

 
in

te
g
ra

te
d
 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

 •
 

M
o
re

 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

u
s
e
 

o
f 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

 •
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 
in

 
F
T
E
 
a
n
d
 

P
 E

x
 f

ro
m

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 a
n
d
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 
–
 

z
e
ro

 P
 E

x
c
 f
ro

m
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 
 •
 

S
h
a
ri
n
g
 o

f 
b
e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

fu
rt
h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

lo
c
a
l 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 

 •
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
, 

c
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 

p
u
p
ils

 
w

it
h
 

s
o
c
ia

l,
 

e
m

o
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
n
d
 

b
e
h
a
v
io

u
ra

l 
n
e
e
d
s
  
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 

a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

  
 R

e
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 S

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 a
n
d
 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 H
e
a
d
s
  

 
 

 
6
C

.2
  

 U
s
e
 

F
T
E
 

d
a
ta

 
a
n
a
ly

s
is

 a
s
 e

a
rl
y
 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

le
rt
  

a
n
d
 

ta
rg

e
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

to
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

, 
fa

m
ili
e
s
 

a
n
d
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

  
   

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P
u
p
il 

R
e
fe

rr
a
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

E
n
d
 

o
f 

J
u
ly

 
2
0
1
4
 
a
n
d
 
h
a
lf
 

te
rm

ly
 

th
e
re

a
ft
e
r 

•
 

D
a
ta

 
a
n
a
ly

s
is

 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

a
n
d
 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 

H
o
P
R

S
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 

to
 

D
C

S
, 

A
D

 
h
a
lf
 
te

rm
ly

 
b
e
g
in

n
in

g
 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
4
 

 Im
p
a
c
t 

re
p
o
rt
s
 

u
p
d
a
te

d
 

h
a
lf
 t
e
rm

ly
 t
h
e
re

a
ft
e
r 

 
 

 
6
C

.3
  

 E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 

n
e
w

 
B
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

P
a
n
e
l 

to
 

re
v
ie

w
 

a
ll 

c
a
s
e
s
 A

t 
R

is
k
 o

f 
P
e
rm

 
E
x
c
 

a
n
d
 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P
u
p
il 

R
e
fe

rr
a
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

E
n
d
 

o
f 

S
e
p
t 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

P
a
n
e
l 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
, 

w
it
h
 

T
o
R

 
a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 

H
o
P
R

S
 t
o
 r

e
p
o
rt
 t
e
rm

ly
 t
o
 

A
D

 
re

g
a
rd

in
g
 
v
o
lu

im
e
 
o
f 

c
a
s
e
s
 

a
n
d
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

o
f 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 

 
 

60



 

ta
rg

e
t 

in
te

g
ra

te
d
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

  
 

 
6
C

.4
  

 F
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 

c
o
re

 
a
n
d
 

s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

tr
a
in

in
g
 

a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
o
ff
e
r 

to
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P
u
p
il 

R
e
fe

rr
a
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

O
c
t 

2
0
1
4
 
a
n
d
 

o
n
g
o
in

g
  

•
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 o

ff
e
r 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 

•
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 o

ff
e
re

d
 t
o
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 

•
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
c
c
e
p
t 
tr
a
in

in
g
 

•
 

F
T
E
 a

n
d
 P

E
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 

H
o
P
R

S
 t
o
 r

e
p
o
rt
 t
e
rm

ly
 t
o
 

A
D

 r
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 m

a
d
e
 a

n
d
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 

 
 

61



62

This page is intentionally left blank



CREATING OPPORTUNITIES AND TACKLING 
INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 7 

14 JULY 2014 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Executive Director of Children’s Services                                        
 
Contact Officer(s) – Jonathan Lewis – Assistant Director (Education, Resources and Corporate 
Property) 
Contact Details – jonathan.lewis@peterborough.gov.uk / 01733 863912 
 

DRAFT SCHOOL ORGANISATION PLAN 2014/15 – DELIVERING LOCAL PLACES 
FOR LOCAL CHILDREN 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to outline to the Scrutiny Committee the proposal around meeting 

the statutory requirement for school places in Peterborough.  The report draws together the 
latest demographic data, the capital programme and identifies the need for further school 
places.   It is the second iteration of the School Organisation Plan with the previous version 
being considered by the committee in April 2013.   
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

2.1 The committee is asked to consider the draft plan and ask for any further information or 
clarification.   
 

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY  
 

3.1 Single Delivery Plan - Programme 1 – Creating jobs through growth and improved skills and 
education. 
 

4. BACKGROUND 
  
4.1 The production of a School Organisation Plan was previously a statutory requirement for Local 

Authorities to produce to outline how they meet their legal requirement to provide school places.  
Given the high profile nature of meeting this requirement in Peterborough, this document was 
revived to support the planning and transparency of school places in Peterborough.  It was 
noted in the Ofsted inspection of School Improvement that Peterborough had effective 
processes for school place planning.   

  
5. KEY ISSUES 
  
5.1 The updated School Organisation Plan is outlined in appendix 1. 
  
6. IMPLICATIONS 

 
6.1 The School Organisation Plan will outline the application of the capital programme for schools 

to meet growth.  Individual decisions on schemes will be covered through the Cabinet Member 
decision notice.  The School Organisation Plan sets out the City Council’s strategy for 
managing the school estate and delivering school places for the next five years.  It will be a 
Supplementary Planning Document to the adopted Core Strategy and will support the process 
of developer contributions and the Council’s medium term financial strategy.   
 
 
 

63



7. CONSULTATION 
 

7.1 The document is a fluid document which is updated when new information is forthcoming.  
Alongside the committee, schools will also be consulted on the proposals before being finalised.  
However, the document will continue to be updated annually to reflect how the pressures are 
being met.   
 

8. NEXT STEPS 
 

8.1 Following feedback from the committee and schools, a final response document will be 
produced to outline the detailed changes proposed.   
 

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

9.1 None 
 

10. APPENDICES 
 

10.1 Appendix 1 – School Organisation Plan 2014-2019 
 

 

64



 

 
 
 

School Organisation Plan 
2014 -19 

 

“Delivering Local 
Places for Local 

Children” 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Revision Date – June 2015 

 

65



 2 

SECTION A – BACKGROUND  
 
1. Legislation 

 
The local authority has a statutory duty to provide school places under the 1944 Education Act 
and subsequent legislation. This duty remains with the local authority even with the increasing 
diversity of provision that is developing.  In 2012 the Cabinet Member for Education, Skills and 
University requested that a school organisation plan should be written to reflect the rapidly 
changing situation in Peterborough.  This was completed in April 2013.  The current document is 
the first revision. 
 
2. Scope of the Plan 
 
1. The current position as at June 2014 
 
2. Processes of school place planning  

 
3. Planning area profiles 
 
4. City growth issues and other external issues  

 
5. Funding 
 
6. Admissions  

 
7. Summary of actions and conclusion 
 
The main plan is followed by a series of annexes: 
 
Annex 1 Demographic data  
 
Annex 2 Types of schools 
 
Annex 3 Statement on academies and free schools 
 
Annex 4 Legislation 

 
Annex 5 Pupil yields from housing developments 
 
Annex 6 Indicative costs of school places 
 
Annex 7  Ethnicity data 

66



 3 

, 
SECTION B – THE PLAN 

 
1. Current position as at June 2014 and summary of changes since April 2013 

 
Population Expansion 
 
Since the 2013 plan was published works have been completed to create an additional 1170 
primary places.  These are not all required as yet but are part of the overall strategy of ensuring 
sufficient places are available as the rapidly increasing Reception cohorts move through primary 
education.  The City of Peterborough Academy, which will ultimately offer 180 places per year 
group has opened for Year 7 students.  
 
This increase is needed as Peterborough is the fastest growing city in the UK, with the second 
highest private sector employment growth at 5.5%. The birthrate is the second highest in the 
country which combines with the second highest rate of ‘in-year’ school admissions – those 
outside the normal admissions rounds of starting primary or secondary school. Between October 
2012 and October 2013 there was an overall increase in pupil numbers of 1,013.  Between 1 April 
2009 and 31 March 2013 there was a net increase of 3,329 new dwellings in the city.  This covers 
a period of recession and low growth.  There are planning permissions in place for over 8,000 
further dwellings that have not yet been started. It is anticipated that as the economy recovers the 
rate of house building will increase. 

 
The 2011 census showed that the total Peterborough population had increased from 156,072 to 
183,631 since 2001.  Over that period the total number of dwellings increased by 8708 and the 
overall school population increased by 1610, only 18 new pupils per 100 new dwellings.  In 
practice the pupil yield from new housing was higher than this would suggest but the school 
population in established areas of the city was declining. Between 2011 and 2013 the number of 
dwellings increased by a further 1513 but the overall pupil numbers by 2232, 147 new pupils per 
100 dwellings.  Up to 2011 the pupil number growth could be mainly attributed to an expanding 
housing stock, since then the school population has risen at a much faster rate, as new families 
have moved into areas that previously had a relatively elderly population.  
 

 

P
ri

m
a

ry
 p

u
p

il
s 

S
e

co
n

d
a

ry
 p

u
p

il
s 

T
o

ta
l 

P
e

te
rb

o
ro

u
g

h
 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 

In
cr

e
a

se
d

 d
w

e
ll

in
g

s 

si
n

ce
 2

0
0

1
 

P
ri

m
a

ry
  

in
cr

e
a

se
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
 n

e
w

 d
w

e
ll

in
g

s 

S
e

co
n

d
a

ry
  
in

cr
e

a
se

 p
e

r 

1
0

0
 n

e
w

 d
w

e
ll

in
g

s 

2001 15,688 12,889 156,072    

2011 16,432 13,579 183,631    

Increase 2001-2011 744 690 27,559 8708   

% increase 4.74 5.35 17.66  8.54 7.92 

        

January 2014 18,409 13,822 187,100 10,221   

        

Increase 2001-2014 2721 933 31,028  25.85 8.13 

% increase 17.34 7.24 19.88    

     

Since 

2011   

Increase  2011-2014 1977 243 3469 1513 125.45 9.32 

% increase 12 1.79 1.51    

67



 4 

 
 
Between 2006 and 2014 most of the rise has been to primary pupil numbers, particularly in the 
Reception cohort.  There has been little change to secondary student numbers.  
 

 
 
 

 Reception All Primary Year 7 Year 7 - 11 

2012 actual 2875 17524 2215 11288 

2013 actual 2898 18330 2209 11264 

% Difference +0.8 +4.59 -0.28 -0.12 

 
Comparing the April 2013 forecast with the October 2013 census return shows: 
 

 Reception All Primary Year 7 Year 7 - 11 

Forecast 3074 18969 2210 11380 

Actual 2898 18330 2209 11264 

% Difference -5.7 - 3.37 -0.45 -1.02 

 
The Year 7 forecast was accurate but the take up of Reception places was lower than anticipated.  
NHS data showed a cohort for 2013 of 3119 but only 92.9% were in school for the October 
census return.  By February 2014 that number had risen to 2934 and previous experience 
suggests some pupils will not start school until September 2014 as the youngest in the cohort are 
not obliged to be in school until then.  The overall school totals suggest that the in-year increases 
to cohorts are not as high as forecast.  However, pupil mobility remains very high, both through 
pupils moving within the city and new arrivals replacing pupils who have moved away.  
 
The Peterborough mainstream school population has increased over the past few years as 
follows: 
 

 January 
2006 

January 
2009 

January 
2010 

January 
2011 

October 
2013 

Change since 
2006 

Primary 15,067 15,389 15,578 15,900 18,330 + 21.65%  

Secondary 13190 13,230 13,402 13,499 13681 3.7% 

Total  28,257 28,619 28,980 29,399 32,011 + 13.28% 

68



 5 

 
This table shows that the majority of the increase has been at primary school level, within the 
primary sector the biggest growth has been in Reception pupils, up by 40.74% - details of current 
figures and future projections are in Annex 1.  There is no evidence in previous data of cohorts 
reducing as they progress through the year groups.  The birth rate is known to be rising so the 
overall school population will be rising each year for the foreseeable future.  
 
Analysis of the increase in primary pupil numbers shows that the majority of the increase comes 
from the rising number of Reception pupils rather than increases to cohorts that are already in 
school.  The average increase to existing primary cohorts between October 2012 and October 
2013 was 1.04% – with the greatest growth (2.48%) between Reception and Year 1 which can 
partly be accounted for by pupils not starting school until they are of compulsory age.  This rate of 
cohort increase is significantly lower – less than half – than that reported in the 2013 School 
Organisation Plan.  

 
The secondary school population growth has been fairly static recently.  The total Year 7 – Year 
11 group has risen by 1.13% between January 2006 and October 2013.  Numbers of Year 7 
pupils are forecast to rise to 3252 in 2021.  Pressures are starting to develop and will increase. 
The table below shows how cohort sizes are increasing year on year.  
 

 
 
The next two graphs show how the growth in Reception numbers is forecast to slow slightly while 
the increase in primary pupils overall will continue as the smaller cohorts higher up primary 
schools are replaced by the larger Reception ones.   

 

69



 6 

 
 

 
 
 
The increase in the participation age will oblige young people to be in education, employment or 
training up to the age of 18.  The current post-16 capacity in secondary schools is about 3,000.  
The latest available data (October 2013) shows 2530 post-16 students, 74 of whom attend 
special schools. About 13% of post 16 students in school come from outside the Peterborough 
area.    Schools currently offer predominantly A-level (NVQ level 3) courses, usually requiring 
students to have achieved at least 5 GCSEs at A* - C.  There are many young people for whom 
an academic sixth form in school is not appropriate.  It is likely that the increased provision for the 
raised participation age will be in the form of college placements and apprenticeships and that the 
current school provision will be sufficient for the next ten years. 
 
While the majority of pupils with special educational needs, including those with statements, can 
be provided for in mainstream schools, some children and young people need the additional 
facilities offered by special schools.  In 2008 there were 364 pupils attending Peterborough 
special schools 1.27% of the total school population, in October 2013 that number had risen to   
534 – 1.62% of the total.  This is mainly as result of earlier diagnosis and higher premature birth 
survival rates.  As the overall pupil population increases the number of special school places 
required will also rise.  There has been an increase in the number of children diagnosed with 

70



 7 

autistic spectrum disorders requiring special education, which is likely to continue.  The capacity 
of existing special schools has been increased by extension works at Heltwate and provision of 
mobile classrooms at The Phoenix and Marshfields.  A new free special school (supporting needs 
on the autistic spectrum), The City of Peterborough Academy Special School, opened in 
September 2012.  53 children and young people are presently placed in special schools outside 

the local authority at forecast total cost for 2014/2015 of £2.8m. While there will always be a 

need for some placements because of particular needs that cannot be met within the local 
authority, an increase in places at Peterborough schools would be both cost effective and of 
benefit to those children and young people who can be educated nearer to home.  Work is 
starting to develop a project to expand capacity at The Phoenix School as the use of mobiles is 
not viable in the long term.   We are also experiencing increases in numbers in our Pupil Referral 
Unit and a longer term plan is needed around both quality of accommodation and numbers.   
 
Mobility 
 
The 2012-13 cohort of Year 6 pupils was 2207 at the 2013 spring census. When they started in 
2006 in Reception the cohort was 2100 – an increase of 5%.  Analysis of previous census data 
shows 74% of these Year 6 pupils started their school career at a Peterborough school.  Of the 
remainder, 4 - 5 % joined each academic year. However, the overall cohort increase of only 5% 
over the seven years is explained by over 400 children moving out of the city.  Of the 1699 who 
completed their entire primary career in Peterborough schools, 1324 were in the same school all 
through, 375 changed school at least once.  This has an impact on standards; the RSA report of 
2013, Between the Cracks, estimates the effect of each change of school as equivalent to the 
loss of one term’s worth of progress.   
 
The admissions team received an average of 119 in-year applications per week during the 
autumn term 2013. Of these, 58% were new to Peterborough schools, the remainder were 
families trying to change their child’s school place, either because of moving house or because 
the initial allocation made to them was not what they wanted.  As the number or spare places 
reduces there is less choice, leading to more families not getting the school they want and further 
mobility as they try to change their child’s school. 

 
The secondary school population was less mobile.  The 2012-13 cohort of Year 11 pupils was 
2226 at the 2013 spring census. When they started in 2008 in Year 7 the cohort was 2218 – an 
increase of only 0.35%.  Of the 2226, 89%  (1981)  started Year 7 in a Peterborough school.  The 
cohort therefore gained 245 pupils new to Peterborough and lost 235 pupils who moved away.  Of 
the 1981 who completed their entire Y7-Y11 career in Peterborough schools, 1803 were in the 
same school all through, 423 changed school at least once. 63% of students were in 
Peterborough schools from Reception through to Year 11.  83 students had attended more than 
three Peterborough schools by the time they were in Year 11. 
 

71



 8 

 
 
 
In spite of place pressures, the majority of families still get their first choice school places. 88% of 
on time applicants for September 2014 Reception places were allocated their first choice, with 
only 3.7% being directed to a school for which they had not expressed a preference.  The 
equivalent figures for Year 7 places were 81% and 8%.  The table below shows that 
Peterborough’s performance at Reception level is in line with national averages but fewer Year 7 
applicants achieve their first choice despite there being relatively more capacity at Year 7. 
 

  Y
R

 f
ir

st
 p

re
fe

re
n

ce
 

Y
R

 a
n

y
 p

re
fe

re
n

ce
 

Y
7

 f
ir

st
 p

re
fe

re
n

ce
 

Y
7

 a
n

y
 p

re
fe

re
n

ce
 

Peterborough 88 96.3 81 92 

Nationally 87.7 96.8 85.2 95.5 

 
 

72



 9 

Recent Expansion 
 
An additional 438 Reception Year places have been created over the past five years.  These are 
permanent places and the schools will expand year by year until the increased PAN applies 
across all year groups.  Temporary places (bulge years) have also been created where the 
increase is limited to a specific cohort.  Since the 2013 plan the following works have been 
completed or are on site: 
 

School Scheme 
PAN  
Increase 

Extra 
Places 

 
 
Year 

 
Cost 
Estimate 

Queen’s Drive 2 classroom extension 20 60 2013 £1.3M 

Abbotsmede 2 classroom extension 15 105 2013 £300K 

Old Fletton 
Conversion of former 
children’s home 15 105 

 
2013 

 
£750K 

Hampton Vale 6 classroom extension 30 210 2013 £2.7M 

All Saints New primary school KS1 180 2013 £6.4M 

Bishop Creighton Bulge class  30 2013 £100K 

Hampton College 
Primary phase (excludes 
community facilities) 60 420 

2013 £6M 

City of 
Peterborough 
Academy New secondary school  180 900 

 
 

2013 

 
 

£13M 

Orton Wistow  
Expansion to 2FE using 
S106 funding 15 105 

 
2014 

 
£1.2M 

Gladstone 
Detached extension to 
Gladstone Primary School 60 420 

 
2014 

 
£8M 

Woodston 1 FE extension 30 210 2014 £2.5M 

Thomas Deacon 
Academy KS 2 accommodation 90 360 

2014 £7m 

Fulbridge Detached extension 30 210 2015 £3M 

Ravensthorpe Increase to 2 FE 30 210 2015 £3.5M 

 
 
Early Years Education 
 
Under the Childcare Act of 2006 Local authorities are required to secure sufficient early years 
education and childcare.  This includes an entitlement to 570 hours of free early education per 
year for eligible two-year-olds, starting the funding period following their second birthday; and all 
three and four-year olds, staring the funding period following their third birthday. This entitlement 
must be taken over no fewer than 38 weeks, which equates to an average of 15 hours a week.  
Peterborough mainly fulfils this obligation via the private and voluntary sector, there is only one 
nursery school in Peterborough and five primary schools include nursery provision. 
 
Between the 2001 and 2011 censuses the 0-4 population grew by 36%.  Current evidence is that 
this growth is continuing, with an academic year cohort of 3221 one year olds identified in August 
2013. 
 
The eligibility of two year olds to receive free early years education is assessed based on parental 
income.  Peterborough data suggests that 54% of two year olds will be eligible in September 
2014, up to 1545 children.  By this time the total number of registered places for 0-4 year olds will 
be: 
 
 
 

73



 10 

 

Provider type Number of settings Number of registered  
places 

Childminder 197 615 

Day nursery 38 2,249 

Maintained nursery school/unit 6 213 

Nursery unit of independent school 1 56 

Pre-school playgroup 67 2,301 

Total 308 5,434 

 
Assessments of the sufficiency of Early Years places shows potential shortfalls in Dogsthorpe, 
East, Eye and Thorney, Fletton, North, Orton Longueville, Orton with Hampton, Park, Paston, 
Ravensthorpe and Walton wards.   
 
Grant funding is available for providers who increase the number of places available for two year 
olds.  The council is encouraging providers to apply from areas of potential shortage.  

  
Peterborough Schools 

 
The following table details the number and types of schools within each phase with effect 
from 1 April 2014. (see Annex 2 for an explanation of the different types of schools) 

 

T
yp

e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

V
ol

un
ta

ry
 

C
on

tr
ol

le
d 

V
ol

un
ta

ry
 

A
id

ed
 

F
ou

nd
at

io
n 

A
ca

de
m

y 

F
re

e 
S

ch
oo

l 

T
ot

al
 

Nursery 1      1 

Infant 3      3 

Junior 1  1    2 

Primary 31 5 6 1 9  52 

All through 
schools 

1    1  2 

Secondary 1  1 1 6 1 10 

Special 4     1 5 

PRU 3      3 

Totals 45 5 8 2 16 2 78 

 
The main change over the past year has been in the number of primary academies.  By 
September 2014 there will be 10 primary academies, three convertor academies, one with the 
Elliott Foundation Academy Trust, one with the Ormiston Academy Trust, three with Greenwood 
Academies Trust, one with Cambridge Meridian Academy Trust and one with the Diocese of Ely.  
More are expected to follow this route.  The council’s statement on academies and free schools is 
set out in annex 3. 

 
The availability of places for September 2014 will be: 

74



 11 

 

Type Published Admission 
Numbers 

Total capacity 

Nursery   

Junior 165 660 

Primary 2845 18,625 

Secondary (11-16) 2647 12,385 

Post-16  2,735 

Special (actual numbers)  534  

PRU (actual numbers)  178 

Totals  35,837 

 
The capacity of each school is calculated using the government’s net capacity methodology.  This 
calculates the total number of pupils a school can physically accommodate and the indicated 
admission number (IAN) that derives from it.  It is based on the number and type of teaching 
spaces, with different formulae for primary and secondary schools.  It does not apply to special 
schools.  The net capacity is no longer used for admission appeals but helps to determine the 
published admission number (PAN) in discussion with schools and still forms the basis of the 
SCAP (capacity) return to the Department for Education.   
 
There are two independent schools in the Peterborough City Council area, The Peterborough 
School offering 365 places from age 4 to 18 and The Iqra Academy registered for 205 places for 
girls aged 11 to 16 but with 68 on roll in 2014.  The school has been granted permission to extend 
its age range to include post 16 students.  
 
About 1400 pupils from outside the City Council area attend Peterborough schools – about 4.3% 
of the total school population.  (This includes those living in Yaxley for whom Stanground College 
is their catchment school).  Lincolnshire reports 340 Peterborough pupils being taught in 
Lincolnshire, 58 at primary, 278 at secondary and 4 at special schools. Cambridgeshire had 147 
primary and 116 secondary in October 2013. 
 
There is currently a proposal to establish a University Technical College (UTC) on the 
Peterborough Regional College site with a view to opening by September 2015.  The Greater 
Peterborough UTC will support pupils aged from 14 to 19 years with entry points at 14 (Year 10) 
or 16 (Year 12) focusing on enhancing opportunities for them to develop the technical and 
employability skills to support key local employment sectors such as sustainable manufacturing 
and engineering, biosciences and computing.  At maximum capacity the student numbers will 
total 500, 200 places for Key Stage 4 for Years 10 and 11 and 300 for Key Stage 5 for Year 12 
and Year 13.  Admissions arrangements are being finalised and the impact on school place 
planning is being monitored and will be reported in the next school organisation plan.   
 
Catchment areas 

 
For primary pupils the entire local authority is divided into school catchment areas.  Under 
admissions criteria in-catchment pupils get priority over others, apart from those who are in care.  
In addition to the schools with catchments, All Saints CE, Sacred Heart RC and St Thomas More 
RC admit pupils on faith grounds and do not have designated catchments. 

 
Most of the local authority area is covered by secondary school catchment areas but the central 
area, east of Lincoln Road, is not.  The Thomas Deacon Academy, City of Peterborough 
Academy, St John Fisher RC and The King’s School CE are all in this geographical area.  The 
Thomas Deacon Academy admits on the basis of ability banding and then proximity; City of 
Peterborough admits on the basis of having attended a primary school within the area; the other 
two schools admit on faith grounds.  
 

75



 12 

The vast majority of young people in Peterborough are allocated to their first preference school, 
88% for 2014 Reception pupils and 81% for 2014 Year 7 students. Analysis of October 2013 
census data showed that 55% of primary pupils were attending their catchment school and 44% 
of secondary students. This suggests that many families are opting for a school other than their 
catchment school and that in many cases the authority is able to meet that preference. These 
figures are based on young people attending Peterborough schools only as we do not have data 
on individuals resident in Peterborough but attending other local authority schools or independent 
schools.  
 
Of the secondary schools, Hampton College has the highest percentage of in-catchment pupil 
and Ken Stimpson the lowest.   
 
For primary schools, Hampton College, Hampton Hargate and Hampton Vale, which share a 
catchment, and Wittering Primary School have the highest number of in-catchment pupils in 
school, above 90%, and Werrington the lowest at below 30%.  Werrington takes 74% of the 
pupils living in its catchment area but has many more places than needed for in-catchment 
children.  
 
The charts below show the percentages of young people resident in each catchment area 
attending that school and the percentage of in-catchment pupils out of each school’s total roll.  
 

 

76



 13 

 

 
 

77



 14 

Diversity 
 
The 2011 census showed an increase in the total Peterborough population from 156,072 to 
183,631 but the number of residents defining themselves as white British decreased by about 
3500.  The proportion of residents from a minority ethnic background increased from 13% to 
29.1%.  In 2001 the largest single minority ethnic group was Pakistani heritage at 4.5% of the 
population.  By 2011 this had risen to 6.6% but the largest minority group was ‘other whites’ at 
10.6% - up from 2.7% in 2001.  While this term includes many different groups, the main reason 
for the increase was the impact of arrivals from the states that joined the European Union in 2004 
and whose nationals were eligible to work in the UK from 2007.   
 
From January 1 this year Romanian and Bulgarian nationals have been eligible to work in the UK.  
It is too early to judge how this will affect the demand for school places in Peterborough but 
evidence so far nationally is that there has not been a major increase in the number of people 
moving from those countries.  
 
Croatia joined the European Union on 1 July 2013.  For a transitional period of up to seven years 
Croatian nationals will need authorisation to work in the UK.  Negotiations are in place with 
Iceland, Macedonia, Montenegro, Serbia and Turkey.  A similar transition period is likely before 
nationals of any of these countries will have the right to work freely in the UK but there is likely to 
be an eventual impact.  
 
As well as an increasingly ethnically diverse population, Peterborough also has a young 
population.  The overall population increased by 16.6% between 2001 and 2011 but the 0-4 age 
group increased by 36.3%.   
 
The chart below shows the largest ethnic groupings plus the total minority ethnic pupil population 
in 2012 and 2013.  Annex 7 shows the total current ethnic make-up of the school population and 
how it has changed over the past year. 

 

 
 
 

78



 15 

2. Processes of School Place Planning 
 
The basis of school place planning is to achieve a balance between the number of places 
available and the pupils for whom they are required.  The local authority has a statutory duty to 
provide sufficient places without having surpluses as they are not cost effective.  In Peterborough 
the main issue is shortfalls leading to families being unable to access places at their local or 
preferred school.   
 
Demographic forecasts and preferences on admission applications are used to anticipate where 
the greatest pressures will be. The major limiting factors on increasing school places are funding 
and land availability. There has to be sufficient time built into the forward planning process.  
Typically a new build can take two years to complete from start to finish and an extension around 
12 -15 months. 
 
Peterborough’s policy has been to avoid long term use of mobiles wherever possible.  They will 
be used as a short term solution either as a bulge year (expansion for one specific year cohort 
without affecting the overall admission number) while a more permanent extension is built.  The 
local authority aspires to achieve high quality learning environments for all pupils.  There are a 
number of issues associated with using mobiles other than for short term deployment, including 
limited planning permission and suitable location on a school site.  
 
Because of the overall growth strategy for the city, the local authority anticipates that the 
increased pupil numbers will continue.  Expansion by one or two forms of entry, with the school 
expanding year on year as pupils progress through the school and a permanent build is therefore 
the preferred solution.   

 
The only new schools that can now be opened are academies or free schools, which are 
effectively the same.  The majority of secondary schools in Peterborough are already academies.  
As the increased cohorts progress through school and pressures increase at secondary level, 
working with academies will be essential to achieve sufficient capacity.  
 
Academies receive their funding direct from central government.  Academies remain an essential 
part of the overall school provision and as the local authority has the duty to provide sufficient 
school places there needs to be close co-operation.  Capacity is being increased at Fulbridge 
Academy and The Thomas Deacon Academy is being expanded to include Key Stage 2 Pupils.  
Funding for the Fulbridge scheme is from the Targeted Basic Need Funding, supplemented from 
council’s capital programme and for The Thomas Deacon scheme is entirely from the capital 
programme. West Town Primary converted to academy status from 1 June 2014.  It is scheduled 
for rebuild and expansion under the Priority Schools Building Programme, with additional funding 
coming from the capital programme.   
 
The Department for Education has recently published a scorecard for Local Authorities which 
covers where investment has been made and the Ofsted judgements of those schools which 
have been expanded.  Peterborough focus is to create places in the areas which need them most 
but due regard is taken to the schools educational position and their capacity to expand and will 
only agree expansion where it will not impact upon the education of the pupils in those schools.  
Where options exist, we would look to expand schools which are rated by Ofsted as being ‘Good’ 
or ‘Outstanding’ as our first preference.   

79



 16 

 
3. Planning Area Profiles 

 
The planning areas used in the summaries below are groups of school catchments, as used for 
the School Capacity Survey (SCAP) annual return to the Department for Education.  They are 
based on geographical proximity with areas divided by physical barriers such as the river, the 
railway and major roads.    
 
These areas are –  
 

1. Central  
2. North  
3. West  
4. Ortons  
5. Stanground  
6. Fletton/Woodston  
7. Hampton 
8. Rural areas 

 
3.1 Central 
 

 
 
Primary forecast – based on admitting up to capacity 
 

School 
Year 

4 year 
olds Year R Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 

2013/14 1002 781 826 797 708 695 655 637 

2014/15 1013 880 816 834 814 705 694 659 

2015/16 1024 880 885 822 836 817 706 696 

2016/17 1090 885 885 885 836 837 824 706 

80



 17 

2017/18 997 869 885 885 900 840 838 828 

 
 
This is the area of the city with the highest birth rate and the most mobile population.  It covers 
the Central, East, Park, Dogsthorpe and North wards which between them saw a population 
increase of 9968 between the 2001 and 2011 census, an average of 25.4%.  It has the highest 
level of inward migration and the greatest pressure for school places.  All schools are on tight 
urban sites and none would be easy to extend.   
 
A consequence of the mobile population and close proximity of schools is a relatively low 
percentage of pupils attending their catchment schools, 48.2% at primary level.   The chart below 
shows the figures for the various schools, the position is further complicated by the presence of 
two schools, St Thomas More and All Saints, which admit on the basis of faith and parental 
preference rather than catchment.  
 

 
 
 
Primary Schools  
 
At the October 2013 census date there were 16 available places in reception classes in this area 
but other classes were over capacity by a total of two, leaving a net surplus of 14.  Pupil numbers 
are constantly changing, effectively all the schools are full in all year groups, apart from a small 
amount of capacity in Years 4, 5 and 6.  
 
The former All Saints Junior School has now been rebuilt as an all through primary school,   
Queens Drive Infants has been expanded to become a full three form entry infant school by a 
remodelling providing two additional classrooms. 
  
A new block is under construction at Thomas Deacon Academy to facilitate an extension of age 
range at Thomas Deacon Academy to take three forms of entry for key stage 2 from September 
2014.  This will be the key stage 2 destination for most of the Queen’s Drive pupils as All Saints 
will no longer be available to them.   
 

81



 18 

Fulbridge Academy is expanding by an additional form of entry to give an overall capacity of 840.  
This is being achieved by a detached extension on the former Belvedere Bowls Club site.  Works 
are scheduled for completion in January 2015 but the academy has taken in additional Year 1 
pupils and will increase its PAN for the whole of Key Stage 1 from September 2014. Part of the 
funding is coming from a successful Targeted Basic Need Programme bid.  Gladstone Primary 
School is doubling in size with a detached extension, reception numbers will increase to 120 from 
September 2014. 
 
The current numbers on roll and projected capacity situation for 2016 are as below.   
 

School NOR Capacity 
(2016) 

 

Reception 
PAN 

(2016) 

2016 in 
catchment 
4 year olds 

2016 
surplus / 
shortfall 

Abbotsmede 367 420 60 134 -74 

All Saints 397 420 60 N/A 60 

Bishop Creighton 221 210 30 57 -27 

Dogsthorpe Infant 267 270 90 103 -13 

Dogsthorpe Junior 350 360  N/A  

Fulbridge 657 840 120 208 -88 

Gladstone 443 840 120 119 1 

Newark Hill 473 420 60 64 -4 

Parnwell 282 315 45 68 -23 

Queen’s Drive 244 270 90 135 -45 

St Thomas More 407 420 60 N/A 60 

The Beeches 617 630 90 120 -30 

Thomas Deacon 
Academy (Key Stage 2) 

N/A 360   N/A  

Welland 280 420 60 82 -22 

Total 5005 6195 885 1090 -205 

 
Working on the basis of a 97% take up rate of places by in catchment four year olds, there will be 
a need for an additional 172 places for children already resident in the area – equivalent to six 
new reception classes.  Some of these children will be accommodated out of the central area but 
numbers are rising across the city reducing this potential.  
 
Secondary Schools 
 
The secondary schools in this area are The Thomas Deacon Academy, The King’s School,  St 
John Fisher and the new City of Peterborough Academy Free School which opened in September 
2013.  The combined Year 7 PAN of these schools will be 693.  These schools do not use 
catchment areas, although pupils to the west of Lincoln Road in the Gladstone primary catchment 
are in Jack Hunt secondary catchment and those living in the Beeches primary catchment are in 
Voyager.  The King’s School takes 85% of its pupils from outside the central area, including 39% 
from other local authorities. St John Fisher takes 77% of its pupils from PE1.  67% of students 
living in the area attend secondary schools located in PE1 with a further 20% at The Voyager and 
Jack Hunt. 
 
Examination of total numbers of pupils resident in the PE1 area shows cohorts will rise as follows.  
Although there appears to be a reduction in cohort size for the current reception cohort, this group 
will increase because children of this age are not legally required to be in school.  
 

Current Year Group Y6 Y5 Y4 Y3 Y2 Y1 YR 

Starting Y7 in 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Total PE1 residents 752 753 799 816 917 925 888 

82



 19 

 
Growth 
 
The City Centre Area Action Plan (CCAAP) is proposing around 700 additional dwellings in the 
City Core Policy Area – bordered by Bourges Boulevard, Bright Street, Stanley Recreation 
Ground and St John’s Street – and 510-610 in the Fengate South development.  The central 
school place planning area extends well beyond the remit of the CCAAP.  Under the local site 
allocations plan 290 dwellings are proposed for the former John Mansfield sites and 166 for the 
Millfield district centre. The type of housing is not yet known but, based on Peterborough’s 
formula, a primary pupil yield of 600 and 11-16 year old of 463 could be expected.  If all this 
development takes place it will be over a long period but without additional school provision it will 
not be viable.  
 
Cohort increases from inward migration and housing expansion make it probable that there will be 
shortfall in higher year groups in this area.  Fulbridge is increasing its admission number to 120 
across the whole of Key Stage 1 from September 2014. 
 
Future Action 
 
The 2013 School Organisation Plan proposed expansion at Gladstone and Fulbridge.  As 
reported above, these works are now being undertaken. The demographic data shows that, even 
without expansion of the housing stock, there will still be a shortfall in both primary and secondary 
school places.  Further schemes need to be identified, including the possibility of expanding 
popular and successful schools outside the PE1 area that would take out of catchment pupils. 
These plans will emerge as our demography forecasts are refined and spatial shortfalls are 
identified.   
 
 
3.2 North 
 

 
 

83



 20 

Primary forecast – based on admitting up to capacity 
 

School 
Year 

4 year 
olds Year R Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 

2013/14 423 427 417 430 386 378 380 337 

2014/15 449 441 438 422 428 388 381 381 

2015/16 449 446 450 441 426 430 393 383 

2016/17 414 450 450 450 442 431 433 395 

2017/18 412 434 450 450 450 444 434 435 

 
This area has a more settled population than the central area and there is still capacity at primary 
school level.  Overall the population increased by only 99 between the 2001 and 2011 census, 
although the population to the south rose and to the north declined.  There are higher pupil 
numbers to the south but the schools to the north are popular and many families choose to send 
their children to them.    
 
Primary Schools  
 
The area has benefited from two extension schemes which increased both Discovery and Paston 
Ridings to three form entry schools.  The Paston Ridings scheme is complete but the second 
phase of Discovery, to increase capacity in Key Stage 2, will be undertaken in 2014-15.   
 
The current numbers on roll and projected capacity situation in 2016 are as below.   
 

School NOR Capacity 
(2016) 

 

Reception 
PAN 

(2014) 

2016 in 
catchment 
4 year olds 

2016 
surplus / 
shortfall 

Discovery 490 630 90 97 -7 

Gunthorpe 371 420 60 76 -16 

Norwood 198 210 30 18 12 

Paston Ridings 490 630 90 108 -18 

Welbourne 165 210 30 42 -12 

Werrington 417 420 60 17 43 

William Law 624 630 90 56 34 

Total 2755 3150 450 414 36 

 
Working on the basis of a 97% take up rate of places by in catchment four year olds, there could 
be nearly 50 surplus places which could be used for out of catchment pupils.    
 
Secondary Schools 
 
The secondary schools in this area are The Voyager Academy and Ken Stimpson Community 
School.  There is currently capacity at both of them.  

 
Growth 
 
The new development at Paston Reserve will ultimately have its own schools (see below) but 
pupils from the first phase are in the catchment areas of Gunthorpe Primary School and The 
Voyager Academy.   
 
The local plan proposed 100 new dwellings for the Werrington district centre and a further 250 
across the area.  This could produce a further 88 primary age children plus 77 secondary age 
students.  These are likely to be accommodated within existing provision but this would then 
impact on the capacity to take out of catchment pupils. 
 

84



 21 

Future Action 
 
There is currently no need for further expansion but the situation will need reviewing if 
demographic forecasts show increases.  
 
3.3 West 
 

 
 
Primary forecast – based on admitting up to capacity 
 

School  
Year 

4 year 
olds Year R Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 

2013/14 503 450 460 445 412 409 399 392 

2014/15 544 474 455 469 445 416 414 402 

2015/16 507 523 495 459 475 445 417 416 

2016/17 542 540 540 495 459 478 446 419 

2017/18 473 510 540 540 495 461 479 451 

 
Primary Schools  
 
This area has a diverse population.  Thorpe and Longthorpe catchments have stable demography 
and Longthorpe takes many out of catchment children as the birthrate within it is very low.  West 
Town has a wide range of ethnic groups and many newly arrived migrant families.  Much of the 
rest of the area has former development corporation housing, which is relatively inexpensive, and 

85



 22 

a fairly mobile population.  The population of Ravensthorpe ward increased by 17.2% between 
the 2001 and 2011 censuses, but the overall increase for the area was 3.9%. 
 
The current numbers on roll and capacity situation in 2016 are as below.   

 

School NOR Capacity 
(2016) 

 

Reception 
PAN 

(2016) 

2016 in 
catchment 
4 year olds 

2016 
surplus / 
shortfall 

Eyrescroft 402 420 60 48 12 

Highlees 364 420 60 90 -30 

Longthorpe 418 420 60 29 31 

Middleton 318 420 60 92 -32 

Ravensthorpe 220 420 60 42 18 

Sacred Heart 209 210 30   30 

Thorpe 417 630 90 73 17 

Watergall 320 420 60 77 -17 

West Town 299 630 90 91 -1 

Totals 2967 3990 570 542 28 

 
Working on the basis of a 97% take up rate of places by in catchment four year olds, there will be 
a surplus of 15, which would provide some capacity for out of catchment pupils or higher than 
anticipated growth.   
 
Secondary Schools 
 
Jack Hunt covers the southern end of this planning area and also takes students from the 
Gladstone primary school catchment area in the city centre. Students from north Bretton are in 
The Voyager catchment area. Jack Hunt is effectively full and pupil demography shows it will 
continue to be so.  There is some capacity at The Voyager but this will not sufficient for the long 
term.  Pupils living in this area are within travelling distance of the new City of Peterborough 
Academy that will relieve some of the pressure.   
 
Growth 
 
An outline planning application for the former district hospital site will be submitted this year, this 
is likely to be for 350 dwellings. Construction has started on 156 dwellings at the Grange site and 
the local plan identifies 231 potential additional dwellings for Bretton Centre, 460 for the 
Freemans site and 200 for the station west opportunity area. 
 
The potential 490 primary age and 375 secondary age children and young people would further 
increase pressure in the area and require expansion.   

 
Future Action 
 
West Town has been accepted on to the Priority Schools Building Programme and will be rebuilt 
as a three form entry school on the former district hospital site, in a project that includes 
preservation of the memorial wing.  The anticipated opening date is September 2016. 
Ravensthorpe is being expanded to two form entry and will have an admission number of 60 from 
September 2014. 
 
Thorpe will be expanded to 3 forms of entry from September 2015. The scheme is currently being 
designed. 
 
 
 

86



 23 

 
 
3.4 Ortons 
 

 
 

 
Primary forecasts – based on admitting up to capacity 
 

School 
Year 

4 year 
olds Year R Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 

2013/14 307 303 331 297 297 294 281 259 

2014/15 315 302 324 337 296 298 294 281 

2015/16 319 335 315 338 337 297 299 295 

2016/17 311 345 345 315 339 339 298 299 

2017/18 290 323 345 345 315 346 338 299 

 
This area was developed during the new town expansion of Peterborough.  Schools in the area 
have also taken pupils from the Hampton development when there were too many to be 
accommodated there.  There was hardly any change to the population between the 2001 and 
2011 censuses. 
 
Primary Schools  
 
The current numbers on roll and projected capacity situation in 2016 are as over.   

87



 24 

 

School NOR Capacity 
(2016) 

 

Reception 
PAN 

(2016) 

2016 in 
catchment 
4 year olds 

2016surplus 
/ shortfall 

Braybrook 254 270 30 43 -13 

Leighton 386 420 60 54 6 

Ormiston Meadows 261 315 45 28 17 

Orton Wistow 321 420 60 25 35 

St Botolph’s 382 420 60 33 27 

St John’s 259 420 60 74 -14 

Winyates 199 210 30 54 -24 

Totals 2062 2475 345 311 34 

 
Working on the basis of 97% take up of Reception places, in 2016 there would be 44 spare 
Reception places for out of catchment pupils or if growth exceeds current expectations.  
 
Secondary Schools 
 
The area is divided into the catchments of Nene Park Academy and Ormiston Bushfield 
Academy, both schools having been rebuilt.  Ormiston is largely full but there is still some 
capacity at Nene Park Academy to accommodate increasing pupil numbers from September from 
2014. 
 
Growth 
 
The local plan identifies 600 potential new dwellings for the area.  Of these 330 are on the East of 
England showground site where construction has started and a further 210 in Alwalton.  There is 
S106 funding from the Showground development which is being used to increase capacity at 
Orton Wistow. The likely pupil yield from these dwellings is 210 primary pupils and 162 secondary 
students.    
 
Future Action 
 
St John’s Church School has been accepted on to the Priority Schools Building Programme and 
is being redeveloped as a two form entry primary school.  Orton Wistow is being expanded to two 
form entry with a four classroom extension, part funded by the East of England Showground S106 
agreement.  Braybrook has a double mobile, used for bulge reception classes in 2012 and 2013.  
Currently a permanent expansion to two forms of entry is not required but the situation will be 
reviewed if pupil forecasts suggest it is needed.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

88



 25 

3.5 Stanground 
 

 
 
Primary forecasts – based on admitting up to capacity 
 

School 
Year 

4 year 
olds Year R Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 

2013/14 154 203 190 158 162 148 150 126 

2014/15 182 180 200 196 161 165 148 149 

2015/16 179 180 180 210 202 166 168 149 

2016/17 182 180 180 180 210 203 169 170 

2017/18 194 180 180 180 180 210 208 171 

 
Until recently this was one of the more settled areas of the city, although the Heritage Park 
development was built in the late 20th century. There was a small increase (2.1%) in the 
population between the 2001 and 2011 censuses.  The new development south of Stanground, 
Cardea, has grown rapidly and attracted many families with young children.  In February 2014 the 
number of completed dwellings was calculated at 656, out of a total planning permissions of 
1650.  The October 2013 school census identified 122 primary school age children living on the 
development, although only 44 were attending the new St Michael’s primary school in Cardea 
which was part funded from a developer contribution. It is likely that the number of children on the 
development will have increased since October.  
 
Primary Schools  
 
The October 2013 numbers on roll and projected capacity situation in 2016 are as over.   

89



 26 

 

School NOR Capacity 
(2016) 

 

Reception 
PAN 

(2016) 

2016 in 
catchment 

4 year 
olds 

2016 
surplus / 
shortfall 

Heritage Park 209 210 30 29 1 

Oakdale 204 210 30 11 19 

St Michael’s 69 420 60 44 16 

Southfields 463 630 90 58 32 

Stanground St John 192 210 30 40 -10 

Totals 1137 1680 240 182 58 

 
The in-catchment four year olds figure is based on current residents.  The Cardea development is 
likely to continue rapid growth so the 2016 in-catchment four year olds figure are likely to have 
increased significantly by the time they start school.  The Stanground primary schools have until 
recently had spare capacity and attracted out of catchment pupils, this has helped to ease 
pressures elsewhere in the city but rising numbers in Stanground will make this less likely.   

  
Secondary Schools 
 
Stanground Academy has been rebuilt and will provide sufficient capacity for the next few years.   
Its catchment includes Yaxley and Farcet in Cambridgeshire. If the proposed additional 
secondary school for Hampton Gardens is built in conjunction with Cambridgeshire County 
Council it will free up places at Stanground for Peterborough students.  
 
Growth 
 
Sites have been identified for about 220 new dwellings in addition to those planned for Cardea.  
St Michael’s has been funded from S106 money to provide primary school places in the 
development and there was also a contribution towards the new Stanground Academy building.   
 
Future action 
 
There is land provision for a second phase at St Michael’s which can extend the intake to 60 but 
only £400,000 funding. The council has applied to the developer for the land to extend the school 
to be released and has started discussions with the school and the Diocese of Ely to expand and 
develop a design for the school.   
 
Southfields was formerly separate infant and junior schools. The site is large and can 
accommodate expansion to three forms of entry. The design process to expand the school has 
now commenced.   
 

90



 27 

3.6 Fletton / Woodston 
 

 
 
Primary forecasts – based on admitting up to capacity 
 

School 
Year 

4 year 
olds Year R Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 

2013/14 260 222 193 177 168 169 147 144 

2014/15 276 225 224 195 174 169 171 148 

2015/16 280 225 225 225 190 175 171 173 

2016/17 301 225 225 225 222 190 175 171 

2017/18 261 224 225 225 225 222 190 175 

 
Demographic forecasts show a rapid increase in pupil numbers across this area. The population 
increased by 45% between the 2001 and 2011 censuses.  Woodston increased its PAN from 20 
to 30 with an extension funded by S106 money in 2010.  Nene Valley, which was built for the 
Riverside development using S106 funding, increased its PAN from 30 to 45 with an extension 
funded from government basic need grant. Old Fletton has been expanded to a capacity of 420 
with an admission number of 60 by conversion of the former children’s home adjacent to the site.  
Woodston is currently being further expanded to increase its capacity to 420, with an admission 
number of 60.  Works will be completed by September 2014 but the school started admitting to 
the increased PAN in September 2013 by using a mobile classroom. 
 
Primary Schools 
 
The current numbers on roll and projected capacity situation in 2016 are as over. 

91



 28 

 

School NOR Capacity 
(2016) 

 

Reception 
PAN 

(2016) 

2016 in 
catchment 
4 year olds 

2016 
surplus / 
shortfall 

Brewster Avenue 176 180 60 86 -26 

Nene Valley 280 315 45 57 -12 

Old Fletton 335 420 60 76 -16 

St Augustine’s 201 240 N/A N/A  

Woodston 228 210 60 82 -22 

Total 1220 1365 225 301 -76 

 
On the basis of 97% take up of reception places, there would be a shortfall of 67 places.  
Previously pupils from this area have travelled to Stanground as there was some capacity there, 
this is ceasing to be an option as the Stanground schools are now filling with local pupils as 
numbers expand there.  
 
Secondary Schools 
 
Stanground and Nene Park Academies cover the area.  There is likely to be pressure on Year 7 
places in this area from 2018.  If the proposed additional secondary school for Hampton Gardens 
is built in conjunction with Cambridgeshire County Council it will free up places at Stanground for 
Peterborough students.  
 
Growth 
 
Sites have been identified for about 1550 new dwellings including the south bank development 
and the remainder of the almost completed Hempsted development, for which the S106 funding 
has already been spent on the first expansion of Woodston.  Apart from the south bank and 
Hempsted, most of the proposed developments are fairly small, none will provide land and the 
S106 funding will not be sufficient to provide the places required – approximately 542 primary 
school places and 418 secondary, using the S106 formula.   
 
Future action 

 
This area is densely populated with little surplus land.  The ‘green backyard’ currently operates 
from a site at the corner of London Road and Oundle Road.  In the long term there may be 
potential to develop it as a school site.  

92



 29 

3.7 Hampton  
 

 
 
Primary forecast – based on admitting up to capacity 
 

School 
Year 

4 year 
olds Year R Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 

2013/14 267 231 238 179 179 150 148 119 

2014/15 212 240 238 240 179 180 150 150 

2015/16 276 240 240 240 240 180 180 150 

2016/17 238 240 240 240 240 240 180 180 

2017/18 234 240 240 240 240 240 240 180 

 
This is an area with a very rapidly increasing school population.  Changes to the expected tenure 
of the properties from owner occupier to private rental and the late construction of the social 
housing element has resulted in approximately 40 primary children coming from 100 dwellings 
against the 25 anticipated in the original S106 agreements.  There are currently about 4500 
dwellings completed.   The S106 agreement for the development allowed for two two-form entry 
primary schools to the west of the development (Hampton Hargate and Hampton Vale) and two to 
the east (Hampton Leys).  There was also provision for a secondary school, Hampton College 
with seven forms of entry and the option of an eighth if required at the very end of the 
development.   
 
Primary Schools 
 
Hampton Hargate opened in 2000, by 2008 it was accommodating bulge classes in mobiles and 
has now been increased to three forms of entry with a permanent extension.  Hampton Vale’s 
permanent extension to three forms of entry was completed in 2014.  Demographic forecasts 
showed that even this would be insufficient and, following consultation, Hampton College has 
expanded to an all through 4 – 18 school.  A new primary block combined with community 
facilities was completed in 2013 adjacent to the existing building. 60 reception pupils were 

93



 30 

admitted in September 2012, accommodated for the year at Hampton Hargate.  Local 
consultation showed that the addition of a new school gave rise to concerns in families about 
younger children being able to attend the same school as older siblings.  It was therefore decided 
that the three Hampton schools would run on a combined catchment area covering the whole 
Hampton development.   
 
The current numbers on roll and projected capacity situation in 2016 are as below.  The township 
is covered by one catchment so the four year olds are given in total only.  In 2015 the forecast 
number of reception age pupils increases to 276 – giving a shortfall of 27 based on 97% take up. 
This appears to be a peak year as the numbers for 2016 and 2017 are currently forecast to be 
below the available capacity. Current indications are that house sales are increasing locally and 
nationally making it probable the rate of house building at Hampton will increase.  This in turn will 
lead to higher pupil numbers.  

 

School NOR Capacity 
(2016) 

 

Reception 
PAN 

(2016) 

2016 in 
catchment 

4 year 
olds 

2016 
surplus / 
shortfall 

Hampton College (Primary 
Sector) 

115 420  60   

Hampton Hargate 593 630 90   

Hampton Vale 536 630 90   

Totals 1244 1680 240 238 2 

 
Secondary Schools 
 
Under the S106 agreement Hampton College is to provide for the whole township, with a planned 
admission number of 210 and the possibility of an additional form of entry if required when the 
final primary school on Hampton Leys is completed.  Demography for the 4500 dwellings already 
built shows that this will be insufficient by 2017 but in practice the number of houses being 
completed each year and the number of families moving in to the township make it likely that Year 
7 places will run out before then. 
 
Growth 
 
The total projected number of dwellings in Hampton is about 7200. There is still some building 
taking place to the west of the A15 but the majority of the new housing will be to the east in 
Hampton Gardens. The S106 agreement for the township gives two further primary schools in 
Hampton Gardens but they will only be delivered when agreed numbers of homes have been 
built.  
 
Future Action 
 
The most urgent priority is to deliver additional secondary school capacity.  There is no room for 
further expansion on the existing College site.  Discussions have started with the developers, 
planners and Cambridgeshire County Council for a jointly funded secondary school in Hampton 
Gardens, probably on a shared site with one of the primary schools. A site feasibility assessment 
was completed in April 2014. The school would take students from Hampton and from Yaxley and 
Farcet in Cambridgeshire and would relieve pressure on Hampton College and also Stanground 
Academy.  A further new township – Great Haddon – is proposed to the south of Hampton.  
Primary and secondary schools will be built under the Section 106 agreement but the first families 
to move in will have to use existing schools in the area until these are delivered.  
 

94



 31 

3.8 Rurals 
 

 
 
Primary forecast – based on admitting up to capacity 
 

School 
Year 

4 year 
olds Year R Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 

2013/14 203 281 280 291 237 246 270 241 

2014/15 219 308 290 286 291 240 249 272 

2015/16 190 266 324 295 288 292 241 252 

2016/17 199 285 282 327 297 291 291 247 

2017/18 193 274 292 292 327 297 297 291 

 
 
The rural areas are put together for school place planning but cover a very wide geographical 
area; it is 14.5 miles between Wittering in the west and The Duke of Bedford (Thorney) in the 
east.  The distances between schools are such that some children will qualify for transport to their 
catchment school and any child directed outside their catchment will almost inevitably qualify.  
Given the cost of transport, it is important to ensure that the majority of rural children can access 
their catchment school.   The population of the villages increased by 14% between the 2001 and 
2011 censuses.   
 
Primary Schools 
 
The main area of growth has been at Eye, which has been extended to two form entry.  The 
number of in-catchment four year olds for 2014 exceeded the available places but the parental 
choices made meant that pupils could be accommodated without expansion.  As the village 
continues to expand the capacity situation will be kept under review.  Wittering Primary School 
takes service children from the Wittering base.  It was extended to three form entry in 2001 when 
the Ministry of Defence planned to increase personnel levels at the base.  There was then a 
change of plan and the forces went elsewhere.  Since then there has always been a high number 

95



 32 

of surplus places at the school and the admission number was reduced to 60.  Barnack has built 
a small extension with S106 funding; this increased the admission number from the current to 23. 
 
The current numbers on roll and projected capacity situation in 2016 are as below. 
 

School NOR Capacity 
(2016) 

 

Reception 
PAN 

(2016) 

2016 in 
catchment 

4 year 
olds 

2016 
surplus / 
shortfall 

Barnack 146 161 23 13 10 

Castor 152 154 22 14 8 

Eye 350 420 60 63 -3 

John Clare 101 105 15 6 9 

Newborough 205 210 30 23 7 

Northborough 198 210 30 16 14 

Peakirk 197 210 30 13 17 

The Duke of Bedford 188 210 30 19 11 

Wittering 309 480 60 32 28 

Totals 1846 2160 300 199 101 

 
Because of the relatively small number of families involved there is often a greater fluctuation in 
pupil numbers for rural areas compared to urban areas.  Pupil forecasting has been made more 
difficult by problems with obtaining accurate data for under 5s as many of the pupils in rural areas 
are registered with GP practices based outside Peterborough.  

 
As new homes are built the numbers will increase.  Contributions for education provision will be 
required from all housing developments in the rural areas.  It may be necessary to look at 
temporary accommodation in the short term if numbers go beyond capacity.  
 
Birth data shows low numbers for the other primaries but Northborough takes about 13% of its 
pupils from Lincolnshire and pupils are travelling increasing distances to these schools because 
of the shortage of places nearer to home.  
 
Secondary Schools 
 
Arthur Mellows Village College Academy covers the whole of the rural area. Many of the students 
are eligible for school transport.  It has been refurbished and extended with targeted capital 
funding and has an admission number of 264.  Some students in the rural area have previously 
chosen to attend schools in Lincolnshire, including St Guthlac’s College in Crowland.  
Lincolnshire County Council has now amalgamated this with the George Farmer Academy in 
Holbeach.  The St Guthlac’s site has closed and will re-open as a replacement primary school.  
Pupils living in Peterborough will not be offered transport to attend the school in Holbeach. 
Forecast numbers for Year 6 pupils in the rural areas suggest the cohorts will be larger than the 
capacity at Arthur Mellows but some of these pupils will be from outside Peterborough and they, 
and others, are likely to opt for schools in other areas.  The rural primary schools have in the past 
also sent a higher than average percentage of their pupils to The King’s School. 
 
Growth 
 
Eye and Thorney are both identified as key service areas in the growth strategy.  There has 
already been significant house building at Eye, as a result of which the capacity of the primary 
school has been increased from 336 to 420.   

 

96



 33 

Future action 
 
The demography of the rural areas needs to be monitored carefully because of the distances 
involved and transport costs if children are unable to access their nearest primary school.  There 
may be a requirement to support large individual cohorts through mobiles / internal alterations on 
the school sites.  There is space for expansion at The Duke of Bedford Primary School in Thorney 
which could accommodate pupils from house building in that area. 
 
Barnack and Castor both have non-standard admission numbers that do not readily organise into 
classes of 30.  Both schools are over-subscribed. If funding can be secured (including any 
developer contribution) and it can be demonstrated that the sites are feasible to expand and value 
for money, the council will support expansion to more viable PANs. 
 
 

97



 34 

4. Peterborough City Growth Issues and Other External Issues 
 
Peterborough City Council has published its aspirations for growth in the Local Development 
Framework (2011) and the proposed City Centre Area Action Plan.  Sites have been identified for 
20,495 new dwellings plus approximately 3000 in the city centre between 2010 and 2026.  
Between 1 April 2009 and 31 March 2013 3329 dwellings were completed.  The rate of growth 
appears to have increased, with Cardea and the East of England Showground site expanding 
fast.  If the growth aspirations are to be achieved the number of new homes per year will need to 
increase from the 800 per annum recently to over 1400. 
 
Growth can have a serious impact on the existing infrastructure if that infrastructure is already 
under pressure.  Whereas Section 106 contributions (to be replaced by the Community 
infrastructure levy (CIL) in due course) should help towards additional school places, this will 
never pay for all aspects of providing new school places.   
 
The accumulative effect of many small developments cannot provide the land needed for new 
schools and many existing schools are unable to expand on their current sites.  Larger 
development sites are easier to manage as new schools are planned within the land development 
brief and there is an expectation of providing enough land for them. 
 
As well as the growth outlined in the planning areas (above) two further urban extensions are 
proposed, for Great Haddon, to the south of Hampton and near to Yaxley and Paston 
Reserve/Norwood to the east of the city.  
 

 
 
There are 1050 dwellings proposed for Paston Reserve, 2300 for Norwood, and 5300 for Great 
Haddon.  Developments of these sizes include education provision as part of the planning 
process and S106 agreement.  An example of the detailed analysis used is in Annex 5. 
 
The first phases of the Paston Reserve development have started and will include 190 homes.  
There is S106 funding for education but no land.  The next phase will provide land for a one form 
entry primary and further funding.  The Paston Reserve development is next to the proposed 
Norwood development, which should provide further primary schools and a secondary school.  
Planning for Haddon includes three primary schools and a secondary school.  While these new 

98



 35 

developments will be largely self-contained for education, there are issues with school places for 
the first residents before schools are built and with over-subscription leading to pupils being 
allocated places at other schools.  S106 funding does not provide the full costs of building new 
schools and has to be supplemented by other capital.  
 
5. Funding  
 
Until recent years all Education Capital funding has been provided by direct grants or supported 
borrowing from the Government.  A three year settlement from 2008-2011 saw record amounts of 
capital allocated to meet Peterborough’s needs.  Successful bids and Primary Capital Programme 
(PCP) funding plus a Basic Need contribution to help with a shortage of school places meant 
many projects were planned and begun. 
 
The change of Government and the sudden withdrawal of the Primary Capital and Building 
Schools for the Future programmes have led to uncertainty over future capital funding.  The 
government set up the James review to consider their approach to capital funding but this has not 
yet been implemented.  Capital funding settlements for 2011-2013 were made on an annual basis 
rather than a longer cycle which would allow for planning.  The March 2013 announcement of 
Basic Need funding of £22,273,538 for 2013-15 allowed the council to adopt a more strategic 
approach. However, uncertainties remain about funding beyond 2015 and, while there has been 
success with bids under the Priority Schools Building and Targeted Basic Need Programmes, 
Peterborough has otherwise been funded no money for increasing school places in 2015-2016. 
 
The financial pressures are leading to a change in approach to school buildings.  Following 
government policy the council is proposing to build basic functional buildings to meet educational 
needs, using framework agreements to deliver best value.  While it has been Peterborough policy 
to install sprinklers in new builds, these are not cost effective in terms of reducing insurance 
premiums.  The national record for school fire safety is excellent but depends on quick evacuation 
rather than deployment of sprinkler systems.  It is therefore intended that future projects will be 
designed without sprinklers.   
 
The Council is also investigating the feasibility and costs associated with built off site modular 
construction. 
 
Following government guidance the council is now building to space standards 5% below the 
building bulletin for primary schools and 15% for secondary, in line with Building Bulletin 103. 
 
6. Admissions  
 
All aspects of school admissions are based on the Schools Admissions Code.  It governs the way 
all schools set their admission criteria, ensures compliance with a co-ordinated scheme, makes 
offers of places and allows for school admission appeals.  
 
It also places the local authority as a regulator for all other admission authorities within its 
boundaries with the expectation of the local authority reporting those admissions authorities 
whose admissions arrangements are not in line with the Schools Admissions Code to the schools 
adjudicator. 
 
The Schools Admission Code of 2010 placed the co-ordination of all school admissions with the 
local authority (previously the local authority was only responsible for entry into Reception Year, 
transfer between Years 2/3 and transfer from primary school to secondary school).  The in-year 
co-ordination has brought with it a number of problems that the local authority has had to 
overcome.  The School Admissions Code of 2012 removed the need for in-year co-ordination; 
however it has been agreed with all schools that Peterborough will keep this going as it is felt to 
abandon it leaves the way open to safeguarding issues for children who are not tracked from 
school to school. 

99



 36 

 
The admissions processes begin approximately 18 months before the relevant school year and it 
is difficult to work this far ahead for some aspects of school place planning.  An example is the 
desperate need for an additional primary school.  Proposed PANs and admissions criteria need to 
be published in the January of the year preceding entry (i.e. January 2013 for September 2014 
entry).  At this point in time the building plans are by no means certain and it is therefore 
impossible to include such a new school in the consultation and then in the preparation of the 
admissions booklet. 
 
Guidance issued in January 2014 has relaxed the requirements for expanding schools.  If building 
works are not required, pupil numbers can be increased by altering the admission number as part 
of the annual admissions consultation.  A statutory consultation process still applies for local 
authority led expansion of premises, changes to special schools, extension of age range by more 
than three years and for schools transferring to a new site.    
 
7. Conclusions – Summary of Future Action  
 
The demographic forecasts (annex 1) show the projected total number of pupils exceeding the 
available places for Reception in 2014 (although there should be just enough space for the 
number of pupils likely to take up places) and for Year 7 in 2018.  This is based on existing known 
pupils with some allowance for future expansion and migration.  The guideline for surplus 
capacity is 5%, to allow for parental choice and movement within the area.  Work to expand 
capacity has been outlined above.  In summary the plans now include:  

 

School Proposal 

PAN 
Inc-

rease 
Extra 

Places 

 
 

Year 

 
Cost 

Estimate 

 
 

Status 

St Johns 
Primary 

New 2 FE primary 
school 30 210 

 
 
 

2015 

Priority 
Schools 
Building 

Programme 

 
 
 

Design 

Nenegate 
Special School 

2 additional 
classes to extend 
age range to 
primary  NA 14 

 
 
 

2015 

 
 
 

£350K 

 
 
 

Design 

Phoenix Special 
School 

New dedicated 6th 
form centre on the 
Tunnel site 
creating a split site 
school N/A 30 

 
 
 
 

 2015 

 
 
 
 

£4m 

 
 
 
 

Design 

Discovery 
Primary  

Completion of 1 FE 
expansion 30 210 

2015  
£700k 

 
Design 

Thorpe Primary 1 FE expansion 30 210 
2015  

£3m 
 

Design 

St Michael’s 
Primary 1 FE expansion 30 210 

2016  
£3m 

 
Design 

Southfields 
Primary 1 FE expansion 30 210 

 
2016 

 
£2m 

 
Design 

Paston Reserve 
Primary 

1 FE primary 
school (part funded 
by S106) 30 210 

 
 
 

2016 

 
 
 

£3.5m  

 
 
 

Feasibility 

100



 37 

School Proposal 

PAN 
Inc-

rease 
Extra 

Places 

 
 

Year 

 
Cost 

Estimate 

 
 

Status 

West Town 
Primary  

New 3 FE primary 
school on hospital 
site 45 315 

 
 
 
 

2016 

 
Priority 
Schools 
Building 

Programme 

 
 
 
 

Feasibility 

Hampton 
Gardens  
Primary 

2 FE primary 
school (part funded 
by S106) 60 420 

 
 

2017 

 
 

£6.5m 

 
 

Feasibility 

Hampton 
Gardens 
Secondary 
School 

Joint development 
with CCC - 4 FE for 
PCC, 4 FE for CCC 
- saves places at 
Stanground 270 1200 

 
 
 
 

2017 

 
 
 
 

£25m 

 
 
 
 

Feasibility 

Norwood 
Primary 

2 FE primary 
school (S106 land 
contribution) 60 420 

 
 

2017 

 
 

£7m 

 
 

Feasibility 

101



 38 

SECTION C - ANNEXES 
 
Annex 1 

 
January 2006 Primary Census Data 
 

School 
Year 

NHS 
Data 

Year R Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Totals 

2005/06 2139 2059 2117 2144 2151 2218 2141 2237 15067 

 
Primary demographic forecasts for the whole of Peterborough – based on January 
2014 data. 
 

School 
Year 

NHS 
Data 

Year 
R 

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Totals 
 
PAN 

2013/14 3119 2913 2959 2781 2566 2496 2435 2259 18409 3025 

2014/15 3210 3049 3000 3003 2795 2578 2508 2447 19380 3125 

2015/16 3224 3095 3140 3045 3018 2809 2591 2520 20218 3165 

2016/17 3277 3179 3188 3188 3060 3033 2823 2604 21075 3225 

2017/18 3054 3054 3273 3236 3204 3075 3048 2837 21727 3225 

 
The NHS data figure represents children known to be in the area who will be eligible for a reception 
place in the given year.  The total admission number represents the number of reception places that 
are planned to be available. Highlighted figures are cohorts where the projected number of pupils 
exceeds the projected number of places. 
 
Primary Forecasting Methodology 
 
Forecasts are based on actual data of pupils in school and under 5s known to the NHS.  The 
forecasts are then calculated based on growth trends from previous years.  Each year cohort is 
treated as a whole and multipliers used to forecast its growth.   
 
Growth in Reception cohorts is anticipated by increasing the percentage of known four year olds 
predicted to be in school year on year, so that for 2014 it is 95%, 2015 96%, 2016 97% and 2017 
100%.  The 2017 figure reflects that figures for the most recent births tend to miss the very youngest 
children in the age group.  
 
For subsequent years the increases are: 
 

YR to Y1 3% 

Y1 – Y2 1.5% 

Y2 – Y3 0.5% 

Y3 – Y4 0.5% 

Y4 – Y5 0.5% 

Y5 – Y6 0.5% 

 
These cohorts are then allocated to schools based on previous popularity.  The forecast above 
indicates that there will be shortfalls in school places in certain year groups from 2015. 
 
January 2006 Secondary Census Data 
 

School 
Year 

 

Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10 Year 11 Year 12 Year 13 Total  

2005/06  2237 2292 2157 2262 2174 1163 905  13190 

 

102



 39 

Secondary demographic forecasts for the whole of Peterborough – based on October 
2013 data. 

 

  
11 year 

olds 
Y7 Y8 Y9 Y10 Y11 Y12 Y13 Totals 

2013/14 2210 2209 2266 2299 2267 2223 1393 1024 13720 

2014/15 2255 2255 2242 2294 2328 2267 1395 1184 13965 

2015/16 2442 2442 2289 2270 2323 2328 1423 1191 14266 

2016/17 2514 2514 2479 2317 2299 2323 1459 1215 14606 

2017/18 2587 2587 2552 2510 2346 2299 1459 1244 14997 

2018/19 2830 2830 2626 2584 2541 2346 1455 1244 15626 

2019/20 3039 3039 2872 2659 2616 2541 1482 1244 16453 

2020/21 3091 3091 3085 2908 2692 2616 1597 1266 17255 

2021/22 3252 3252 3137 3123 2945 2692 1639 1354 18142 

 
 

The 11 year olds figure represents children in mainstream education in Year 6 in the year preceding 
the given year.  This has tended to correlate very closely with the number of students admitted to 
Year 7.  Data re out of city students indicates that there are many more from outside Peterborough in 
Year 7 than Year 6 because Stanground College serves Yaxley and Farcet and the King’s School 
attracts students from a wide area.  The reduced number of Peterborough students in Year 7 is 
partly explained by a higher percentage attending special schools in Year 7, by students going out of 
Peterborough, e.g. to grammar schools in Lincolnshire and to the independent sector.  The overall 
PAN for 2014 admission is 2647.   

 
Year 7 cohorts are forecast to equal the previous Y6 cohort.  2017/18 Y5 is used for 2019, increased 
by 0.5, 2017/18 Y4 for 2020, increased by 1%, 2017/18 Y3 for 2021, increased by 1.5%, 2017/18 Y2 
for 2022 increased by 2% and 2017/18 Y1 for 2023 increased by 2.5%. 
 
Y7 – Y11 secondary cohort growth is based on the average for the past 4 years, slightly uplifted to 
allow for possible immigration increases after January 2014. 
 
Y7 – Y11 figures are initially calculated on a whole city basis, this is then compared with overall 
PANs and previous trends to create school by school forecasts. 
 
Each school’s % of the overall cohorts is calculated.  Y7 places are allocated on this basis up to 
PAN.  Where the proportion would exceed PAN pupils are reallocated.  As a new school COPA is 
the exception, places are allocated on a ‘best estimate’ basis. Post 16 numbers are based on a 
combination of averages and trends.   

 
 

103



 40 

Annex 2 
 
Types of Schools 
 
Community 
 
The local authority runs the school, owns the land and buildings, employs the staff and 
determines the admission arrangements.  It is no longer possible to set up a new community 
school.  Funding for expansion, repairs and maintenance comes from the school budget or the 
local authority. 
 
Voluntary Controlled 
 
The local authority runs the school, employs the staff and determines the admission 
arrangements.  The building, playground and other hard surfaces are the responsibility of the 
diocese. Funding for expansion, repairs and maintenance comes from the school budget or the 
local authority.  The playing field is the responsibility of the Local Authority. 
 
Voluntary Aided 
 
The governing body runs the school, employs the staff and determines the admission 
arrangements.  The building, playground and other hard surfaces are the responsibility of the 
diocese.  Funding for expansion, repairs and maintenance comes from the school budget or a 
dedicated finance stream – the locally controlled voluntary aided programme (LCVAP).  The 
playing field is the responsibility of the Local Authority. 
 
Foundation and Trust 
 
The governing body runs the school, has responsibility for the land and buildings, employs the 
staff and determines the admission arrangements.  Funding for expansion, repairs and 
maintenance comes from the school budget or the local authority. 
 
Academy 
 
These are independent of the local authority and answerable directly to the government.  The 
governing body runs the school, has responsibility for the land and buildings, employs the staff 
and determines the admission arrangements.  Funding comes directly from central government.  

 
Free School 
 
Free schools are effectively academies but can be set up by independent groups, e.g. parents, 
teachers, educational charities.  Groups wishing to set up free schools must apply to government 
and demonstrate a local demand. Funding comes directly from central government. 

104



 41 

Annex 3 
 

Peterborough City Council Statement on Academies and Free Schools 
 
Support for the establishment of Academies and Free Schools 
 
The Local Authority has a duty and responsibility under the Education and Inspection Act 
2006 to ensure that all children in Peterborough have access to a good school which can 
enable them to have the best opportunities in life.   
 
Government Policy 
 
National Government policy since the Education Reform Act (1988) has been to promote 
school autonomy as a means to raise educational standards and outcomes through 
improvement and innovation in teaching and the ability to deploy all resources flexibly.  The 
Academies Act (2010) has widened the range of schools able to seek to become an 
academy. The Government is also promoting the creation of new “Free Schools‟, where 
there is proven demand for them, to improve parental choice and quality of education 
provided.  The Local Authority will continue to consider soft and hard federated 
arrangements between maintained schools where this is deemed to be appropriate.   
 
Peterborough Stance 
 
The Local Authority welcomes the diversification of the schools sector and the Government’s 
stated aim of improving standards of attainment and closing the achievement gap between 
the most deprived children and young people and their more socially advantaged peers. The 
authority takes the view that all local schools are an intrinsic part of the social, professional 
and political context of Peterborough irrespective of their formal designation.  All schools 
educate our children and young people and as such will be supported and challenged to be 
the best that they can for all of our children.  The authority welcomes  diversity  of  provision  
including  a  range  of  different  types  of schools   managed  in  different  ways  and  with  a  
variety  of  teaching approaches. 
 
We champion parental choice, not simply to help children to find the school that best suits 
their needs but also to help to improve the system as a whole.  We have responsibility for the 
whole system, and will support the development of a market that provides for diversity, 
choice and sufficiency; encouraging collaboration to ensure that the system works well for all 
children and that choices exist for parents for different schools.   
 
Approach to Academies 
 
We have a presumption of support for the creation of academies and free  schools,  and  will  
take  our  responsibility  to  actively  manage  their introduction into the existing system of 
schools.  
 
We will actively support academy proposals in the following circumstances.  The level of 
support will vary according to the particular proposal: 
 

a) The  authority  will  promote  the  conversion  of  a  school  to  a sponsored academy 

where performance is consistently below national minimum floor standards and other 

interventions have failed to bring about the required improvement rapidly enough.  

We will do this by linking the academy to a high performing school or other partner 

who can help to turn the school around and raise attainment. 

105



 42 

b) The authority will support the formation of sponsored academies where schools are 

rated as ‘Inadequate’. The Local Authority will advise and support the selection of the 

most appropriate sponsor.   

c) The authority will support academies as part of any restructuring of local schools in a 

creative or different way to meet the specific needs of a locality.  For example we 

would support a group of primary schools to become a multi academy trust to allow 

local provision to be maintained in a cost effective way. 

 
The authority will not support proposals for academies designed to protect underperforming 
schools from challenge.   We will make this clear to the schools involved and to the  
Department  for  Education  (DfE),  and  will find alternatives which meet our objectives of 
raising attainment. 
 
Free Schools 
 
When a demand for a free school emerges, the authority will always offer information and 
advice to the parental or other sponsorship group.  It will offer positive support to the 
proposal in the following circumstances: 

 

· where it is required to meet basic need for school places in an area  and is a more 

cost effective way of doing so than alternatives; 

· where a free school is adding to diversity of provision. 

 
The authority will provide advice, support and data to enable decisions on free school 
proposals to be taken on an informed basis.  It will also facilitate consultation on proposals. 
 
The authority will not support proposals that would result in surplus places in other schools or 
where the type of school may draw in children from other areas and have an unacceptable 
drain on other public services such as health and social care. 
 
Ongoing Support to Academies and Free Schools 
 
Once established, academies and free schools are outside of the remit of the local authority, 
being directly accountable to the Secretary of State through the Education Funding Agency 
(EFA).  However, they would continue to be part of the Peterborough family of schools.  
Academies and free schools are  also  represented  on  the  Schools  Forum  which  is  a  
key  decision-making body.  Academy governors are represented on the Governor 
Leadership Group and it is intended that the Local Authority maintains links with Academies 
through the provision of some school funded services.   
 
The authority will champion standards and the interests of pupils, particularly vulnerable 
children, in all Peterborough schools. 

 

106



 43 

Annex 4 Legislation and policies 
 
There has been a variety of new legislation and guidance since the last School Organisation Plan 
was produced.  Some legislation and guidance relating to school place planning can appear in 
other associated areas e.g. the School Admissions Code. 
 
New legislation: 
 
Education Act 2005 
Education and Inspections Act 2006 (E&IA) 
Education and Skills Act 2008 (E&SA) 
The Academies Act 2010 
Education Act 2011 
New School Admissions Codes 2010 
Revised School Admission Codes 2012 
 
Existing legislation that applies to school place planning: 
 
The Education Act 1996 
School Standards and Framework Act 1998 (SSFA) 
 
The Education Act 1996 
Section 13 
 
SSFA  
Created School Organisation Committees 
Added a Section 13A 
Local Authorities were to have explicit duty to use all their educational functions to promote high 
standards of education 
 
E&IA 2006 
Abolished School Organisational Committees 
Part 1 extended the duty to secure high standards and to embrace the well being of the whole 
child, to emphasise diversity and choice and to enshrine an enhanced role for parents. 
 
Schedule 2: Proposals for establishment or discontinuance of schools in England 
LEA became the decision maker for all proposals (with referral to Schools Adjudicator if 
necessary) 
 
Sections 7-14 Establishment of new schools – competitions 
Sections 15-17 Closing or discontinuing schools 
Sections 18-24 Alterations to schools 
 
E&SA 2008 
Sections 150-151 Major restatement of the law of Admissions.  Resulted in a new Schools 
Admissions Code (February 2009) 
 
Education Act 2011 
Allowing LAs to find an Academy provider for any new school 
The establishment of Free School opportunities 
 
Local Authorities are no longer required to produce various plans (e.g. Educational Development 
Plan) but have a strategic role in school place planning and  a statutory duty to ensure sufficient 
school places are available. 

107



 44 

 
Annex 5 
 

 
Pupil Yields from Housing Developments 
 
Peterborough has followed the formula below to calculate the number of school pupils likely to be 
living on housing developments. 

 

Number of bedrooms 1-2 3 4 5 Overall 
figure 

Primary  per 100 
dwellings 

0 30 60 90 20-30 

11-16 per 100 
dwellings 

0 20 40 60 15-20 

Post-16 per 100 
dwellings 

0 5 10 15 3-5 

 
This formula was developed in consultation with other local authorities, including Cambridgeshire, 
and has been the basis for negotiations and school planning for larger developments and to 
calculate contributions for individual dwellings and small developments.  
 
With larger developments the S106 contribution can sometimes be determined and the school 
provision planned before the dwelling mix is known.  This has given rise to shortfalls in school 
provision, as shown in the examples below.  
 
Riverside 
 
This is a development of 899 dwellings about one mile from the centre of Peterborough.  It is a 
new development, with most of the housing less than ten years old.  The housing mix was: 
 

One bedroom     9 

Two bedroom 112 

Three bedroom 313 

Four bedroom 429 

Five bedroom   32 

Eight bedroom     1 

 
The provision of a 210 place primary school was based on the overall calculation of 25 pupils per 
100 dwellings, which would have resulted in 225 pupils.  Application of the detailed formula based 
on the number of bedrooms would have suggested 384.  Currently there are 277 pupils, giving a 
figure of 30.8 per 100 dwellings.  This is a development with a high number of three and four 
bedroom homes so a higher pupil yield is to be expected.  Future forecasting shows the number 
will rise further as the Year 6 cohort is only 23 pupils while the NHS figure for the Reception 
cohort for 2012 and 2013 are both 62.  If there is no significant movement of pupils, then the likely 
total primary pupils in 2013 will be 336, 37 per 100 dwellings.  Current births are registering about 
60 per year, meaning the 384 figure will eventually be exceeded.  
 
Currently there are 112 11-16 year olds, a relatively low yield of only 12.46 pupils per 100 
dwellings.  This is a new development and the higher primary numbers should work their way 
through to the secondary age group.  
 
If there is a low level of mobility, the primary and secondary pupil numbers will rise for the next 
few years, level off and then start to decline, starting with the youngest age groups.  If the 
development proves to be popular with families with young children only, these families will 

108



 45 

eventually move out to be replaced by other families with young children and primary numbers will 
remain high and secondary ones lower.  The type of housing, moderately expensive with many 
four bedroomed properties, suggests the former scenario.  
 
Hampton  
 
Hampton is a larger development, further from the city centre but again with a high percentage of 
family accommodation. The rate of completions of dwellings has been fairly slow, an average of 
350 per year since January 2002.  In January 2012 there were 4193 occupied properties.  The 
increase in the number of pupils over this period is shown below: 
 

Age 
Jan-
12 

Jan-
10 

Jan-
09 

Jan-
08 

Jan-
07 

Jan-
06 

Jan-
05 

Jan-
04 

Jan-
03 

Jan-
02 

4 218 191 156 130 103 95 90 62 44 68 

5 222 182 149 117 102 92 77 52 51 22 

6 188 168 128 121 105 87 71 66 37 27 

7 181 146 130 117 93 84 86 49 41 24 

8 167 150 135 111 96 94 61 46 37 25 

9 158 153 120 114 101 75 61 48 33 15 

10 163 143 118 124 85 76 62 41 23 16 

11 182 138 132 110 87 70 50 28 11 7 

12 165 150 107 101 86 66 33 19 13 12 

13 140 125 97 98 76 41 36 22 18 7 

14 152 115 96 103 46 42 33 25 15 12 

15 149 108 87 61 47 35 36 12 16 4 

Total 2085 1769 1455 1307 1027 857 696 470 339 239 

Total 4-10 1297 1133 936 834 685 603 508 364 266 197 

Total 11-
15 788 636 519 473 342 254 188 106 73 42 

Dwellings 
(approx) 4193 3770 3290 2890 2550 2060 1700 1300 900 600 

Pri pupils 
per 100 

dwellings 30.9 30.1 28.4 28.9 26.9 29.3 29.9 28.0 29.6 32.8 

Sec pupils 
per 100 
dwellings 18.8 16.9 15.8 16.4 13.4 12.3 11.1 8.2 8.1 7.0 

 
 
The number of primary age pupils per 100 dwellings over this period has remained relatively 
steady, but there has been a marked increase in the number of secondary age pupils.  At all 
stages in the development the number of Reception age pupils has exceeded the number of Year 
6s.  If the under fives in Hampton are added to the existing pupils, the forecast number of primary 
age children for January 2014 from the existing 4193 dwellings is 1465, which equates to 34.9 per 
100 dwellings.  
 
The increasing number of secondary age pupils per 100 dwellings suggests that families are 
staying as their children grow older.  There is no corresponding decline in primary age pupils, 
which indicates either large families with both primary and secondary age children or that the 
newer dwellings have a higher ratio of children living in them.  The average number of school age 
children per family with school age children is 1.61.  About 20% of the Hampton households 
include school age children.   

109



 46 

 
Current birth data shows an average of about 250 births per year, this is 6.2 per 100 dwellings 
and would result in a primary pupil yield of 43 per 100 dwellings.  
 
Park Farm 
 
Park Farm in Stanground has about 600 dwellings.  Planning permission was granted in 1990 and 
most of the development was complete by 2000.  A 17 year average of pupil cohorts gives 28.8, 
an average of 4.8 per 100 dwellings.  This would give a primary pupil yield of 33.6 and 11-16 of 
24 per 100 dwellings.   

 
Social/Affordable Housing 
 
The above examples are relatively similar developments, with a mix of open-market, affordable 
and social housing.  Hempsted, to the south of the city, and Century Square in Millfield, are both 
currently averaging 10 births per year per 100 dwellings.  This would give rise to a primary pupil 
yield of 70. 
 
Revised Formula 
 
The formula in current use has underestimated the number of school places required from a 
development.  To provide clarity for planners and developers, a realistic formula is needed. This 
involves upward revision, to reflect the higher pupil yield that has been experienced.  The revised 
formula, below, reflects the higher pupil yield, particularly from smaller dwellings. 
 

Number of 
bedrooms 1 2 3 4 5 

Overall 
figure 

Primary  per 100 
dwellings 0 10 35 65 90 35 

11-16 per 100 
dwellings 0 5 25 45 60 22 

Post-16 per 100 
dwellings 0 0 5 10 15 5 

 
Applied in detail to the Riverside development this would give a yield of 423 primary age pupils, 
which corresponds with the current birth cohorts averaging 60.  The overall formula would give 
313 pupils, below the current yield but this is a development with a high proportion of family 
housing.  
 
A spreadsheet to calculate developer contributions has been devised in consultation with 
planners which will be made available via the city council website.  The formula takes account of 
levels of basic need grant funding received and will be adjusted in future years as this level 
changes.  
 

School Place Developer Contribution Calculator   

     

Dwelling Multipliers Pre-school Primary Secondary Post-16 

1 bed dwelling 0 
0 0 0 

2 bed dwelling 0.02 0.1 0.05 0 

3 bed dwelling 0.03 0.35 0.25 0.05 

4 bed dwelling 0.04 0.65 0.45 0.1 

5+ bed dwelling 0.05 0.9 0.6 0.15 

          

110



 47 

School Place Costs 
Without 
Grant 

With Grant (2013-2014)   

Cost of pre-school place £15,476.00 £10,076.00    

Cost of primary school place  £15,476.00 £10,076.00    

Cost of secondary school place £23,987.00 £17,229.00    

Cost of post-16 place £23,987.00 £17,229.00    

          

Proposed Dwelling Mix (Insert Dwelling Mix Totals)     

1 bed 0     

2 bed 0     

3 bed 0     

4 bed 0     

5+ bed 0     

Proposed Total Number of Dwellings 0     

          

Developer Contributions Required 
Without 
Grant 

With Grant 
(2013) 

   

primary and pre-school contribution  £0.00 £0.00    

secondary and post-16 school 
contribution  

£0.00 £0.00    

Total Contribution  £0.00 £0.00     

 
 

Pre-school Places 
 
Based on birth data from all the developments included above, there is an average birth rate of 
6.35 per 100 dwellings per year.  Translating this into pre-school places is more complicated.  
Pre-school education is an entitlement but is not compulsory. It is mostly provided in 
Peterborough by the private and voluntary sector.  For most children the entitlement starts in the 
term after the third birthday.  The oldest children in the school year will have five terms of pre-
school entitlement, the youngest will have three.   
 
Assuming children’s birthdays are evenly distributed throughout the year and that all children will 
start school in the September following their fourth birthday, the totals eligible for places are: 
 

Term Calculation for number of children  Number per 100 dwellings 

Autumn I year cohort 6.35 

Spring 1 year cohort plus 1/3  8.46 

Summer 1 year cohort plus 2/3 10.58 

  
The entitlement is to 15 hours per week, over a minimum of 3 days. Sufficient space must be 
allowed for the summer term number of children, i.e. 10.58 per 100 dwellings. This leads to a 
need for 31.74 day sessions to be available per week per 100 dwellings, i.e. 6.34 places for 5 
days a week. 
 
Following discussions with Early Years colleagues, possible take up of places is estimated at 
50%, i.e. 3.17 per 100 dwellings. This is because: 
 

· pre-school education is an entitlement but parents are not obliged to take it up 

· some parents will make alternative provision – using private full day care as they are working 

· some parents will choose to take their children to other pre-school providers 
 

111



 48 

Many pre-school places are provided in existing buildings, e.g. community centres, church halls 
and private businesses.  Pre-school contributions will therefore be requested only for larger 
developments where they will be built as part of an on site primary school. Based on the overall 
formula of 33 primary age pupils per 100 dwellings, this means developments of about 600 
dwellings or more.  600 dwellings would generate a need for a one-form entry primary school and 
about 20 pre-school places so one pre-school room will be required for each form of entry in an 
on-site primary school. 
 

Number of 
bedrooms 

1 2 3 4 5 Overall 
figure 

Pre-school 
places  per 100 
dwellings 

0 2 3 4 5 3.5 

 
Annex 6 
 
Indicative Costs of School Places 
 
The Department for Education used to publish indicative prices for school buildings, based on a 
per pupil place cost and subject to location factors to reflect variable costs across the country.  
These are no longer in use and were last updated in 2008.  In 2008 the primary school figure for 
Peterborough was £11,766 per pupil, making a one-form entry primary school £2,470,860.  
 
Norfolk County Council did a small survey of local authorities’ building costs.  The average price 
per primary pupil place was £16,711 for primary places and £23,987 for secondary places.  The 
range for construction of a 2 FE primary school (420 places) was between £5.34 M (Lincolnshire) 
and £8.5 M (Norfolk).  Peterborough’s estimate is at the lower end of this at about £6.5M, which 
would equate to £15,476 per primary place.  The average for a 900 place secondary school was 
£25,062,000 equating to £27,847.  Again Peterborough’s estimate is lower than this at £23,987 
per place.  These figures will be used as the basis for the developer contribution formula 
calculation.   

 

112



 49 

Annex 7 
 
Ethnicity 
 
The ethnic make-up of the school population has also changed over the years, following the 
increase in pupils from the 2004 and 2007 accession countries.  The change in position between 
January 2012 and January 2013 was: 
 

 Primary Secondary 

Ethnic 
category 

2012 
% 

2013  
% 

Change in 
% points 

2012 
% 

2013 
% 

Change 

White - British 57 54.9 -2.1 64.8 63 -1.8 

White Other 13.2 15.3 +2.1 10.4 11.3 +0.9 

White - Irish 0.2 0.2 0 0.3 0.2 -0.1 

White - Irish 
Traveller 0.1 0.1 0 0 0.1 +0.1 

Gypsy/ Roma 0.7 0.7 0 0.4 0.5 +0.1 

Mixed - White 
and Black 
Caribbean 1.8 1.7 +0.08 1.6 1.6 0 

Mixed - White 
and Black 
African 0.7 0.8 +0.21 0.6 1.6 +1 

Mixed - White 
and Asian 1.3 1.5 +0.14 1.1 1.1 0 

Mixed - Any 
Other Mixed 
Background 1.4 1.3 +0.23 1.1 1.2 +0.1 

Black/Black 
British - 
Caribbean 0.4 0.4 -0.13 0.5 0.5 0 

Black/Black 
British - African 0.7 2.1 +1.4 0.6 1.7 +1.1 

Black/Black 
British - Any 
Other Black 
Background 0.4 0.5 +0.01 0.4 0.5 +0.1 

Asian/Asian 
British - Indian 2.6 2.5 -0.1 2.2 2.2 0 

Asian/Asian 
British - 
Pakistani 14.3 14 -0.3 10.9 11.2 +0.3 

Asian/Asian 
British - 
Bangladeshi 0.2 0.2 0 0.1 0.2 +0.1 

African Asian 0.2  -0.13 0.4  -0.09 

Asian Other 1.7  +0.63 1.7  -1.11 

Chinese 0.3 0.3 +0.02 0.5 0.5 0 

Any Other 
Ethnic Group 0.8 0.9 +0.19 0.8 0.9 +0.1 

       

Minority 
ethnic total 42.5 45.1 +2.6 34.2 37 +2.8 

 
 

113



 50 

 

114



CREATING OPPORTUNITIES AND TACKLING 
INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 8 

14 JULY 2014 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Director of Children’s Services 
 
Contact Officer(s) – Jonathan Lewis 
Contact Details - Tel:  01733 863912 email: jonathan.lewis@peterborough.gov.uk 
 

IMPROVING EDUCATION OUTCOMES TASK AND FINISH GROUP FINAL REPORT 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 
1.1 

 
The purpose of this report is for the Committee to review the outcomes from the Task and 
Finish Group.  A number of meetings have been held and it’s proposed to close the work of this 
group with recommendations being made for moving forward.   
  

2. 
 
2.1 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Committee reviews and agrees the recommendations made in section 5. 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 Since 2012, an informal task and finish group has been working with officers around improving 
the committees understanding of Education performance and supporting the authority with the 
changes it is proposing in light of the changing role of local authorities in supporting education.  
To increase accountability around education, a proposal was made to the scrutiny committee 
on the 12th June 2013 to formalise this group into a formal task finish group to look at improving 
education in Peterborough.  

  
3.2 The terms of reference (appendix 1) identified that the task and finish group will consider the 

following areas -  

• Consider how to instil in all elected members the vision that Peterborough’s educational 
performance is everybody’s responsibility 

• How does the new proposed Improvement Board report into Scrutiny? 

• What school level data does Scrutiny need to properly exercise their function? 

• What information does Scrutiny require from our school improvement team to monitor 
school improvement role against the Ofsted requirements? 

• Consider what data Scrutiny needs to assist in school place planning i.e. ethnicity, in 
year admissions, birth rate, numbers, available places 

• How does Scrutiny challenge their school support services and schools to meet the 
needs of children in their wards i.e. EAL, special needs 

• How will Scrutiny understand the requirements of the Local Authority given the recent 

academisation programme and its officer’s responsibilities? 

  
3.3 The task and finish group have met on the following dates –  

 
29th October 2013 
9th December 2013 
3rd March 2014 
25th June 2014 

  
3.4 Information shared with the committee has included –  

 

• Detailed breakdown of Foundation Stage, Year 1 Phonics, Key Stage 1, Key Stage 2, Key 

115



Stage 4 and Key Stage 5 outcomes across a range of measures of attainment and progress 

broken down into groups including EAL, FSM, ethnicity and socio-economic characteristics.   

• Information on the Pupil Premium Grant, best practice from across the country and 

information from schools at a local level.   

• Considered the draft Ofsted report for School Improvement Arrangements.   

• Ofsted data outlining the percentage of schools judged good or better at their latest 

inspection, and the proportion of children attending schools judged good or better. 

  
5. KEY ISSUES 
  
5.1 In line with the lines of enquiries outlined in the terms of reference, the following 

recommendation are endorsed to the committee (date for completion show in brackets) –  
  
5.2 1. Consider how to instil in all elected members the vision that Peterborough’s educational 

performance is everybody’s responsibility. 
  
 Recommendation -  

• An ‘All Party Policy’ meeting on education outcomes is held ensuring that members 
understand the role and duties of the local authority and the difference between maintained 
schools and academies (Autumn Term)  

• Ofsted reports on individual schools are distributed to ward members when published with 
the opportunity to ask questions of officers where appropriate (ongoing).   

• Ensure that the school improvement strategy and other key documents (e.g. school 
organisation plan) are shared with all members and that they have the opportunity to 
discuss and question them (following agreement at the Scrutiny Committee) 

  
5.3 2. How does the new proposed School Improvement Board report into Scrutiny? 
  
 Recommendation -  

• Agreement is being sought with the School Improvement Board that the governor 
representative for the board is the independent co-opted member of the scrutiny committee 
(Al Kingsley - who is a governor).  This will help a key link to be formed between the Board 
and the committee (July) 

• The terms of reference for the School Improvement Board include a requirement for a 
termly report to the Director of Children’s Services with an annual report to the Scrutiny 
Committee. (ongoing)   

  
5.4 3. What school level data does Scrutiny need to properly exercise their function? 
  
 Recommendation -  

• Through reviewing the data available to the authority, the link between ethnicity and 
achievement will become a standard data set for the committee.  In addition, a greater focus 
on the outcomes for pupils eligible for the pupil premium grant will be considered in the 
future.  These will be included in future reports to the committee (November and March 
annually)   

  
5.5 4. What information does Scrutiny require from our school improvement team to monitor 

school improvement role against the Ofsted requirements? 
  
 Recommendation -  

• Data on the latest position on Ofsted outcomes in Peterborough schools will continue to 
form part of the regular data set including the proportion of schools judged good or better at 
their latest inspection. (standard reporting cycle)   

• The proposed working party (see later note) will consider in further detail outcomes from the 
Ofsted inspections of schools in Peterborough. (September onwards)     

  
5.6 5. Consider what data Scrutiny needs to assist in school place planning i.e. ethnicity, in year 

admissions, birth rate, numbers, available places 

116



  
 Recommendation -  

• The school organisation plan covers sufficient information and is part of the annual cycle of 
reports to the Scrutiny Committee.  Where appropriate, the working party may wish to 
receive updates on the school place planning situation including proposed building 
schemes.  (annual cycle)   

  
5.7 6. How does Scrutiny challenge their school support services and schools to meet the needs 

of children in their wards i.e. EAL, special needs 
  
 Recommendation -  

• When data is produced for future committees it will be appropriate to do this at ward level to 
help members to understand how schools in their area are performing.  This will not be easy 
to undertake at Secondary level but at a primary level this could be undertaken.  Data on 
socio-economic, demographic, attendance and educational needs would also help members 
understand their ward profiles compared to wider Peterborough. (November and March)   

• It is proposed that the working party review on a rotation basis the support services 
provided by the local authority either through visit or report.  Examples include attendance, 
SEN services, finance, school place planning.  (September onwards) 

  
5.8 7. How will Scrutiny understand the requirements of the Local Authority given the recent 

academisation programme and its officers’ responsibilities? 

  

 Recommendation -  

• It is proposed that a paper to be brought in this municipal year to the Scrutiny Committee 

outlining the council’s statutory responsibility for Education (including legislation), its role 

and approach to academies.   

  
5.9 To support the continued role of scrutiny to understand in more depth the educational 

landscape in Peterborough, it is proposed that an informal working party is formed in 
September from the committee to work with officers within the Education Division to gain a 
better understanding of Peterborough performance.  This will include visits to schools and 
discussions with Heads and Governors to understand their challenges, approaches and best 
practice.  Notes of visit and outcomes from meetings will be recorded.  The outcome of the 
working group will be reported termly or at the request of the Scrutiny Committee.   The group 
will meet termly to consider the performance of schools. 

  
6. IMPLICATIONS 

 
6.1 The proposed recommendations will contribute to raising the profile of schools with Members 

and ensure that scrutiny has the information it requires to hold the officers to account.    
 

7. CONSULTATION 
 

7.1 N/A   
 

8. NEXT STEPS 
 

8.1 Date of the Education Working Group will be circulated to the committee with a view to setting 
the first meeting for September.  Other actions will be undertaken as outlined in section 5 of the 
report.      
 

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) 
Act 1985 
 

9.1 None 
 

10. APPENDICES 

117



 
10.1 Appendix 1 – Improving Educational Outcomes - Scrutiny Task & Finish Group Terms of 

Reference 
 

 

118



Appendix 1 - Improving Educational Outcomes - Scrutiny Task & Finish Group  
 
1 Purpose and Terms of Reference  
  
1.1 For the Task and Finish Group to consider how the Scrutiny Committee scrutinise school 

performance and its school improvement services to raise educational attainment.     
  
2 Methodology of the review  
  
2.1 How can our Scrutiny committee effectively scrutinise school performance and school improvement 

to challenge both school support services and schools to raise attainment? 
  
2.2 The Task and Finish Group will answer the following questions: 

• Consider how to instil in all elected members the vision that Peterborough’s educational 
performance is everybody’s responsibility 

• How does the new proposed Improvement Board report into Scrutiny? 

• What school level data does Scrutiny need to properly exercise their function? 

• What information does Scrutiny require from our school improvement team to monitor 
school improvement role against the Ofsted requirements? 

• Consider what data Scrutiny needs to assist in school place planning i.e. ethnicity, in year 
admissions, birth rate, numbers, available places 

• How does Scrutiny challenge their school support services and schools to meet the needs of 
children in their wards i.e. EAL, special needs 

• How will Scrutiny understand the requirements of the Local Authority given the recent 
academisation programme and its officer’s responsibilities?  

  
2.3 The groups initial focus would be upon the following areas –  

• Pupil Premium 

• EAL 
  
3 Identification of Key Witnesses 
  
3.1 Although the scope hasn’t yet been approved, the following groups are expected to be key 

witnesses –  

• Headteachers / School Leaders / Governors 

• Lead member for Education, Skills and the University 

• Senior Officers within Children’s Services 

• External bodies within the city with a vested interest – Academy Trusts, PLP, FE colleges 
etc.   

  
4 Identification of Research and background information required  
  
4.1 It is suggested the data from the November scrutiny panel around outcomes and performance 

forms the basis for the review.  Detailed pupil level information should be available in the coming 
months alongside detailed comparative data.  Historic data will be provided to support the member 
review.   

  
5 Agreed timescales of review  
  
5.1 Report to Scrutiny March 2014. Officers will be called to assist as and when required. 
  
6 Reporting Timetable 
  
6.1 It is proposed that the group meets monthly for the initial period of the review.   

 
Membership of the working group is –  
 

Councillor Day 
Councillor Fower 

119



Councillor Shearman 
Councillor Saltmarsh 
Councillor Jamil 
Alistair Kingsley  

 
  
 
 

120



CREATING OPPORTUNITIES & TACKLING 
INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 9 

14 JULY 2014 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Executive Director of Children’s Services  
 
Contact Officer(s) – Sue Westcott  
Contact Details - 863606 
 

DIRECTOR’S REPORT FOR SOCIAL CARE PRACTICE AND PERFORMANCE 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to continue to update the committee on the progress of performance 

and improvement in Children’s Social Care. This was a recommendation of the Children’s Services 
Improvement Programme Scrutiny Task and Finish Group on its conclusion in March 2014. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 To note the progress made with continued improvement. 
 

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY  
 

3.1 The Sustainable Community Strategy identifies “Improving Health” and “Supporting Vulnerable 
People” as priorities. Improvement in Children’s Social Care is key to the delivery of these priorities. 
 

4. BACKGROUND 
 

4.1 Following an Ofsted Inspection in August 2011, the Council has engaged in a programme to secure 
rapid improvement. This improvement will be driven by three key elements: 
 

· The Children’s Services Single Delivery Plan  

· The Ofsted Action Plan which focuses effort on what we must prioritise 

· The leadership of Members and officers in delivering the required changes 
 

4.2 The Council’s progress is closely monitored by this Committee and the Internal Improvement Board. 
 

5. 
 
5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
5.2 
 
 
 
 
 

KEY ISSUES 
 

Highlights (as of May 2014) 

· Increase in CAFs 

· Fewer contacts 

· Timescales for initial assessments on target 

· Improvement in timescales for core assessments 

· Decrease in re-referrals  

· Number of CP and LAC high 

· Update on reconfiguration 

· Recruitment and retention 
 
Referrals 
 
There were 254 referrals in May 2014 which is slightly higher than the previous month of 221. 
However the rolling 12 month rate has decreased to 584.0 from a high of 808.0 in December 
2012.The target is a rate of 601.6 per 10,000.To meet this target we would need to reduce the 
number of referrals over 12 months to 2,647. This equates to an average of 220 per month. 

121



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
Re-referrals  
 
The number of re-referrals remained in line with the previous month at 42 from 46 last month. This 
means that the re-referral rolling rate is at 18.5%, comfortably below the 24.3% target by 5.8%. 
 

 
 
Number of Initial Assessments 
 
267 initial assessments were completed in the month; higher than the 230 in April.  

 
 
Initial Assessments in Timescale 
 
More were however completed in timescale: 81.3 % compared to 79.6% in April. This means the 
year to date figure has increased to 80.5% which is in line with performance at the same time last 
year at 81.0%. This indicator is above the target of 77.6% and equates to good performance. 
 

122



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
5.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Number of Core Assessments 
 
172 core assessments were completed in the month; higher than the 161 completed in April. 

 
 
Core Assessments in Timescale 
 
The percentage of cores completed in timescale rose by over 10% this month to 72.7% from 61.5 
% in April. The year to date figure at 67.3% is still 7.8% below target, but performance has steadily 
increased as old cores have been closed down. 
 

 
 
CAFs 
 
98 CAFs were completed with a rolling rate of 159.8. This has already exceeded the new target 
which was a 10% stretch target and denotes good performance. 
 

123



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
5.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
5.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Child Protection Plans 
 
The number of children subject to a child protection plan has decreased to 236 at the end of May. 
This indicator is a rate of 52.4% per 10,000 which is still 21.7% higher than the target of 43.1%. 
 
The Heads of Service are now taking the decision to convene a conference so we can thoroughly 
test out the threshold. The service will focus on working with children under our Children in Need 
procedures and raising the profile with partner agencies. We are introducing a tool kit for 
practitioners working with neglectful families and restoring professionals’ confidence in social care, 
to work with children without having a child protection plan. 
 

 
 
Child Protection Visits 
 
Almost 100% of child protection visits have been completed in timescale. The small percentage that 
have not been completed in timescale were due to a family being out of country and a visit being 
made within days of the expected date. 
 

124



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
5.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
5.12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Looked After Children 
 
At the end of May 2014, the number of looked after children was at 386. This is the highest rate in 
the previous two years and due to transient populations and a number of cases that have not been 
worked effectively over the last six months. It is also a sign of a service that is becoming risk adverse 
which we are trying to reverse whilst working with the PLO process. In order to meet the target of 
80.0 per 10,000, the looked after children number needs to be 360. 
 
We have audited all children subject to Section 20 to see if there is any drift and are now checking 
out the findings. Early indicators are that plans are clear.  
 
The number of admissions at 14 is slightly higher than previous months and is just above our target 
of 11. The number of care leavers at 4 was in line with the previous month which still signifies a high 
number of adolescent children still within the LAC population. 
 

 
 
Update on Re-configuration of the front door 
 
The First Response Team (FRT), having been one team previously, was reconfigured, moving 
colleagues from Family Support Teams to become three teams in March 2014.  The assessment 
activity (initial and core assessments) was placed back with the FRT and changes made to the 
management capacity within the service.  Corporate Management Team put in place additional 
resources in the form of an additional team manager and two social workers (back fill for the two 
CSE workers) for a six month period to add capacity and to support the transition process.  At the 

125



5.13 

same time, the responsibilities of the Head of Service (Referral, Assessment, and Family Support) 
were split with an additional Head of Service post being created (one responsible for the First 
Response Service and the other responsible for Family Support).
 
A Child and Family (single) assessment has been developed during the period since then and will 
be implemented mid-June 2014. 
 
Changes were made to the management teams of both the First Response and Family Support 
teams at the end of May, with one locum manager leaving FRT and one manager from Family 
Support swapping teams with a manager from First Response (in order to make best use of their 
relative skills and experience).   The First Response Service now has a relatively new team manager 
group in that they have only recently come together, but they have a great deal of relevant 
experience between them and they are already working well together. 
 
Negotiations are progressing to secure a health practitioner post in the FRT and also a 
CAF/Connecting Families co-ordinator to further develop the work that the team undertakes. 
 
Staffing 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
As at 03 June 2014 the current vacancy rate is 18.2 FTE against an establishment of 81.This figure 
includes pipeline leavers and pipeline starters. Presently there are 17 locum and a peripatetic locum 
social work team.  
 
The new cohort of NQSWs are currently being recruited and these will form 15% of the 81fte 
establishment. This is 5% increase on last year’s’ cohort. This will decrease the number of agency 
staff on a ‘grow your own’ principle. 
 
A permanent Team Manager has been recruited for the vacant post in Looked after Children and 
has now started the post. After a further interview, there has been an appointment to the vacant 
Leaving Care Team Manager post subject to references and employment checks. 
 
Both of these appointments have been a result of the recent national advertising campaign that has 
been embarked upon in the Guardian. 
 
Further adverts are being organised in the Local Press for Team Managers in First Response, 
Family Support, Fostering and Conference and Review. This will then be followed by adverts for 
two Heads of Service posts in the Guardian for Family Support and QA and Safeguarding. 

126



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.15 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.16 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The Social Work Careers website has been refreshed completely from the original Head and Heart 
Website. There was also extensive radio advertising for social worker posts. 
 
Advanced Practitioners have been offered the opportunity to succession plan to be developed for 
Team Manager opportunities in the future. The career progression scheme has been launched. 
 
Our existing Team Manager for Conference and Review has stepped up as Head of Quality 
Assurance and we are back filling her role as Team Manager. This post will be recruited to 
permanently and carry the Principal Social Worker role. 
 
Adoptions 
 
A new way of working was introduced in the last year to ensure that children become a legal part of 
their adoptive family at the earliest opportunity. The past year has seen the adoption service 
embrace the changes brought about by the adoption reform agenda, and continue to grow and 
develop.  This has led to an increase in activity in all areas of the service. There were 27 adoption 
orders granted in the period 2013/14.  This compares to a total of 18 in the year 2012/13, 
representing a 50% increase.  29 adoptive families were approved in 2013/14.  This compares with 
a total of 22 for 2012/13.   
 
Growth in activity has continued into 2014/15. Within the first few months of this new financial year, 
7 children have been adopted and 6 new adoptive families approved. There are also 21 children 
placed with their adoptive families and for these children an Adoption Order is imminent. The service 
is on track to exceed last year’s outstanding performance and achieve an even greater number of 
successful adoptions for an increased number of children in care. 
 
Liquidlogic System 
 
After a period of development and testing, a new suite of some 25 forms were introduced into the 
Liquidlogic application on 28 May 2014. These new forms are designed to be more user-friendly 
and concise and to reduce the number of screens that a social worker would need to access in 
order to complete a specific task. 
 
Additionally, the move towards Single Assessment has been undertaken, with a new Single 
Assessment Form introduced to the system on 16 June 2014, replacing the existing Initial and Core 
Assessment Forms. 
 
Raising Quality of Practice / Getting to Good  
 
A practice development programme has been established which is aimed at developing and 
embedding good quality children’s social care practice across all the teams. The subject areas being 
covered during April and May, 2014 include: 
 

Reflective Supervision 

Assessment Practice 

Managing Risk  

Care Planning  

Team Manager Leadership 

Single Assessment 

Special Guardianship 

Managing Workflows 

The methodology ranges from Practice Workshops, mentoring and coaching, information 
dissemination to action learning sets.  These practice developments are being led by the practice 
development consultants, team managers and heads of service.   
 
 
 

127



5.17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Early Intervention and Prevention 
 
The electronic version of the Early Help Assessment – E-CAF – continues to be rolled out 
successfully; training is being provided to partner agencies and the system is becoming established 
across the early help partnership.  
 
We continue to monitor the impact of the CAF and the Team Around the Child [TAC] process, and 
brief questionnaires are sent to parents/carers and where appropriate, to young people, asking them 
to comment on the support they have received. These are sent out between 3 and 6 months after 
the initial CAF assessment. The response rate is typically between 10% and 15%, which while low 
is in line with most postal surveys of this kind.  
 
A number of questions are asked; the table below illustrates the response to the question, ‘What do 
you think about the support that you have received over the last few months?’ and the responses 
are summarised in the table below: 

 

 
 
The same survey asks respondents to comment on whether they think the original issues have 
improved, stayed the same or have become worse since the support through the CAF and the Team 
Around the Child approaches were put in place. 81% of respondents said things had got better, 
14% that they had stayed the same while 5% said things had got worse.  
 
Clearly a low response rate can only provide an indication of impact and the CAF team is looking 
at how we might use other communication mechanisms that could provide a higher response rate. 
Any such method would need to maintain confidentiality, while enabling the family to be identified 
should there be a need to follow up any comments that indicate that they have not received a good 
enough service, as is the case at present. 
 
Despite the low response rate, these results do provide an encouraging indication of the positive 
impact of the multi-agency partnership in supporting children, young people and their families as a 
result of coordinated assessment and support.  
 
Early Help and Connecting Families services are linked together through the Multi-Agency Support 
Group. Any lead professional working with a family who believes that the family would benefit from 
support through Connecting Families presents the assessment of needs [the CAF] to the Multi-
Agency Support Group. This ensures that families being referred to Connecting Families meet the 
required criteria as well as providing an opportunity for any other relevant support services to be 
identified.  
 
Responsibility for the commissioning of School Nursing services has now transferred to the local 
authority. We are in the process of negotiating performance targets with the provider of this service 
and are committed to ensuring that the service is able to demonstrate a more holistic approach to 
supporting positive outcomes for children and young people.  
 
Working with our partners, we are developing a healthy child pathway which encompasses the life 
of the child from pre-birth to 18 years, drawing together maternity, health visiting, early years and 

1%

0%

7%

24%

67%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80%

Thought it was very poor

Thought it was poor

Thought it was ok

Was pleased

Was very pleased

128



school nursing services and ensuring smoother transitions at key points along the pathway – from 
home to school, for example.  
 
NEET performance locally remains very strong and the latest data indicates that Peterborough has 
fewer young people aged 16-18 who are NEET than our statistical neighbour average for the first 
time ever. The current rate of young people NEET in the city is 6.3%; the England average is also 
6.3% while our statistical neighbour average is 7.5%. In addition, we know the status of over 97% 
of our young people, while the equivalent figure among our statistical neighbours and in England 
more generally is around 90%. Given that it is likely that a significant number of young people who 
have a status of ‘Not Known’ will be NEET, this suggests that local performance is even better in 
comparison with other areas. This has been subject to a successful OFSTED inspection. 
 
Young people spending any proportion of this period of their lives out of education, employment or 
training tend to have much poorer lifelong outcomes than their peers so this is really good news in 
terms of the future prospects of our young people. This is also an area where local performance 
has historically been much poorer than statistical neighbours and is the result of a determined 
approach by schools, local colleges, council and voluntary agency provided services to work 
together to improve outcomes.  
 
 

6. IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1 The cost of the improvement programme can be met from within existing budgets. Resources are 
available to secure improvement in the immediate and longer term.  
 

6.2 The Secretary of State has the power to issue a statutory notice if he is not satisfied that sufficient 
progress is being made. 
 

7. CONSULTATION 
 

7.1 Partner agencies, parents and children will be involved in the improvement activity. 
 

8. NEXT STEPS 
 

8.1 This Committee will continue to receive a regular update on progress. 
 

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 
1985 
 

9.1 · Ofsted Inspection of Safeguarding: Peterborough 6th September 2011  

· Ofsted Unannounced Inspection of contact referral and assessment arrangements 3rd March 
2011 

· Ofsted Safeguarding and Looked after Children Inspection: Peterborough 21st May 2010 

· Ofsted Local Authority Arrangements for the Protection of Children: inspection report 8 March 
2013 

 
10. APPENDICES 

 

10.1 None 
 

 

129



130

This page is intentionally left blank



 

CREATING OPPORTUNITIES AND TACKLING 
INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 10 

14 JULY 2014 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Director of Governance 
 
Contact Officer – Paulina Ford, Senior Governance Officer, Scrutiny 
Contact Details – (01733) 452508 or email paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk 
 

REVIEW OF 2013/2014 AND WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2014/15 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 To provide the Committee with a review of the work undertaken during 2013/14 and to develop 

a work programme for 2014/15. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 That the Committee considers the 2013/2014 year in review and makes recommendations on 
the future monitoring of these items where necessary. 
 

2.2 That the Committee determines its priorities, and develops a work programme for the 
forthcoming year. 
 

3. REVIEW OF 2013/14 
 

3.1 The Creating Opportunities and Tackling Inequalities Scrutiny Committee was established by 
Council at its annual meeting on 18 May 2009.  During the year 2013/2014, the Committee 
considered the following issues: 
 
Information / Update 

• Review of 2012/13 and Future Work Programme 

• Corporate Parenting Panel Annual Report 
 
Monitoring / Calling to Account 

• Progress Report on Alternative Play Centre Provision 

• Children’s Services Delivery Plan – Progress Report 

• Impact of Welfare Reform 

• Progress Report from Scrutiny Task and Finish Group Monitoring Children’s Services 
Improvement Plan 

• Update Report on NEET’s (16 to 18 year olds not in Education, Employment or Training) 

• Poverty Action Plan – Updated 

• Peterborough Safeguarding Children Board Annual Report (PSCB) 2012/13 and Business 
Plan 2013/14  

• Children’s (Social Care) Services Statutory Complaints Process (Children act 1989) Annual 
Report 2012 

• Establishment of Education Improvement Task and Finish Group 

• Presentation of 2013 Unvalidated Examination Results 

• Scrutiny in a Day:  Understanding and Managing the Impacts of Welfare Reform on 
Communities in Peterborough 

• Children’s Services Performance Report to DfE 

• City College Peterborough 

• Presentation of 2013 KS 4 & KS2 Validated Examination Results 

• The Vision for Education in Peterborough – Update Report 

131



 

• Children’s Improvement Programme Task and Finish Group Final Report 
 

Policy  / Plans /  Consultation 

• Peterborough School Improvement Strategy 

• Peterborough EAL Strategy 

• Tackling Poverty  Strategy and Action Plan  

• The Vision for Education in Peterborough – Developing School to School Partnerships 

• New Vision for Early Years Services including Children’s Centres in Peterborough 

• Adoption Reform and  Implementation Plan  

• Implementation of the Placement Strategy and Fostering Action Plan 

• Draft School Organisation Plan 2013-2018 – Delivering Local Places for Local Children – 
Refreshed 

• Budget 2014/15 and Medium Term Financial Plan 
 
The Committee considered two Call-ins: 
 

1. Call-In of Executive Decision:  Early Years Services Including Children’s Centres – 
NOV/CAB/094 – December 2014. Outcome – Not Called In 

 
2. Call-In of The Future Direction of Children’s Centers Delivery – FEB14/CAB/09 – 

February 2014. Outcome – Called In and referred to Full Council. 

 

The Committee also established the following Task and Finish Group:  

• Improving Educational Outcomes Task and Finish Group – Formed September 2013 

 

and continued to run the following Task and Finish Group: 

• Children’s Services Improvement Programme – Task and Finish Group – Completed review 
March 2014. 

 
The Committee took part in the Joint Scrutiny in a Day Event which focused on the Impact of 
Welfare Reform on 17 January 2014. 

 

3.2 For the information of the Committee, copies of the recommendations made during the year are 
attached at Appendix 1. 
 

4. WORK PROGRAMME 2014/15 
 

4.1 In accordance with the Constitution, the Committee is responsible for setting its own 
programme in line with the Council’s key priorities and the Committee’s remit. 
 

4.2 The Committee’s remit is: 
 

To review and scrutinise the delivery of the Sustainable Community Strategy priority of 
creating opportunities, tackling inequalities.  This will include reviewing and scrutinising the 
performance of other public bodies in their activities and performance in the delivery of the 
Single Delivery Plan. 
 

Hold the Executive to account for the discharge of functions in the following ways: 
 

• by exercising the right to call-in, for reconsideration, decisions made but not yet 
implemented by the Executive or key decisions which have been delegated to an 
officer.   

• by scrutinising Key Decisions which the Executive is planning to take, as set out in the 
Forward Plan 

• by scrutinising Executive decisions after they have been implemented, as part of a 

132



 

wider policy review. 
 

To review and scrutinise the planning, decisions, policy development, service provision and 
performance relating to the following service areas: 
 

• Adult Learning and Skills 

• Children’s Services 

• Education 

• Safeguarding Children  
 

To assist and advise the Council and the Executive in the development of its budget and 
policy framework by in-depth analysis of policy issues in relation to the terms of reference of 
the committee. 
 

Make recommendations to the Executive and/or Council arising from overview and scrutiny 
activity. 
 

Establish ad-hoc Task and Finish Groups to investigate specific topics on a time-limited 
basis. 
 

To consider any appeals from petition organisers who are not satisfied with the outcome of 
the Council’s consideration of their petition. 
  

 
4.3 

 
A draft work programme which shows the items which are currently scheduled along with items 
carried over from last year is attached at Appendix 2. 
 

5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

5.1 Minutes of the Creating Opportunities and Tackling Inequalities Scrutiny Committee held on 10 
June, 22 July, 9 September, 11 November, 3 December 2013 and 6 January, 10 February, 17 
March 2014. 
 

6. Appendices 
 

6.1 Appendix 1 - Recommendations made during 2013/2014 
Appendix 2 – Draft Work Programme 2014/15 

  

133



134

This page is intentionally left blank



C
R
E
A
T
IN
G
 O
P
P
O
R
T
U
N
IT
IE
S
 A
N
D
 T
A
C
K
L
IN
G
 I
N
E
Q
U
A
L
IT
IE
S
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 

 
 

 
 

A
P

P
E
N

D
IX

 1
 

R
E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S
 M

A
D

E
 D

U
R

IN
G

 2
0
1
3
-2

0
1
4
 

M
E
E
T
IN

G
 D

A
T
E
 /
 

IT
E
M

 
 

R
E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
 

R
E
F
E
R

R
E
D

 
T
O

 
R

E
S
P
O

N
S
E
 T

O
 R

E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S
 

9
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

 E
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

a
 

T
a
s
k
 a

n
d
 F

in
is

h
 

G
ro

u
p
 f

o
r 

Im
p
ro

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g

 P
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 

P
e
te

rb
o
ro

u
g

h
 

T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 a

n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
: 

 1
. 
T

h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 T

a
s
k
 a

n
d
 F

in
is

h
 

G
ro

u
p
 f

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 

P
e
te

rb
o
ro

u
g

h
. 

 2
. 
T

h
e
 T

e
rm

s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 a

s
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
in

 
th

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
h
o
w

 P
u
p
il 

P
re

m
iu

m
 w

a
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

s
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 
 3
. 
T

h
e
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

th
e
 G

ro
u
p
 a

n
d
 a

n
y
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 t
h
a
t 
m

ig
h
t 

b
e
 

n
o
m

in
a
te

d
 b

y
 G

ro
u
p
 S

e
c
re

ta
ri
e
s
. 

 

J
o
n
a
th

a
n
 

L
e
w

is
 

T
h
e
 T

a
s
k
 a

n
d
 F

in
is

h
 G

ro
u
p
 f

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

O
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 h

a
d
 t
h
e
ir
 f

ir
s
t 
m

e
e
ti
n
g

 o
n
 2

9
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
. 
 A

 
fi
n
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 1

4
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
4
 m

e
e
ti
n
g

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

 

1
1
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

 T
a
c
k
lin

g
 P

o
v
e
rt

y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

T
h
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

e
n
d
o
rs

e
d
 

th
e
 

T
a
c
k
lin

g
 

P
o
v
e
rt

y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

a
n
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
la

n
 

a
n
d
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 i
t 
to

 C
a
b
in

e
t 
fo

r 
a
p
p
ro

v
a
l.
 

 

J
a
w

a
id

 K
h
a
n
 

N
e
w

 C
a
b
in

e
t 

m
e
m

b
e
r 

to
 e

n
d
o
rs

e
 t
h
e
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
. 

3
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 
2
0
1
4
 

 
 

 
 

R
e
q

u
e
s
t 
fo

r 
C

a
ll-

In
 

o
f 

a
n
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
: 

 E
a
rl
y
 

T
h
e
 

re
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

C
a
ll-

in
 

o
f 

th
e
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 

m
a
d
e
 b

y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

o
n
 1

8
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
, 

re
g

a
rd

in
g

 
th

e
 

E
a
rl
y
 

Y
e
a
rs

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

T
h
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 w

a
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 b

y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

a
n
d
 t
h

e
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
. 

 

135



C
R

E
A

T
IN

G
 O

P
P
O

R
T
U

N
IT

IE
S
 A

N
D

 T
A

C
K

L
IN

G
 I
N

E
Q

U
A

L
IT

IE
S
 S

C
R

U
T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E
E

 
 

 
 

 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 1
 

R
E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S
 M

A
D

E
 D

U
R

IN
G

 2
0
1
3
-2

0
1
4
 

M
E
E
T
IN

G
 D

A
T
E
 /
 

IT
E
M

 
 

R
E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
 

R
E
F
E
R

R
E
D

 
T
O

 
R

E
S
P
O

N
S
E
 T

O
 R

E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S
 

Y
e
a
rs

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

In
c
lu

d
in

g
 

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 C

e
n
te

s
 -

 
N

O
V

/C
A

B
/0

9
4
 

In
c
lu

d
in

g
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 
C

e
n
tr

e
s
 

–
 

N
O

V
/C

A
B

/0
9
4
 

w
a
s
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 

b
y
 

th
e
 

C
re

a
ti
n
g

 
O

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin

g
 

In
e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
. 
  

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 r

a
is

e
d
 

o
n
 

e
a
c
h
 

o
f 

th
e
 

re
a
s
o
n
s
 

s
ta

te
d
 

o
n
 

th
e
 

re
q

u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

c
a
ll-

in
, 

th
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 d

id
 n

o
t 

a
g
re

e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

a
ll-

in
 o

f 
th

is
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 o

n
 a

n
y
 

o
f 

th
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 s

ta
te

d
. 

 It
 w

a
s
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 
a
n
d
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 
R

u
le

s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 C

o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 (

P
a
rt

 4
, 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 

8
, 

a
n
d
 

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 

1
3
),

 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 w

o
u
ld

 t
a
k
e
 

im
m

e
d
ia

te
 e

ff
e
c
t.
 

 

6
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 

 
 

 
 

N
e
w

 V
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

E
a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 

in
 P

e
te

rb
o
ro

u
g

h
 

T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

m
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

th
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 b
e
in

g
 

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 t

o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

o
n
 2

0
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
: 

 a
) 

In
c
lu

d
e
 a

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
n
a
ly

s
is

 t
o
 

c
le

a
rl
y
 s

h
o
w

 w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c

o
s
t 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 a

re
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 a

n
d
 c

la
ri
fy

 h
o
w

 t
h
e
 

W
e
n
d
i 
O

g
le

-
W

e
lb

o
u
rn

 
C

llr
 S

h
e
ila

 
S

c
o
tt

 

T
h
e
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 w
a
s
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t

o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

o
n
 3

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 
2
0
1
4
. 

 

136



C
R

E
A

T
IN

G
 O

P
P
O

R
T
U

N
IT

IE
S
 A

N
D

 T
A

C
K

L
IN

G
 I
N

E
Q

U
A

L
IT

IE
S
 S

C
R

U
T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E
E

 
 

 
 

 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 1
 

R
E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S
 M

A
D

E
 D

U
R

IN
G

 2
0
1
3
-2

0
1
4
 

M
E
E
T
IN

G
 D

A
T
E
 /
 

IT
E
M

 
 

R
E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
 

R
E
F
E
R

R
E
D

 
T
O

 
R

E
S
P
O

N
S
E
 T

O
 R

E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S
 

fi
g

u
re

 o
f 

£
1
.2

8
M

 w
a
s
 a

rr
iv

e
d
 a

t.
 

b
) 

T
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

a
 

c
o
p
y
 o

f 
th

e
 f
u
ll 

E
q

u
a
lit

y
 I
m

p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
re

p
o
rt

. 
 c
) 

T
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 c
le

a
rl
y
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 w
h
ic

h
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
d
e
d
 t
o
 (

o
r 

re
v
is

e
d
 w

it
h
in

) 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
fe

e
d
b
a
c
k
 g

a
th

e
re

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

 d
) 

T
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

o
n
 

th
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
d
e
fe

rr
e
d
/f
u
tu

re
 c

o
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 
m

a
y
 

b
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l,
 

a
n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 

s
o
u
rc

e
d
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
s
e
. 
F

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
th

e
 

c
o
s
ts

 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
o
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
, 
im

p
a
c
ts

 o
n
 e

a
rl
y
 

y
e
a
rs

 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 e

tc
. 

 T
h
a
t 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
d
e
fe

r 
a
n
y
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 o

n
 

th
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
u
n
ti
l 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 t
h
o
ro

u
g

h
ly

 e
x
p
lo

re
d
 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
. 

 
     

137



C
R

E
A

T
IN

G
 O

P
P
O

R
T
U

N
IT

IE
S
 A

N
D

 T
A

C
K

L
IN

G
 I
N

E
Q

U
A

L
IT

IE
S
 S

C
R

U
T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E
E

 
 

 
 

 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 1
 

R
E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S
 M

A
D

E
 D

U
R

IN
G

 2
0
1
3
-2

0
1
4
 

M
E
E
T
IN

G
 D

A
T
E
 /
 

IT
E
M

 
 

R
E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
 

R
E
F
E
R

R
E
D

 
T
O

 
R

E
S
P
O

N
S
E
 T

O
 R

E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S
 

1
7
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 

  
 

 

R
e
q

u
e
s
t 
fo

r 
C

a
ll 

In
 

o
f 

a
n
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
: 

  
T

h
e
 

F
u
tu

re
 D

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 –
 

F
E

B
1
4
/C

A
B

/0
9
. 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 r

a
is

e
d
 

o
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 s

ta
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
fo

r 
c
a
ll-

in
, 

th
e
 C

re
a
ti
n
g
 O

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin

g
 I
n
e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

A
G

R
E
E
D

 t
o
 C

a
ll-

In
 t
h
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 t

o
 

re
fe

r 
it
 t

o
 F

u
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

fo
r 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

d
e
b
a
te

. 
  

 U
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 R
u
le

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 (

P
a
rt

 4
, 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 8

, 
a
n
d
 

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 1

3
),

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

is
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 s

u
s
p
e
n
d
e
d
 u

n
ti
l 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

n
o
ti
c
e
. 

 
 

F
u
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
h
e
 C

a
lle

d
 i
n
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 w

a
s
 h

e
a
rd

 a
t 
a
n
 E

x
tr

a
o
rd

in
a
ry

 
M

e
e
ti
n
g

 o
f 

F
u
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

o
n
 2

6
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
4
. 
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

d
id

 
n
o
t 

a
g
re

e
 t
o
 c

a
ll 

in
 t
h
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 i
t 

w
a
s
  
th

e
re

fo
re

 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 

 

1
7
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 

 
 

 
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 T

a
s
k
 

a
n
d
 F

in
is

h
 G

ro
u
p
 

F
in

a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 1

 
C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

v
is

it
s
 t

o
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 P

C
C

 o
n
 a

 
re

g
u
la

r 
b
a
s
is

 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 g

e
t 
fi
rs

t 
h
a
n
d
 

v
a
lid

a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

n
d
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

re
m

a
in

in
g
. 
T

h
is

 a
ls

o
 h

a
s
 a

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 s

ta
ff

 m
o
ra

le
 a

n
d
 h

o
p
e
fu

lly
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 

re
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
ir
 o

p
in

io
n
s
 a

re
 

g
e
n
u
in

e
ly

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t.
  
T

h
e
 i
n
v
it
a
ti
o
n
 s

h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 t

o
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

S
u
e
 W

e
s
tc

o
tt
 

T
h
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
  
w

ill
 b

e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
4
-2

0
1
5
. 
  

 

138



C
R

E
A

T
IN

G
 O

P
P
O

R
T
U

N
IT

IE
S
 A

N
D

 T
A

C
K

L
IN

G
 I
N

E
Q

U
A

L
IT

IE
S
 S

C
R

U
T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E
E

 
 

 
 

 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 1
 

R
E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S
 M

A
D

E
 D

U
R

IN
G

 2
0
1
3
-2

0
1
4
 

M
E
E
T
IN

G
 D

A
T
E
 /
 

IT
E
M

 
 

R
E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
 

R
E
F
E
R

R
E
D

 
T
O

 
R

E
S
P
O

N
S
E
 T

O
 R

E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S
 

P
a
re

n
ti
n
g

 P
a
n
e
l.
 

 R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2

  
T

o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 a

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 

th
e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 a

t 
e
a
c
h
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 o
f 
th

e
 C

re
a
ti
n
g
 O

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin

g
 I
n
e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 -

 
th

is
 t

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 L

iq
u
id

lo
g

ic
 

s
y
s
te

m
. 

 R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3

 
C

ir
c
u
la

te
 a

n
 e

le
c
tr

o
n
ic

 c
o
p
y
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
n
th

ly
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 

C
re

a
ti
n
g
 O

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 T

a
c
k
lin

g
 

In
e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 e

a
c
h
 

m
o
n
th

 s
o
 t
h
a
t 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 

ra
is

e
d
 o

n
 a

 1
:1

 b
a
s
is

 e
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

a
lly

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

o
ff

ic
e
r.

 T
h
is

 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 t
o
 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

a
re

n
ti
n
g
 

P
a
n
e
l.
 

 R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 4

 
T

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

s
 a

 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
n
d
id

a
te

 f
o
r 

a
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 i
n
 a

 d
a
y
 

e
v
e
n
t.

  
W

h
a
t 
th

e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
c
o
v
e
rs

, 
a
ll 

o
f 

th
e
 f
e
e
d
e
r 

a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
, 
th

e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g

e
s
 

(A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 v

s
 F

o
s
te

ri
n
g

, 
C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
, 

L
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 e

tc
, 

s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
r 

139



C
R

E
A

T
IN

G
 O

P
P
O

R
T
U

N
IT

IE
S
 A

N
D

 T
A

C
K

L
IN

G
 I
N

E
Q

U
A

L
IT

IE
S
 S

C
R

U
T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E
E

 
 

 
 

 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 1
 

R
E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S
 M

A
D

E
 D

U
R

IN
G

 2
0
1
3
-2

0
1
4
 

M
E
E
T
IN

G
 D

A
T
E
 /
 

IT
E
M

 
 

R
E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
 

R
E
F
E
R

R
E
D

 
T
O

 
R

E
S
P
O

N
S
E
 T

O
 R

E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S
 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t)

. 
 R

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 5

 
T

h
e
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 t
o
 h

o
ld

 a
  
re

v
ie

w
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 i
n
 6

 m
o
n
th

s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

c
a
n
 h

a
v
e
 a

 s
in

g
le

 a
g

e
n
d
a
 t

o
p
ic

 t
o
  
re

v
ie

w
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
. 

 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 i
n
 a

 D
a
y
 

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

1
. 

T
o
 e

x
p
lo

re
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
w

e
lf
a
re

 
re

fo
rm

 o
n
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 

a
tt

a
in

m
e
n
t 

in
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
. 

2
. 

 T
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 b
a
rr

ie
rs

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 

e
x
p
lo

re
 h

o
w

 e
a
rl
y
 y

e
a
rs

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
, 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

a
n
 

h
e
lp

 p
a
re

n
ts

 i
n
to

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.
  

3
. 

T
o
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

a
n
d
 

n
e
e
d
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 w

e
lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
 

a
n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 

C
o
n
n
e
c
ti
n
g
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 c

a
n
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
s
e
 n

e
e
d
s
. 

 

S
u
e
 W

e
s
tc

o
tt
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 b

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
’s

 W
o
rk

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
4
-2

0
1
5
. 

 

 

140



 
 

 
 

 
 

U
P
D
A
T
E
D
: 
3
 J
U
L
Y
  
2
0
1
4
  
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 2
 

C
R
E
A
T
IN
G
 O
P
P
O
R
T
U
N
IT
IE
S
 A
N
D
 T
A
C
K
L
IN
G
 I
N
E
Q
U
A
L
IT
IE
S
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 

D
R
A
F
T
 W

O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 

It
e
m
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
O
fs
te
d
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
Im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
In
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
la
n
 

  C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 /
 G
a
ry
  
P
e
rk
in
s
 

 

D
ra
ft
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
4
/2
0
1
5
 -
 D
e
li
v
e
ri
n
g
 L
o
c
a
l 
P
la
c
e
s
 

fo
r 
L
o
c
a
l 
C
h
il
d
re
n
 

  C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

 

N
e
w
 V
is
io
n
 f
o
r 
E
a
rl
y
 Y
e
a
rs
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 I
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 i
n
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

  C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
W
e
n
d
i 
O
g
le
-W

e
lb
o
u
rn
 

 

D
ir
e
c
to
rs
 R
e
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

  C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
S
u
e
 W

e
s
tc
o
tt
 

 

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

    C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 P
a
u
li
n
a
 F
o
rd
 

 

 1
4
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
4
 

 2
5
 J
u
n
e
 D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
  

2
 J
u
ly
 F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
  

    

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 F
u
tu
re
 W

o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

 T
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

 d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
 a

n
d

 t
o

 c
o

n
s

id
e

r 
th

e
 f

u
tu

re
 

w
o

rk
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

. 
 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 P
a
u
li
n
a
 F
o
rd

 

 

 
 

 

141



 
 

 
 

 
 

U
P
D
A
T
E
D
: 
3
 J
U
L
Y
  
2
0
1
4
  
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 

It
e
m
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 C
h
il
d
re
n
 B
o
a
rd
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 (
P
S
C
B
) 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

  C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
 

 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 (
S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
) 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 C
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 P
ro
c
e
s
s
 

(C
h
il
d
re
n
 a
c
t 
1
9
8
9
) 
A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
1
3
 

T
o

 s
c

ru
ti

n
is

e
 t

h
e

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 (
S

o
c

ia
l 

C
a

re
) 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 S
ta

tu
to

ry
 C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 
P

ro
c

e
s

s
 (

C
h

ild
re

n
 a

c
t 

1
9

8
9

) 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
3

 a
n

d
 m

a
k

e
 a

n
y

 n
e

c
e

s
s

a
ry

 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 B
e
li
n
d
a
 E
v
a
n
s
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
S
p
e
c
ia
l 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
N
e
e
d
s
 R
e
fo
rm

 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  

 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
to
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
Im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

 

8
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
4
 

 2
0
 A
u
g
 D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
  

2
7
 A
u
g
 F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 

D
ir
e
c
to
rs
 R
e
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
S
u
e
 W

e
s
tc
o
tt
 

 

  
 

 

1
3
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
4
 

  2
4
 S
e
p
t 
D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
  

 1
 O
c
t 
F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
  

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 N
E
E
T
 /
 R
a
is
in
g
 t
h
e
 P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 A
g
e
 

  C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

 

142



 
 

 
 

 
 

U
P
D
A
T
E
D
: 
3
 J
U
L
Y
  
2
0
1
4
  
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 

It
e
m
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
e
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 C
h
a
ir
 

  C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 S
u
e
 W

e
s
tc
o
tt
 

 

P
o
rt
fo
li
o
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
S
u
e
 W

e
s
tc
o
tt
  

 

P
u
p
il
 R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 

  C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

 

 
 

 

P
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
2
0
1
4
 U
n
v
a
li
d
a
te
d
 E
x
a
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 R
e
s
u
lt
s
 

 T
o

 s
c

ru
ti

n
is

e
 t

h
e

 2
0

1
4

 e
x

a
m

in
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
s

u
lt

s
, 

a
s

s
e

s
s

 t
h

e
 i

m
p

a
c

t 
o

f 
th

e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 
p

la
n

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 e
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

re
s

u
lt

s
 a

n
d

 m
a

k
e

 a
n

y
 n

e
c

e
s

s
a

ry
 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s
  

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

 

P
o
rt
fo
li
o
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
S
k
il
ls
 

a
n
d
 U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
 

  C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

 

1
0
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
4
 

2
2
 O
c
t 
D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
  

2
9
 O
c
t 
F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
  

 

S
u
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 o
f 
S
c
h
o
o
l 
P
la
c
e
s
 

  C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

 

143



 
 

 
 

 
 

U
P
D
A
T
E
D
: 
3
 J
U
L
Y
  
2
0
1
4
  
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 

It
e
m
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

P
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  

 

D
ir
e
c
to
rs
 R
e
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

   C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
S
u
e
 W

e
s
tc
o
tt
 

 

 
 

 

C
it
y
 C
o
ll
e
g
e
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

 T
o

 s
c

ru
ti

n
is

e
 t

h
e

 r
o

le
 t

h
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
lle

g
e

 h
a

s
 t

o
 p

la
y

 i
n

 d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 i

m
p

ro
v

e
d

 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
it

y
. 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
P
a
t 
C
a
rr
in
g
to
n
, 
P
ri
n
c
ip
a
l/
H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e

  

 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 i
n
 a
 D
a
y
 –
 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
: 
 S
u
e
 W

e
s
tc
o
tt
 /
 W

e
n
d
i 
O
g
le
-W

e
lb
o
u
rn
 /
 J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 

L
e
w
is
 

 

 5
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
5
 

1
5
 D
e
c
 D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
  

2
2
 D
e
c
  
F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
  
 

D
ir
e
c
to
rs
 R
e
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

  C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 S
u
e
 W

e
s
tc
o
tt
 

 

 
 

 

7
 o
r 
9
 J
a
n
 o
r 
 9
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
  
2
0
1
5
 

(J
o
in
t 
M
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
f 

th
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
 a
n
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
s
) 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
2
0
1
5
/1
6
 a
n
d
 M

e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm

 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
P
la
n
 

T
o

 s
c

ru
ti

n
is

e
 t

h
e

 E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

’s
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
ls

 f
o

r 
th

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
2

0
1

5
/1

6
 a

n
d

 
M

e
d

iu
m

 T
e

rm
 F

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

P
la

n
. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
o
h
n
 H
a
rr
is
o
n
/S
te
v
e
n
 P
il
s
w
o
rt
h
 

 

144



 
 

 
 

 
 

U
P
D
A
T
E
D
: 
3
 J
U
L
Y
  
2
0
1
4
  
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 

It
e
m
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

T
.B
.C
. 

 
 

 

P
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
2
0
1
4
 K
S
 4
 &
 K
S
2
 V
a
li
d
a
te
d
 E
x
a
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 R
e
s
u
lt
s
 

 T
o

 s
c

ru
ti

n
is

e
 t

h
e

 2
0

1
4

 e
x

a
m

in
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
s

u
lt

s
, 

a
s

s
e

s
s

 t
h

e
 i

m
p

a
c

t 
o

f 
th

e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 
p

la
n

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 e
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

re
s

u
lt

s
 a

n
d

 m
a

k
e

 a
n

y
 n

e
c

e
s

s
a

ry
 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s
  

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

 

 
 

 
 

9
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
5
 

1
8
 F
e
b
 D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
  

2
5
 F
e
b
 F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
  

 
 

 
 

 

  

145



146

This page is intentionally left blank



CREATING OPPORUTNITIES AND TACKLING 
INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 11 

14 JULY 2014 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Director of Governance 
 
Report Author – Paulina Ford, Senior Governance Officer, Scrutiny 
Contact Details – 01733 452508 or email paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk 
 
FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 This is a regular report to the Creating Opportunities and Tackling Inequalities Scrutiny 

Committee outlining the content of the Forward Plan of Key Decisions. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 That the Committee identifies any relevant items for inclusion within their work programme. 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The latest version of the Forward Plan of Key Decisions is attached at Appendix 1.  The Plan 
contains those key decisions, which the Leader of the Council believes that the Cabinet or 
individual Cabinet Member(s) can take and any new key decisions to be taken after 25 July 
2014. 
 

3.2 The information in the Forward Plan of Key Decisions provides the Committee with the 
opportunity of considering whether it wishes to seek to influence any of these key decisions, or to 
request further information. 
 

3.3 If the Committee wished to examine any of the key decisions, consideration would need to be 
given as to how this could be accommodated within the work programme. 
 

3.4 
 

As the Forward Plan is published fortnightly any version of the Forward Plan published after 
dispatch of this agenda will be tabled at the meeting. 
 

4. CONSULTATION 
 

4.1 Details of any consultation on individual decisions are contained within the Forward Plan of Key 
Decisions. 
 

5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

 
 None 

 
6. APPENDICES 

 

 Appendix 1 – Forward Plan of  Key Decisions 
 
 

147



148

This page is intentionally left blank



  
P
E
T
E
R
B
O
R
O
U
G
H
 C
IT
Y
  

C
O
U
N
C
IL
’S
 F
O
R
W
A
R
D
 P
L
A
N
 

O
F
 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 

 
   

P
U
B
L
IS
H
E
D
: 
 2
7
 J
U
N
E
 2
0
1
4
 

 

149



F
O
R
W
A
R
D
 P
L
A
N
 O
F
 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 

A
B

 

In
 t
h
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
in
g
 2
8
 d
a
y
s
 a
ft
e
r 
th
e
 d
a
te
 o
f 
p
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
is
 P
la
n
, 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 i
n
te
n
d
s
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 'k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
' o
n
 t
h
e
 

is
s
u
e
s
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
b
e
lo
w
. 
 K
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 r
e
la
te
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 o
r 
s
a
v
in
g
 m

o
n
e
y
 i
n
 e
x
c
e
s
s
 o
f 

£
5
0
0
,0
0
0
 a
n
d
/o
r 
h
a
v
e
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
w
o
 o
r 
m
o
re
 w
a
rd
s
 i
n
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
. 

 If
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 t
o
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 a
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
c
a
b
in
e
t 
m
e
m
b
e
r,
 t
h
e
 n
a
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 c
a
b
in
e
t 
m
e
m
b
e
r 
is
 s
h
o
w
n
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
, 
in
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r’
s
 p
o
rt
fo
lio
. 
If
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 t
o
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
a
b
in
e
t,
 i
t’
s
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
re
 a
s
 l
is
te
d
 b
e
lo
w
: 

C
llr
 C
e
re
s
te
 (
L
e
a
d
e
r)
; 
C
llr
 E
ls
e
y
; 
C
llr
 F
it
z
g
e
ra
ld
; 
C
llr
 H
o
ld
ic
h
 (
D
e
p
u
ty
 L
e
a
d
e
r)
; 
C
llr
 N
o
rt
h
; 
C
llr
 S
e
a
to
n
; 
C
llr
 S
c
o
tt
; 
a
n
d
 C
llr
 W

a
ls
h
. 
 

 T
h
is
 P
la
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
e
e
n
 a
s
 a
n
 o
u
tl
in
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
o
rt
h
c
o
m
in
g
 m
o
n
th
 a
n
d
 i
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 o
n
 a
 f
o
rt
n
ig
h
tl
y
 b
a
s
is
. 
 E
a
c
h
 n
e
w
 P
la
n
 

s
u
p
e
rs
e
d
e
s
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 i
te
m
s
 m

a
y
 b
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
v
e
r 
in
to
 f
o
rt
h
c
o
m
in
g
 P
la
n
s
. 
 A
n
y
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

 w
h
ic
h
 a
p
p
e
a
rs
 a
t 
th
e
 b
a
c
k
 o
f 
th
e
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 G
e
m
m
a
 G
e
o
rg
e
, 
S
e
n
io
r 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 O
ff
ic
e
r,
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t,
 

T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll,
 B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
E
1
 1
H
G
 (
fa
x
 0
8
7
0
2
 3
8
8
0
3
9
).
 A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
ly
, 
y
o
u
 c
a
n
 s
u
b
m
it
 y
o
u
r 
v
ie
w
s
 v
ia
 e
-m

a
il 
to
 g
e
m
m
a
.g
e
o
rg
e
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 o
r 
b
y
 

te
le
p
h
o
n
e
 o
n
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
2
6
8
. 

 W
h
ils
t 
th
e
 m
a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
t 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 l
is
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
is
 P
la
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 o
p
e
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 a
n
d
 m
e
d
ia
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
, 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

s
o
m
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
n
ta
in
s
, 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
l,
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
lly
 s
e
n
s
it
iv
e
 o
r 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
. 
 I
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 t
h
e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 m
a
y
 b
e
 h
e
ld
 i
n
 p
ri
v
a
te
, 
a
n
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 r
a
re
 o
c
c
a
s
io
n
 t
h
is
 a
p
p
lie
s
 t
h
is
 i
s
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
is
t 
b
e
lo
w
. 
A
 f
o
rm

a
l 
n
o
ti
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
te
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 h
o
ld
 t
h
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
, 

o
r 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
it
, 
in
 p
ri
v
a
te
, 
w
ill
 b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 2
8
 c
le
a
r 
d
a
y
s
 i
n
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
a
n
y
 p
ri
v
a
te
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 T
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 (
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
) 

(M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
n
d
 A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
) 
(E
n
g
la
n
d
) 
R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 2
0
1
2
. 
 

 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
in
v
it
e
s
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
t 
w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
s
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 (
u
n
le
s
s
 a
 n
o
ti
c
e
 o
f 
in
te
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 h
o
ld
 t
h
e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 p
ri
v
a
te
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 g
iv
e
n
).
 

 Y
o
u
 a
re
 e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 t
o
 v
ie
w
 a
n
y
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 l
is
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
, 
o
r 
o
b
ta
in
 e
x
tr
a
c
ts
 f
ro
m
 a
n
y
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 l
is
te
d
 o
r 
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
e
r 

p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 b
e
in
g
 m

a
d
e
, 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
n
y
 r
e
s
tr
ic
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 d
is
c
lo
s
u
re
. 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 c
h
a
rg
e
 f
o
r 
v
ie
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
 m
a
y
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 f
o
r 

p
h
o
to
c
o
p
y
in
g
 o
r 
p
o
s
ta
g
e
. 
 D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 l
is
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 n
o
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 c
a
n
 b
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 f
ro
m
 A
le
x
 D
a
y
n
e
s
, 

S
e
n
io
r 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 O
ff
ic
e
r,
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t,
 T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll,
 B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
E
1
 1
H
G
 (
fa
x
 0
8
7
0
2
 3
8
8
0
3
9
),
 e
-m

a
il 
to
 

g
e
m
m
a
.g
e
o
rg
e
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 o
r 
b
y
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 o
n
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
2
6
8
. 
F
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 a
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 T
e
a
m
 o
n
e
 

w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 t
a
k
e
n
. 
 

 A
ll 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
o
s
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
: 
w
w
w
.p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
/e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
. 
 I
f 
y
o
u
 w
is
h
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 o
r 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 'k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
' 
o
u
tl
in
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
is
 P
la
n
, 
p
le
a
s
e
 s
u
b
m
it
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 t
h
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
. 
 F
o
r 
y
o
u
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 
th
e
 

c
o
n
ta
c
t 
d
e
ta
ils
 f
o
r 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
is
 P
la
n
. 

 

150



K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 F
R
O
M
 2
5
 J
U
L
Y
 2
0
1
4
 

 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

R
E
Q
U
IR
E
D
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

M
A
K
E
R
 

 

D
A
T
E
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

E
X
P
E
C
T
E
D
 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
 

O
P
E
N
 T
O
 

P
U
B
L
IC
 

R
E
L
E
V
A
N
T
  

S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 

C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 

C
O
N
S
U
L
T
A
T
IO
N
 
C
O
N
T
A
C
T
 D
E
T
A
IL
S
 /
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 A
U
T
H
O
R
S
 

D
O
C
U
M
E
N
T
S
 

R
E
L
E
V
A
N
T
 T
O
 

T
H
E
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

S
U
B
M
IT
T
E
D
 T
O
 

T
H
E
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

M
A
K
E
R
 (
IF
 A
N
Y
 

O
T
H
E
R
 T
H
A
N
 

P
U
B
L
IC
 R
E
P
O
R
T
) 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 F
lo
o
d
 

R
is
k
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 -
 

K
E
Y
/2
5
J
U
L
1
4
/0
1
 

F
o
r 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
to
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 

th
e
 D
ra
ft
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

F
lo
o
d
 R
is
k
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 
p
u
b
lic
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

 
2
2
 S
e
p
 2
0
1
4
 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

J
u
lia
 C
h
a
tt
e
rt
o
n
 

F
lo
o
d
 a
n
d
 W

a
te
r 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
6
2
0
 

ju
lia
.c
h
a
tt
e
rt
o
n
@
p
e
te
rb

o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

J
o
in
t 
V
e
n
tu
re
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 -
 

K
E
Y
/2
5
J
U
L
1
4
/0
2
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

J
o
in
t 
V
e
n
tu
re
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

M
a
rc
o
 C
e
re
s
te
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 a
n
d
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
G
ro
w
th
, 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
, 

H
o
u
s
in
g
, 

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

        

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
4
 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
e
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

S
im
o
n
 W

e
b
b
e
r 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
je
c
ts
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
4
5
 

s
im
o
n
.w
e
b
b
e
r@

p
e
te
rb

o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

151



 

 

P
R
E
V
IO
U
S
L
Y
 A
D
V
E
R
T
IS
E
D
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
's
 C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
c
e
ip
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 S
a
le
 o
f 

D
ic
k
e
n
s
 S
tr
e
e
t 
C
a
r 

P
a
rk
 -
 K
E
Y
/0
3
J
U
L
/1
1
 

T
o
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
 t
h
e
 C
h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 
in
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 S
o
lic
it
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il,
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
–
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
th
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
to
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
te
 

a
n
d
 c
o
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 s
a
le
 o
f 

D
ic
k
e
n
s
 S
tr
e
e
t 
C
a
r 
P
a
rk
. 
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
D
a
v
id
 

S
e
a
to
n
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
4
 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 

ta
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
r,
 W

a
rd
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
, 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 &
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

  

R
ic
h
a
rd
 H
o
d
g
s
o
n
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

P
ro
je
c
ts
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
3
5
 

ri
c
h
a
rd
.h
o
d
g
s
o
n
@
p
e
te
r

b
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

C
a
re
 a
n
d
 R
e
p
a
ir
 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
- 

K
E
Y
/1
8
D
E
C
1
2
/0
1
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 a
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 

o
f 
ra
te
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 

d
is
a
b
le
d
 f
a
c
ili
ty
 g
ra
n
t 

w
o
rk
, 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 

p
ro
v
id
in
g
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 

to
 t
o
ile
t 
a
n
d
 w
a
s
h
in
g
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 

w
o
rk
 i
n
 d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
N
ig
e
l 

N
o
rt
h
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

 

A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
4
 
N
/A
 

S
tr
o
n
g
 a
n
d
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
iv
e
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
In
te
rn
a
l 

D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
. 

  

R
u
s
s
 C
a
rr
 

C
a
re
 &
 R
e
p
a
ir
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
8
6
4
 

ru
s
s
.c
a
rr
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g

h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

152



 

 A
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 

P
o
li
c
y
 -
 

K
E
Y
/0
4
O
C
T
1
3
/0
2
 

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 t
h
e
 

a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 P
o
lic
y
. 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

 
2
8
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
4
 

Y
e
s
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

R
ic
h
a
rd
 K
a
y
 

P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
7
9
5
 

ri
c
h
a
rd
.k
a
y
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro

u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 
P
e
o
p
le
 

w
it
h
 D
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 a
n
d
 

th
e
ir
 C
a
re
rs
 -
 

K
E
Y
/0
4
O
C
T
1
3
/0
5
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 D
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

 
3
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
4
 

N
/A
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

Is
s
u
e
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
, 

re
le
v
a
n
t 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 f
o
r 

H
e
a
lt
h
 I
s
s
u
e
s
. 
 

  

R
o
b
 H
e
n
c
h
y
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
2
9
 

ro
b
.h
e
n
c
h
y
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro

u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
T
h
o
rp
e
 

P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
- 

K
E
Y
/1
3
J
U
N
1
4
/0
3
 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 

th
e
 c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 

n
e
w
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
b
u
ild
in
g
s
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 r
e
m
o
d
e
lli
n
g
 o
f 

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 b
u
ild
in
g
s
 t
o
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
te
 t
h
e
 

e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
T
h
o
rp
e
 

P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
(1
 f
o
rm

 
e
n
tr
y
 e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
).
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
J
o
h
n
 

H
o
ld
ic
h
  

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

S
k
il
ls
 a
n
d
 

U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
4
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

a
n
d
 T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

E
m
m
a
 E
v
e
ri
tt
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
6
6
0
 

e
m
m
a
.e
v
e
ri
tt
@
p
e
te
rb
o
r

o
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

153



 

 T
h
e
 V
is
io
n
 f
o
r 
O
ld
e
r 

P
e
o
p
le
 -
 

K
E
Y
/1
0
J
A
N
1
4
/0
5
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
 u
s
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

c
a
re
rs
/ 
fa
m
ily
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 

o
n
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 

d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 d
a
y
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

 
2
8
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
4
 

Y
e
s
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 

fo
r 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

Is
s
u
e
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

N
ic
k
 B
la
k
e
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
&
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
0
6
 

n
ic
k
.b
la
k
e
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u

g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

A
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
o
f 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
s
s
e
t 

T
ra
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
G
la
d
s
to
n
e
 

P
a
rk
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 -
 

K
E
Y
/2
4
J
A
N
1
4
/0
3
 

A
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
fo
r 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 e
n
te
r 
in
to
 a
 f
u
ll 

re
p
a
ir
in
g
 l
e
a
s
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 

u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
s
s
e
t 

T
ra
n
s
fe
r 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
D
a
v
id
 

S
e
a
to
n
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
4
 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

E
m
m
a
 E
v
e
ri
tt
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
6
6
0
 

e
m
m
a
.e
v
e
ri
tt
@
p
e
te
rb
o
r

o
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

154



 

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 7
5
 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

C
li
n
ic
a
l 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 (
C
C
G
) 
fo
r 
th
e
 

P
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
 J
o
in
t 

C
h
il
d
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 

W
e
ll
b
e
in
g
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 U
n
it
 -
 

K
E
Y
/2
1
F
E
B
1
4
/0
1
 

A
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 e
n
tr
y
 

in
to
 a
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 

7
5
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t,
 f
o
r 
a
n
 

in
it
ia
l 
tw
o
 y
e
a
r 
p
e
ri
o
d
, 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
C
G
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
 b
o
rd
e
rl
in
e
 

a
n
d
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 j
o
in
t 

c
h
ild
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 w
e
llb
e
in
g
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 u
n
it
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

W
a
y
n
e
 

F
it
z
g
e
ra
ld
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
4
 

N
/A
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 

fo
r 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

Is
s
u
e
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 
 

  

O
liv
e
r 
H
a
y
w
a
rd
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
1
0
 

o
liv
e
r.
h
a
y
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb

o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
p
a
c
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 

th
e
 E
x
te
n
s
io
n
 o
f 

D
is
c
o
v
e
ry
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
- 

K
E
Y
/2
1
M
A
R
1
4
/0
1
 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 

th
e
 e
x
te
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

D
is
c
o
v
e
ry
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
to
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
te
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 p
u
p
il 

n
u
m
b
e
rs
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
J
o
h
n
 

H
o
ld
ic
h
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

S
k
il
ls
 a
n
d
 

U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
4
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

a
n
d
 T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
. 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

B
ri
a
n
 H
o
w
a
rd
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
- 

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
7
6
 

b
ri
a
n
.h
o
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
r

o
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

155



 

 S
a
le
 o
f 
G
re
e
n
w
o
o
d
 

H
o
u
s
e
 -
 

K
E
Y
/2
1
M
A
R
1
4
/0
2
 

D
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
c
e
ip
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 s
a
le
 o
f 

G
re
e
n
w
o
o
d
 H
o
u
s
e
, 

S
o
u
th
 P
a
ra
d
e
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
D
a
v
id
 

S
e
a
to
n
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
4
 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

S
im
o
n
 W

e
b
b
e
r 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
je
c
ts
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
4
5
 

s
im
o
n
.w
e
b
b
e
r@

p
e
te
rb

o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

S
a
le
 o
f 
th
e
 H
e
rl
in
g
to
n
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 -
 

K
E
Y
/2
1
M
A
R
1
4
/0
3
 

D
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 c
a
p
it
a
l 

re
c
e
ip
ts
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 s
a
le
 o
f 
th
e
 

H
e
rl
in
g
to
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
, 

O
rt
o
n
 M
a
lb
o
rn
e
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
D
a
v
id
 

S
e
a
to
n
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
4
 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

S
im
o
n
 W

e
b
b
e
r 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
je
c
ts
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
4
5
 

s
im
o
n
.w
e
b
b
e
r@

p
e
te
rb

o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
it
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
1
4
 -
 

K
E
Y
/2
1
M
A
R
1
4
/0
6
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 
T
h
e
 v
is
io
n
 i
s
 

to
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 

h
ig
h
-q
u
a
lit
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

w
h
ils
t 
m
a
x
im
is
in
g
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
s
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

d
if
fe
re
n
t 
c
h
a
n
n
e
ls
 a
t 

th
e
 l
o
w
e
s
t 
re
a
s
o
n
a
b
le
 

c
o
s
t,
 w
h
ils
t 
a
ls
o
 

re
d
u
c
in
g
 o
r 
d
iv
e
rt
in
g
 

d
e
m
a
n
d
. 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

 
2
8
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
4
 

Y
e
s
 

S
tr
o
n
g
 a
n
d
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
iv
e
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

R
ic
k
y
 F
u
lle
r 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
/T
ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
8
2
 

ri
c
k
y
.f
u
lle
r@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u

g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

156



 

 A
s
s
is
ti
v
e
 T
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 

C
h
a
rg
in
g
 P
o
li
c
y
 -
 

K
E
Y
/0
4
A
P
R
1
4
/0
1
 

T
o
 a
m
e
n
d
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 c
h
a
rg
in
g
 

p
o
lic
y
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

W
a
y
n
e
 

F
it
z
g
e
ra
ld
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
4
 

N
/A
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 

fo
r 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

Is
s
u
e
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

M
a
rk
 G
e
d
n
e
y
 

A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
3
3
5
 

m
a
rk
.g
e
d
n
e
y
@
p
e
te
rb
o
r

o
u
g
h
p
c
t.
n
h
s
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

F
o
rm
a
li
s
e
 I
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 

F
u
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 -
 

K
E
Y
/1
8
A
P
R
1
4
/0
1
 

T
o
 f
o
rm

a
lis
e
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 j
o
in
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

W
a
y
n
e
 

F
it
z
g
e
ra
ld
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
4
 

N
/A
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 

fo
r 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

Is
s
u
e
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

N
ic
k
 B
la
k
e
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
&
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
0
6
 

n
ic
k
.b
la
k
e
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u

g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 

B
u
il
d
 o
f 
a
 W
a
s
te
 

T
ra
n
s
fe
r 
S
ta
ti
o
n
 -
 

K
E
Y
/1
8
A
P
R
1
4
/0
2
 

T
o
 a
w
a
rd
 a
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 

th
e
 b
u
ild
 o
f 
a
 w
a
s
te
 

tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
s
ta
ti
o
n
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

G
a
v
in
 E
ls
e
y
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
S
tr
e
e
t 
S
c
e
n
e
, 

W
a
s
te
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
4
 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

P
a
u
l 
R
o
b
e
rt
s
o
n
 

W
a
s
te
 P
ro
je
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
4
7
4
0
 

p
a
u
l.
ro
b
e
rt
s
o
n
@
p
e
te
rb

o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 

B
u
il
d
 o
f 
a
 H
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 

R
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 C
e
n
tr
e
 -
 

K
E
Y
/1
8
A
P
R
1
4
/0
3
 

T
o
 a
w
a
rd
 a
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 

th
e
 b
u
ild
 o
f 
a
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 

c
e
n
tr
e
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

G
a
v
in
 E
ls
e
y
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
S
tr
e
e
t 
S
c
e
n
e
, 

W
a
s
te
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
4
 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

P
a
u
l 
R
o
b
e
rt
s
o
n
 

W
a
s
te
 P
ro
je
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
4
7
4
0
 

p
a
u
l.
ro
b
e
rt
s
o
n
@
p
e
te
rb

o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

157



 

 F
u
tu
re
 o
f 
th
e
 E
ig
h
t 

F
o
rm
e
r 
P
la
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 -
 

K
E
Y
/0
2
M
A
Y
1
4
/0
1
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 e
ig
h
t 
fo
rm

e
r 
p
la
y
 

c
e
n
tr
e
s
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
N
ig
e
l 

N
o
rt
h
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
4
 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

C
a
te
 H
a
rd
in
g
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 3
1
7
4
9
7
 

c
a
te
.h
a
rd
in
g
@
p
e
te
rb
o
r

o
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
A
w
a
rd
 f
o
r 

1
6
+
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 

A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 -
 

K
E
Y
/0
2
M
A
Y
1
4
/0
4
 

T
o
 a
w
a
rd
 a
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 

1
6
+
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

S
h
e
il
a
 S
c
o
tt
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
4
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

a
n
d
 T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

O
liv
e
r 
H
a
y
w
a
rd
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
1
0
 

o
liv
e
r.
h
a
y
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb

o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

T
h
e
 E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 

P
h
e
o
n
ix
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
- 

K
E
Y
/0
2
M
A
Y
1
4
/0
5
 

T
o
 a
w
a
rd
 a
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 

th
e
 e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 

P
h
e
o
n
ix
 S
c
h
o
o
l,
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 

o
f 
p
ro
p
e
rt
y
, 
le
g
a
l 
a
n
d
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

fo
r 
v
a
ri
o
u
s
 e
n
a
b
lin
g
 

w
it
h
 t
h
ir
d
 p
a
rt
ie
s
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
D
a
v
id
 

S
e
a
to
n
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
4
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

a
n
d
 T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

B
ri
a
n
 H
o
w
a
rd
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
- 

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
7
6
 

b
ri
a
n
.h
o
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
r

o
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

D
o
g
s
th
o
rp
e
 J
u
n
io
r 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
A
c
a
d
e
m
y
 

C
o
n
v
e
rs
io
n
 -
 

K
E
Y
/3
0
M
A
Y
1
4
/0
1
 

C
lo
s
u
re
 o
f 
D
o
g
s
th
o
rp
e
 

J
u
n
io
r 
S
c
h
o
o
l,
 

a
c
a
d
e
m
y
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 

a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 l
e
a
s
e
 

o
f 
p
re
m
is
e
s
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
J
o
h
n
 

H
o
ld
ic
h
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

S
k
il
ls
 a
n
d
 

U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
4
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

a
n
d
 T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

A
lis
o
n
 C
h
a
m
b
e
rs
 

P
ri
n
c
ip
a
l 
A
s
s
e
ts
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

(S
c
h
o
o
ls
) 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
7
5
 

a
lis
o
n
.c
h
a
m
b
e
rs
@
p
e
te

rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

158



 

 P
ri
n
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
d
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 

K
E
Y
/1
3
J
U
N
1
4
/0
1
 

T
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

o
ff
ic
e
rs
 t
o
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 

p
ri
n
t,
 c
o
p
y
 a
n
d
 s
c
a
n
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
D
a
v
id
 

S
e
a
to
n
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

R
ic
k
y
 F
u
lle
r 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
/T
ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
8
2
 

ri
c
k
y
.f
u
lle
r@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u

g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

H
a
m
p
to
n
 C
o
ll
e
g
e
 

C
o
n
v
e
rs
io
n
 -
 

K
E
Y
/3
0
J
U
N
1
4
/0
2
 

C
lo
s
u
re
 o
f 
H
a
m
p
to
n
 

C
o
lle
g
e
, 
a
c
a
d
e
m
y
 

tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

le
a
s
e
 o
f 
p
re
m
is
e
s
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
J
o
h
n
 

H
o
ld
ic
h
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

S
k
il
ls
 a
n
d
 

U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
4
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

a
n
d
 T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

A
lis
o
n
 C
h
a
m
b
e
rs
 

P
ri
n
c
ip
a
l 
A
s
s
e
ts
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

(S
c
h
o
o
ls
) 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
7
5
 

a
lis
o
n
.c
h
a
m
b
e
rs
@
p
e
te

rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 a
n
y
 

fu
rt
h
e
r 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

D
ra
ft
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
e
r 

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 

S
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ry
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
- 

K
E
Y
/1
3
J
U
N
1
4
/0
2
 

F
o
r 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
to
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 d
ra
ft
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t.
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

 
2
8
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
4
 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l.
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

R
ic
h
a
rd
 K
a
y
 

P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
7
9
5
 

ri
c
h
a
rd
.k
a
y
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro

u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

IC
T
 P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
- 

K
E
Y
/2
7
J
U
N
1
4
/0
1
 

P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 

s
o
ft
w
a
re
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
ils
 t
ra
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
D
a
v
id
 

S
e
a
to
n
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
4
 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

R
ic
h
a
rd
 G
o
d
fr
e
y
 

IC
T
 a
n
d
 T
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
a
l 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
1
7
9
8
9
 

ri
c
h
a
rd
.g
o
d
fr
e
y
@
p
e
te
rb

o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

159



 

 P
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
M
F
D
s
 -
 

K
E
Y
/1
1
J
U
L
1
4
/0
1
 

T
o
 r
e
p
la
c
e
 t
h
e
 1
7
 H
P
 

E
d
g
e
lin
e
s
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 t
o
 b
e
 

a
b
le
 t
o
 p
ri
n
t,
 c
o
p
y
 a
n
d
 

s
c
a
n
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
D
a
v
id
 

S
e
a
to
n
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
4
 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

R
ic
k
y
 F
u
lle
r 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
/T
ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
8
2
 

ri
c
k
y
.f
u
lle
r@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u

g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 

160



  R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r'
s
 O
ff
ic
e
 a
t 
T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll
, 
B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
P
E
1
 1
H
G
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls
 I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 (
A
s
s
e
ts
 a
n
d
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
P
la
c
e
 P
la
n
n
in
g
) 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 

W
a
s
te
 a
n
d
 E
n
e
rg
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 C
lie
n
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 /
 V
iv
a
c
it
y
 /
 S
E
R
C
O
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
IC
T
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
) 

 C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
’S
 S
E
R
V
IC
E
S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r’
s
 O
ff
ic
e
 a
t 
B
a
y
a
rd
 P
la
c
e
, 
B
ro
a
d
w
a
y
, 
P
E
1
 1
F
B
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 F
a
m
ily
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
  

S
c
h
o
o
l 
Im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

S
p
e
c
ia
l 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
N
e
e
d
s
 /
 I
n
c
lu
s
io
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 P
u
p
il 
R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 

 A
D
U
L
T
 S
O
C
IA
L
 C
A
R
E
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r’
s
 O
ff
ic
e
 a
t 
T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll
, 
B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
P
E
1
 1
H
G
 

C
a
re
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 (
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 C
a
re
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 I
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
 

M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 H
e
a
lt
h
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t)
 

 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
IE
S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
 D
ir
e
c
to
r’
s
 O
ff
ic
e
 a
t 
B
a
y
a
rd
 P
la
c
e
, 
B
ro
a
d
w
a
y
, 
P
E
1
 1
F
B
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
  

S
a
fe
r 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
C
o
h
e
s
io
n
, 
S
o
c
ia
l 
In
c
lu
s
io
n
 a
n
d
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 G
O
V
E
R
N
A
N
C
E
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
 D
ir
e
c
to
r’
s
 O
ff
ic
e
 a
t 
T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll
, 
B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
P
E
1
 1
H
G
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

L
e
g
a
l 
a
n
d
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

H
R
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 R
e
la
ti
o
n
s
 (
T
ra
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 R
e
w
a
rd
 a
n
d
 P
o
lic
y
) 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 R
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 G
R
O
W
T
H
 A
N
D
 R
E
G
E
N
E
R
A
T
IO
N
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
 D
ir
e
c
to
r’
s
 O
ff
ic
e
 S
tu
a
rt
 H
o
u
s
e
, 
S
t 
J
o
h
n
s
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
P
E
1
 5
D
D
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 (
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
, 
In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 D
e
liv
e
ry
, 
N
e
tw
o
rk
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 P
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
) 

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 (
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
a
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
C
C
T
V
, 
C
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
, 
M
a
rk
e
ts
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
T
ra
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 T
o
u
ri
s
m
) 

 

161



162

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Meeting Held on 17 March 2014
	3. Appendix 1 - Ofsted Inspection Report - 17 march 2014 Mins

	5 New Vision for Early Years Services Including Children's Centres in Peterborough
	5. Appendix 1 - De designated Childrens Centres - CO&TISC - 140714

	6 Implementations of Ofsted School Improvement Inspection Action Plan
	6. Appendix 1 - Post-OfSTED Action Plan July 14 - CO&TISC - 140714

	7 Draft School Organisation Plan 2014/2015 - Delivering Local Places for Local Children
	7. Appendix 1 - School Organisation Plan 2014-2019 - CO&TISC - 140714

	8 Improving Education Outcomes Task  and  Finish Group Final Report
	9 Directors Report for Social Care Practice and Performance
	10 Review of 2013/2014 and Work Programme for 2014/15
	10. Appendix 1 - Recommendations from 2013-2014  -  140714 -CO&TISC
	10. Appendix 2 - Work Programme 2014-15 CO&TI - DRAFT - CO&TISC - 140714

	11 Forward Plan of Key Decisions
	11. Appendix 1 - Forward Plan of Key Decisions 25 July - CO&TISC- 140714


